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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

S 5 4

Year ended Year ended
29 February 28 February
2020 2019 Change
Bz BHZE
—ECEF —E-hEF
—A=thHB Z—HAZTNAR
HFE FE 29
RMB million RMB million
ARBBEERT ARBBER
Profit and Loss Highlights ANERBE
Revenue I &= 736.4 908.8 (19.0%)
Consolidated Loss Attributable to KRB FEAENL
Owners of the Company RAEE (30.5) (28.0)
Basic Losses per Share (RMB Cents) &R EREEB(ARED) (4.32) (3.97)
Balance Sheet Highlights EEEBRREE
Total Equity B 961.7 1,186.2 (18.9%)
Net Cash Balances RerknTsE 508.6 590.6 (13.9%)
Net Assets Value per Share (RMB) BREEFEANRET) 1.36 1.68 (19.0%)
Net Cash per Share (RMB) BRRFEANRET) 0.72 0.84 (14.3%)
Other Key Ratios HthxEHh =
Stock Turnover (Days) FEREXE(R) 369 326
Quick Ratio (Times) RELLE(1F) 5.4 5.9
Gearing Ratio (%) BEEELE%) - —
EEVETIE - Consolidated (Loss)/Profit Attributable to
Wit TRl G,
- -ZKA vi) HE 3 a /

RMB million AR¥EHT
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Cheng Wang, Gary (Chief Executive Officer)
(resigned with effect from 16 October 2019)
Chui Kwan Ho, Jacky
Liao Jian Yu
Li Wing Yeung, Peter
(appointed with effect from 22 January 2020)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

James Ngai (Chairman)
Lee Tze Bun, Marces
(resigned with effect from 16 October 2019)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Lam Siu Lun, Simon
Leung Wai Ki, George
Hui Chi Kwan

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Lam Siu Lun, Simon (Chairman)
Leung Wai Ki, George
Hui Chi Kwan

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Lam Siu Lun, Simon (Chairman)
Leung Wai Ki, George

Hui Chi Kwan

James Ngai

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Hui Chi Kwan (Chairman)
Lam Siu Lun, Simon
Leung Wai Ki, George
James Ngai

COMPANY SECRETARY
Yuen Chee Wing

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants and Registered PIE Auditor
22nd Floor, Prince’s Building

Central, Hong Kong
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
2wl EFE

LEGAL ADVISER

Wilkinson & Grist

6th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Suites 1104-1106, 11th Floor
1063 King’s Road
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR (IN BERMUDA)

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR (IN HONG KONG)

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Units 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wan Chai, Hong Kong

LISTING INFORMATION

Listing: The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock Code: 0738
Board Size: 2,000 Shares

INVESTOR RELATIONS
Email address: ir@lesaunda.com.hk

WEBSITE ADDRESS
http://www.lesaunda.com.hk
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
JBe R

FINANCIAL CALENDAR B B {TE &

2019/20 Interim Results Announcement 30 October 2019
—E-NSEERBEELAMH —“ET-NFE+A=+H
2019/20 Annual Results Announcement 25 May 2020
N/ ZEFRFEENH —EEFRA-THHA
Closure of Register of Members for Annual General Meeting 8 — 13 July 2020
(both days inclusive)
TEREROMBPELFEUEERTAFRS) —E-TFELANBET=H
(BHEEEMB)
Annual General Meeting 13 July 2020
BRERBFAE —E-TFLAT=H

~
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
JBE SR

SHAREHOLDER SERVICES

For enquiries about share transfer and registration, please
contact the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong:

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Units 1712—1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wan Chai, Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2862 8555
Facsimile: (852) 2865 0990

Holders of the Company’s ordinary shares should notify
the above registrar promptly of any change of their
address.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

For enquiries relating to investor relations, please email to
ir@lesaunda.com.hk or write to the Company at:

Le Saunda Holdings Limited
Suites 1104-1106, 11th Floor
1063 King’s Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 3678 3200
Facsimile: (852) 2554 9304
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KEY MILESTONES
HEREL

A 7\‘)3‘2019

le saunda joined the “Job Shadowing Scheme”
organized by Career Sparkle of St James
Settlement and offered internship opportunities
to the youth. Through the scheme, participants
visited our retail stores, understood our business
nature and operations and practiced at the stores
to learn daily operations, including: sales skills,
customer service, leather care, merchandise
handling, etc.

le saunda 2NN TERSBHEELFEEHRE
RGO TERE FarEll AELERETIIEES
e o FiBFTE  BELRXET le saunda METE
JEH - THRARMEBEGE REE - WRIEHE
TEE HROEBRNEZEHANEEEEIE
B HEED  FERRE  HEERE BES-

| e————————— - le saunda 2019 Fall Winter Media

Preview Day invited major media
publishers, senior fashion editors,
star stylists and key opinion leaders
to attend le saunda and LINEA ROSA
2019 Fall Winter product showcase
at the Ritz-Carlton Shanghai, Pudong
Hotel and Hotel Eclat Beijing.

le saunda 2019M X H EE T8 B H ¥ =5
TERBEBLERA - BEXEHEFE -
2SR BFHMKOLEWE N E
R EBERREE/EMENAEIL
FIETEE M ZEle saunda M LINEA
ROSA 20198 FK & 5T @R ©

annual report 3% 2020




KEY MILESTONES
HEERFR

le saunda and ltalian designer brand Cristiano
Burani jointly released the 2020 Spring Summer
Capsule Collection in Milan on 22nd September.
This was the first time that le saunda appeared in
the most representative Milan Fashion Week, one
of the global “Big Four” fashion weeks. Designer
Cristiano Burani has been the Design Director of
Blumarine Jeans and now is the Creative Director
of Japan Takisada Group. He also worked for
luxury brands Versace and La Perla in the past.

B - —

le saundal [ & A F| 5% & A0 an k2 Cristiano Burani
ROA22ATE KB B 20205 EZ B % R oI & & -
& X iEle saunda BIXE EiR AR R MEAKER
HE - 2N KEERE|Z— o RETADCristiano
Burani® £ Blumarine Jeans /) iR 5T 48 25 - IR F (T H
KTakisada L BMEI B RE - L BRBENEZ R E
Versace - La Perla & -

LINEA ROSA organized the 2019 Fall
Winter Media Preview Day in Turati,
a bustling district in Milan. European
fashion media and stylists were invited
to visit the LINEA ROSA 2019 Fall
Winter product showroom and shared
the fashion trend with our PR and
marketing team.

LINEA ROSAR KM EEME R IZ R
BIT2010M AL HETEEH AR M@
& B2 - IR 35 BOM IF 88 B B ) 1 AU BT S
. ELINEA ROSAG B A K5
HEEEBRTwmEARBEY  IREHE

= .

le saunda holdings Itd. & HTHERR AR AT




After being awarded by the Guangdong Electronic
Commerce Industry Association in 2018, we
are honoured to be awarded “2019 Top 100
Guangdong E-commerce Enterprises”. The
Top 100 Guangdong E-commerce Enterprises
Assessment is conducted annually to recognize
sizable e-commerce companies which have
outstanding social influence, high growth potential
and strong sense of social responsibilities.

H2OBFEEREREETFABKBERER A%

KEY MILESTONES
HEERFA

BHAEHE EEBANROIOFEEREETENEIO0R ] - EREAETHEBOEI00BREBFTRE—X "B
ERHEREANEERERK deFE2hRt  EERUERBINRBHSETRMNEFEFLE -

—-

le saunda 2020 Spring Summer
Media Preview Day invited major
media publishers, senior fashion
editors, star stylists and key opinion
leaders to attend le saunda and
LINEA ROSA 2020 Spring Summer
product showcase at Hotel Eclat
Beijing.

le saunda 2020& E I BETE & H ¥ A
TERBEEHRA EXFHFE -
EEAA  BFEKOLEEE  RE
fir B JE L =168 = B JE fh 2 le saunda
& LINEA ROSA 2020&F E ¥ ©

annual report 3k 2020
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KEY MILESTONES
HEERFR

The Group was honored to be awarded the “10
Year Plus Caring Company Logo” again this year.
Through joining charitable activities, adopting
environmental protection initiatives, offering youth
internship programs and participating in youth
development projects, the Group partnered with
different social service organizations to promote
corporate social responsibilities and to build a
sustainable society.

%l%ﬁﬁéﬁf%mﬁﬂwﬁﬁﬁﬁlywm
EEFELEFEBL2MA ZEE - RRTH B
#%ﬁ%%ﬁ%&%ﬁﬁtiiﬁﬁ£ i AT &
REEEESE HABBRCELSET B —
ﬂTﬁfﬁfm&mo

During the year, the Group passed the assessment of the Quality Tourism Services
(QTS) scheme implemented by the Hong Kong Tourism Board and became a QTS-
accredited merchant. QTS-accredited merchants were assessed against three
criteria, namely price transparency, clear product information and superb customer
service, showing that their products and service are reliable and trustworthy to the

customers.

AEREEERBTHEAREERBETHMELDREREREFIINTE  BRIERRA
HEERBNE,  HERMRBFRBIABEE - éﬂ@%&@gﬁﬁfftﬁﬁmﬂﬁ

BEREME-

ﬁ}
T
J<

~7s

le saunda holdings Itd. 3 EHTFHER AR AT



KEY MILESTONES
HEERFA

) %
A ——AE‘ZOZO

le saunda is committed to creating a pleasant working environment, fostering employees’ sense of
belonging and team spirit and maintaining the corporate culture of working with heart. This year, le
saunda participated in the "Happiness-at-Work Promotion Scheme 2020” and the Group was awarded
as a “Happy Company” again. We hope our staff love their jobs, able to develop themselves and gain
happiness and job satisfaction at le saunda.

le saunda N AETHFERROIIERE  EEEINRBEBRMBEESES  EARALMMESHLEUL -
NEE le saunda 2 E[FHAO TEMIMEE12020 SELFERESZHAE (BODE] Bl XRE
HE P lesaunda BN ETHEEEACH IIE BIEME  RIEXKE|REMNHE R

le saunda and Italian
designer brand Cristiano
Burani jointly released the
2020 Fall Winter Capsule
Collection in Milan in
February 2020. le saunda
participated again in the
most representative Milan
Fashion Week, one of the
global“Big Four”fashion
weeks, after its first
appearance in September

2019.
2020428 + le saunda Bt [7
B K H| 5% 51 BD &7 h2 Cristiano
Burani 1 K B 2 #h 20207k £
TRERYLE - #2019F
IHEBRAE FHRAREKXE
ROKB R 2R 2 KWK
RRER]z— o
— -
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | am
pleased to present the annual report on the results of Le
Saunda Holdings Limited (“Le Saunda” or the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the
financial year ended 29 February 2020 (the “year under
review”).

The year under review has been a challenging financial
year. Under the influences of factors such as the Sino-US
trade dispute and economic slowdown in Mainland China,
both consumer and investment sentiments in Hong Kong
and China have weakened during the first half of this
financial year. Months of social activities in Hong Kong
since June 2019 has dealt another heavy blow to the
retail and tourism related sectors, resulting in negative
economic growth booked consecutively in Hong Kong for
the third and fourth quarters of 2019 and recording the
first annual drop since 2009. Prior to the Chinese New
Year, the outbreak of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19)
rapidly spread around the globe and caused pandemic
crisis worldwide. Many countries have ultimately taken
lockdown measures to halt the spread of the virus.
Inevitably, the pandemic has brought the retail sector in
Hong Kong and China an extremely cold winter, especially
sales in physical stores were severely hit by the drastic
drop in customer traffic.

HERER:

AABRKREZFSG(EFENIMAREER
BHTAHERER AR (BRI ER
ADEEMNBAR(AEBDBEE-_T =
TEE_A-TNABLEOMBFE(RES
BDZz%ERSE -

CEFEERMRBN—F LFFE -
RHPEXEFHEER NMEBERESTE -
FEMISHEE R E BRI BARES -
FEEE_T-NFRAANDEFEZEAN
HERPFBRETRTENKERRBITSR
BRIE-NFE=NFNFTHFBIH
GREAER RE_TTAFUKER
BREFEKE - B TREHFN HL
BRESRIERE  ARELED2IRZM
BRERRENRITEHE SEBEER
HEWEG  NEH RS RERRAR -
B ERARBELHETERTIA
BRARL LHITBEREHE  THA
R
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERHEE

Despite the unfavorable economic conditions and
adversity posed to the retailers, we believe that Le
Saunda, as a long-standing brand with over 43 years of
history, will tide over the difficulties as long as we adhere
to our core brand values. The outbreak of COVID-19 has
given us a glimpse into the chance of further developing
our e-commerce business. Beyond all doubt the younger
generation are accustomed to online shopping. Moreover,
the outbreak has also turned people, who used to dislike
or distrust online buying, into fans of online shopping due
to the online purchase of infection preventive items and
other household supplies during the lockdown period.

During the outbreak, people chose to stay at home and to
avoid outdoor activities and gatherings as possible as they
could. This no doubt made their social life lack of lustre as
social distancing prolonged with their unsatisfied shopping
desires accumulated in the meantime. In light of that, the
Group has taken active steps to develop our e-commerce
business which may even become one of our major
business units in the coming two to three years. The
immediate goal is to enable loyal customers of our brands
to have access to the latest product information and to
purchase their favourite shoes and accessories even at
home. In the meantime, online shopping also broadens
the marketing channel to reach new customer groups and
will provide an additional choice to consumers.

The medium-to-long-term goal of e-commerce is to
expand into untapped new markets, such as the lower
tier cities in the Mainland China. The population of these
regions and cities reaches approximately 1 billion. As
China continues to promote urbanization in these areas,
the consumption power of local residents has increased
significantly. Due to a lower cost of living in these lower
tier cities, the consumer confidence index there is
higher than that of the first and second tier cities too.
On the other hand, the number of choices and quality
of the supplies available in the market cannot match
the customers’ needs of these cities and towns, leaving
the spending potential there for further exploration.
E-commerce is exactly the gateway for retailers to develop
such tremendous consumer potential.

le saunda holdings Itd. &8 ETHERR B R A A

AEEBERRTIER  BEEFMHE R
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Another strategic change will be focusing more on the
product development and design of our various brands.
After the outbreak, the Group ceased all production at
Shunde factory, the only production base of the Group, in
May 2020. We will resort to outsourcing of our production
to substitute all in-house production, so as to shift our
resources onto the product development and design. By
stepping up the efforts in cooperation with Italian designers,
we strive to deliver products with premium designs and
higher value in terms of price. With shoe-making experience
of more than four decades, as well as the understanding in
respect of the customers from the Hong Kong and China
markets, the Group has full confidence in our products. In
the long run, shifting from sales of self-made products to
outsourcing in full would provide the Group more flexibility
and room for improvement in terms of cost control and
inventory management.

The Group will also continue to reduce cost and to
enhance operational efficiency. Given the unfavorable
economic and market conditions, the sales performance
of physical stores has fell short of our expectation while
related rental costs saw no substantial reductions. We will
pay close attention to this situation and plan to reduce
the number of stores in certain regions in the coming
year. To further save up operating costs, no new stores
will be opened in the near future. Instead, we will focus
on improving the service of our premium stores and
launch new service when the epidemic is over in a view
to enhancing the shopping experience of our customers.
Furthermore the Group will make good use of digital
tools in data collection and analysis of (i) its sales in
different channels, (i) its supply chain and (iii) the VIPs’
personal and buying details, so as to attain the level of
management by information technology. Coupled with
our professional team, we are confident of enhancing our
operational efficiency further.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my
sincere gratitude to all shareholders and customers for
their longstanding support, and to all of our staff for
their dedicated contributions. | will continue to work with
my colleagues on the Board in seizing opportunities
and making innovative moves in the fast-changing
retail market, with the aim of delivering long-lasting and
satisfactory returns to shareholders.

James Ngai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 May 2020
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Operating Results

The Group is engaged in the design, development,
manufacturing and retailing of ladies’ and men’s footwear,
handbags and fashionable accessories in Mainland China,
Hong Kong and Macau under a vertically-integrated
business model. The major proprietary brands of the
Group include le saunda, le saunda MEN, LINEA ROSA,
PITTI DONNA and CNE, which aim to appeal to diversified
target customer groups with their distinctive product lines.

For the year under review, total revenue of the Group
decreased by 19.0% to RMB736,400,000 (2018/19:
RMB908,800,000). The consolidated gross profits
decreased by 19.9% year-on-year to RMB456,500,000
(2018/19: RMB570,200,000), and the overall gross
profit margin slightly decreased by 0.7 percentage
point to 62.0% compared to the previous year. For
the expense items, as compared to last year, the
selling and distribution expenses dropped by 23.3% to
RMB335,200,000 (2018/19: RMB436,700,000) while
the general and administrative expenses decreased by
4.8% to RMB153,200,000 (2018/19: RMB161,000,000).
Consequently, the consolidated loss attributable to
owners of the Company amounted to RMB30,500,000
(2018/19: loss of RMB28,000,000).

Bt % (5

REBEHR —BENEBRERALS
EHREARE  BERRPEEHRT A
B HEENUNRBEESKEERE FRE
HhEER - BEITXTEZEBLEmEBEREIle
saunda * le saunda MEN - LINEA ROSA -
PITTI DONNAKCNE * LA R ERHIE G -
BERRMNBRERE -

REBEFE SELBRRKZHBSRALT
#19.0% = A R ¥736,400,0007t(= &
—\/—7: AR#908,800,0007T) ° 424
EFE R A 19.9% F A R #456,500,000
T(ZZE—N /51 A R¥570,200,000
L) BEEMNEREFRBHMBKOTEE
DEE20% c HEAME - BEFHH
& HERDHEAZ R AP233%E AR
#335,200,000(ZE—)\/—HhE AR
#436,700,0007T) © — M RITH A X TR
EFREL48%E A K 153,200,000t (=
T—N\/—h"EF: AR¥161,000,0007T) °
BERARNAIERBEABLGEEBEEA
A R #30,500,0007t(ZZ—N\— N &
B A R #28,000,0007T) °
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B B i X s A

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED) B %% B R (48)
Operating Results (Continued) ReEHE(E)
2019/20 2018/19 Change
RMB (million) AR%(BERT) “E-h/=% —N/=Nh #
Revenue g 736.4 908.8 (19.0%)
Gross profit 7 456.5 570.2 (19.9%)
Gross profit margin ERX 62.0% 62.7% (0.7 percentage
point)
O7EES )
Consolidated loss attributable ﬁE Fﬁﬁ')\r 15 (30.5) (28.0)
to owners TEE 18
Final dividend (HK cents) ﬂiﬁﬂﬂﬁ 8 (A) - -
Final special dividend (HK cents) AR Al AR B G AL - 35.0
Annual dividend pay-out ratio 2FEREX N/A N/A
FrEHR T iEH
Profitability Analysis B R AR R 2

During the financial year 2019/20, under the impact
of the Sino-US trade conflicts, consumer sentiment
in mainland China was dampened, and coupled with
the outbreak of novel coronavirus (“COVID-19”) during
the fourth quarter, the Group’s total sales and same-
store sales both recorded negative year-on-year growth.
Due to the drop in sales and the increased provision
for slow moving inventory, the Group recorded a gross
profit of RMB456,500,000 (2018/19: RMB570,200,000),
representing a year-on-year decline of 19.9% and the
gross profit margin decreased to 62.0%, representing a
decrease of 0.7 percentage point as compared to last
year.

In response to the drop in sales, the Group took extra
efforts in controlling the selling and distribution expenses
to cut it by 23.3% year-on-year to RMB335,200,000
(2018/19: RMB436,700,000). The ratio of selling and
distribution expenses to total revenue thus improved by
2.6 percentage points to 45.5% (2018/19: 48.1%)).
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Profitability Analysis (continued)

General and administrative expenses were cut by
4.8% to RMB153,200,000 (2018/19: RMB161,000,000)
as compared to last year. During the year, the Group
continued to adopt suitable measures to control the
relevant cost items, though most of them are fixed in
nature. On the other hand, the impairment loss on assets
also increased for the year under review. As a result, this
cost item as a percentage of total revenue still increased
by 3.1 percentage points to 20.8% (2018/19: 17.7%).

Other income decreased by 50.2% year-on-year to
RMB7,600,000 (2018/19: RMB15,200,000). This item
was mainly represented by the incentives from local
government.

Other losses and gains recorded a net loss of
RMB1,600,000 (2018/19: net loss of RMB7,200,000). The
year-on-year improvement was mainly due to fair value
losses on investment properties of RMB6,900,000 was
booked in last year.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B B i X s A

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Profitability Analysis (continued)

Consolidated loss attributable to owners of the Company
was RMB30,500,000 (2018/19: loss of RMB28,000,000).
Basic losses per share was RMB4.32 cents (2018/19:
losses of RMB3.97 cents). After reviewing the Group’s
existing liquidity position and its future financial needs,
the Board did not recommend to declare a final dividend
(2018/19: no final dividend per ordinary share and final
special dividend of HK35.0 cents per ordinary share).

Income Tax Expense

During the year under review, income tax expenses
amounted to approximately RMB9,000,000 (2018/19:
RMB13,900,000), representing a decrease of 34.9% year-
on-year. All business entities of the Group in China are
subject to an income tax rate of 25%, while the profit tax
rate for corporations in Hong Kong remains at 16.5%.
Pursuant to the Enterprise Income Tax Law of China,
a withholding income tax of 5% to 10% shall be levied
on the dividends remitted by a Chinese subsidiary to its
foreign parent company starting from 1 January 2008.

Inventory Management

As at 29 February 2020, the Group’s inventory balance
was RMB273,100,000, representing a decrease of 16.1%
as compared to last year.
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A breakdown of inventory balance was as follows: FEEGIBEMAD T
As at As at
29 February 28 February Changes in Changes in
2020 2019 value %
R-ZB-2f R-T-IF
RMB (million) AR® (BB ZAZ+hB ZA=tNH 2o 295t
Raw materials and work-in-progress &3 £ % % 2/ % & 10.3 22.8 (12.5) (54.8%)
Finished goods B m 262.8 302.6 (39.8) (13.2%)
Total CE 273.1 325.4 (52.3) (16.1%)
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Inventory Management (continued)

Following the change in operation scale, the inventory of
raw materials and work-in-progress decreased by 54.8%
year-on-year. On the other hand, the inventory of finished
goods decreased by 13.2% year-on-year and the items of
current season and next season (both have stock age less
than 1 year) accounted for 63.6% of this ending inventory
(28 February 2019: 78.0%). This reflected the Group had
timely reduced the ordering of new products to mitigate
inventory pressure in response to market changes. Since
the decline in sales outweighed the change in inventory,
the inventory turnover days of finished goods increased
by 43 days to 369 days (28 February 2019: 326 days).

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group’s financial position remained very strong
and healthy. As at 29 February 2020, the Group’s cash
and bank balances amounted to RMB508,600,000
(28 February 2019: RMB590,600,000), representing a
decrease of 13.9% year-on-year. The quick ratio was 5.4
times (28 February 2019: 5.9 times). During the year, the
Group had not borrowed any bank loan (2018/2019: Nil)
and had no outstanding bank loan as at the fiscal year-
end date (28 February 2019: Nil). Forward contracts
will be used, if necessary, to hedge related debts and
bank borrowings arising from overseas purchases. The
Group did not enter into any forward contracts to hedge
its foreign exchange risks during the year. In addition,
working capital requirements for our business operations
in Mainland China will be financed by RMB loans
advanced from local banks when necessary.

During the financial year ended 29 February 2020, the
Group’s cash and bank balances were held in Hong
Kong dollars, US dollars and RMB respectively and were
deposited in leading banks with maturity of less than one
year.

With the Group’s steady cash inflow from its operations,
coupled with its existing cash and banking facilities, it has
adequate financial resources to fund its future needs.
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MANAGEMENT'’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B B i X s A

BUSINESS REVIEW
Overview

In 2019, the global economy was full of uncertainties. The
Sino-US trade war, which lasted for more than a year and
a half, had an impact on the economies of both countries.
The gross domestic product (GDP) of the PRC grew by
6.1% in 2019, which was the lowest growth rate since
1990. Total retail sales of consumer goods increased by
8.0%, representing a decrease of 1.0 percentage point
as compared to the corresponding period of last year,
indicating that the growth of retail sales has slowed down
in view of the economic conditions. During the year under
review, the Group’s retail revenue, as compared to last
year, decreased by 19.0% to RMB736,400,000 (2018/19:
RMB908,800,000).

In January 2020, the PRC and the United States finally
signed the first-phase trade agreement and the economic
development was expected to improve gradually. While
the good news was being taken into account by the
market, the outbreak of the COVID-19 spread rapidly all
over the world, causing a public health crisis as it evolved
into a global pandemic. Economic and financial experts
generally predicted that the impact of the pandemic on
the PRC’s and global economy would be far more severe
than that of SARS in 2003. Faced with negative economic
factors and challenges from the pandemic, sales of
physical stores were under great downward pressure.
The Group responded by taking various measures. As
the lockdown decree prevented people from going out,
the Group accelerated the development of e-commerce
business in order to tap new customer group and to
shift existing offline customers to online purchase. To
achieve better controls on inventory and operating costs,
the Group decided to cease the footwear production in
Shunde factory, the Group’s only production base, since
May 2020 (for details, please refer to note 35 Events
Occurring After the Reporting Date). The Group will
replace its footwear production completely with external
purchases while such adjustments will also enable our
team to focus on product development and design.
Last but not least, the Group will continue to employ
information technology to enhance operating efficiency.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Retail Network

Mainland China is the key market of the Group’s retail
business. At the end of the year under review, the Group
had a retail network comprised of 441 stores in Mainland
China, Hong Kong and Macau, representing a net
reduction of 85 stores compared to the corresponding
date of last year. The number of self-owned stores
dropped by 74, while the number of franchised stores
decreased by 11 during the year.

As at 29 February 2020, there were 331 core brand le
saunda stores, representing a net decrease of 60 stores
as compared to the end of last year. There were 52 LINEA
ROSA stores, the Group’s high-end fashionable brand,
representing a net decrease of 15 stores as compared to
the end of last year.

As at 29 February 2020, the breakdown of the Group’s
retail network was as follows:
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Self-owned Franchise Total
(Year-on-year (Year-on-year (Year-on-year
change) change) change)
BE Rarg @t
Number of Outlets by Region BHBEESNEHEE (BE28) (RERE) (REZH)
Mainland China B B 384 (-69) 51 (-11) 435 (-80)
¢ Northern, Northeastern & o JbEl - RILRAIL
Northwestern Regions 85 0) 44 (-8) 129 (-8)
o FEastern Region o RE 136 (-25) 2 0) 138 (-25)
o Central and Southwestern Regions ¢ A& Kk F /g 73 (-20) 5 (-3) 78 (-23)
¢ Southern Region o EH 0 (24 0 0) 90 (24
Hong Kong and Macau BEBREM 6 (-5) - - 6 (-5)
Total By 390 (74) 51 ((11) 441 (-85
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B B i X s A

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Retail Network (Continued)
Mainland China

Total retail sales of consumer goods increased by 8.0% in
2019, which was the lowest figure since the Asian financial
crisis in 1999 (6.8%). However, domestic consumption has
become the principal driving force for economic growth
for 6 consecutive years, contributing 57.8% to the ultimate
economic growth. Consumption upgrade was the main
growth engine of the domestic retail sector, driving the
continuous optimization of market consumption structure,
the continuous promotion of industry transformation
and upgrade, and the accelerated formation of new
consumption hotspots. This has resulted in a significant
increase in the demand for categories related to upgraded
consumption, while the growth of staple products has
been stable.

Up to the end of the third quarter of this financial year,
the total sales and same-store sales of the Group’s self-
owned retail business continued to improve year on year,
reflecting that the strategies of streamlining network of
physical stores and structural optimization in the past two
to three years have gradually yielded results. However, the
outbreak of COVID-19 severely hit the consumer market in
January and February 2020. As a result, the Group’s retail
sales in Mainland China in the year under review fell by
17.1% to RMB705,600,000 (2018/19: RMB850,900,000).
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Retail Network (Continued)
Mainland China (Continued)

After analyzing the changes in the business environment
throughout the year, we are of the view that the following
key factors affected our results in the year under review:
(i) the Group continued to optimize its physical stores
network and operating structure to improve its operating
efficiency, which greatly reduced the proportion of
inefficient stores and led to an increase in the same-store
sales before the outbreak of the epidemic; (ii) the varied
results of promoting experiential shopping and digital
transformation in department stores: some stores have
encountered bottlenecks while others have successfully
completed the transition. At the same time, the number
of completion of new shopping malls has decreased.
For traditional retail brands, especially those with a high
proportion of concessionary counters, they have to spend
a lot of resources striving to catch up with the changes of
all these new business and operating models; (iii) online
purchase continued to grow rapidly with a growth rate
higher than that of the overall retail sales of consumer
goods and absorbed the market share of physical stores;
and (iv) subject to the influences of the external market
and the worldwide economy, consumers have become
less impulsive and more rational in buying and will
demand much more from the retailers.

The Group’s operating strategies in the past two to three
years has gradually improved our performance. We will
endeavor to cut costs to improve our operating efficiency
continuously. To enhance the loyalty of our long-term
customers, we will use information technology tools to
collect and analyze their preferences. Benefiting from the
advantages of integrating our online and offline shops,
we can target different customer groups with different
channels. With all the above adopted, we hope our
business will rebound quickly and resume growth after
the epidemic subsides.
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MANAGEMENT'’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B B i X s A

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Retail Network (Continued)
Hong Kong and Macau

Hong Kong’s GDP recorded negative growth in the third
and fourth quarters of 2019 while its annualized GDP
for 2019 was forecast to fall by 1.2% in real terms as
compared with the previous year, which was the first
yearly decline since 2009, representing Hong Kong’s
economy has been in recession. During the year under
review, social events in Hong Kong continued for months.
From June to December 2019, areas in which our stores
operate were repeatedly affected by the social events,
with business hours shortened, foot traffic dropped
sharply, and consumers’ buying desire weakened
severely. Visitor arrivals recorded a decline of 39.1% in the
second half of the year, while the number of visitors for
the year dropped 14.2% on an annual basis. Retail sales
in the fourth quarter of 2019 was forecast to fall by 24.1%,
the largest quarterly decline on record. Total sales value
of the retail sector for the year was forecast to fall by
11.1% as compared with that of 2018. The data reflected
that the impact of local social events on consumption and
tourism-related industries was serious.

While the market was expecting the consumption would
be stimulated during the traditional peak season of the
Chinese New Year, there came the threat of the COVID-19
epidemic, worsening the already gloomy local market
and pushing Hong Kong’s retail industry into a “super-
cold winter”. Hit by the local social events, the outbreak
of COVID-19 pneumonia and the external economic
uncertainties, the Group’s sales in Hong Kong and
Macau decreased by 46.8% to RMB30,800,000 (2018/19:
RMB57,800,000) during the year under review. As at 29
February 2020, the number of stores in Hong Kong and
Macau was 6, representing a net decrease by 5. As the
shop rental in the market has not dropped accordingly,
the Group will further reduce the number of physical
stores as appropriate, and concentrate to improve
the service and operating efficiency of those potential
stores and to accelerate the development of local online
business.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Retail Network (Continued)
E-commerce Business

In 2019, the PRC online retail sales grew by 16.4% to
RMB10,632.4 billion, which accounted for 25.8% of the
total retail sales of consumer goods, representing a
further increase in the share contributed by online retail
sales. However, the advantage of large e-commerce
platforms, which entered the market the earliest, in
securing the e-commerce traffic flow has been weakened
and some of their market share has been taken up by
various operators of online social media. As a result, large
e-commerce operators have shifted to small-towns and
rural markets (third- and lower-tier cities) and invested
a lot in developing channels to explore the purchasing
power of such markets. The millennial generation, who
is keen on online purchase, likes to try something new
and thus has relatively low brand loyalty. All these greatly
increase the cost of attracting customers and selling
expenses. The outbreak of COVID-19 has also affected
the e-commerce market, imposing great restrictions on
logistics and transportation, but to a lesser degree than
those on physical stores. During the year under review,
e-commerce business revenue decreased by 16.8% year
on year. The Group will actively develop e-commerce
channels to merge with our offline operation in order to
reach out to young customers and gain access to new
markets that have not yet been developed.

Brand Building

Being a fashion footwear brand, le saunda likes to have
changes in various aspects and to incorporate new
elements into its shoes for the market. During the year
under review, le saunda collaborated with Cristiano Burani,
an ltalian designer, to introduce the 2020 Spring/Summer
and Fall/Winter capsule collection of footwear in Milan in
September 2019 and February 2020 respectively. It was
the first appearance of le saunda in the prestigious Milan
Fashion Week, one of the “Big Four fashion weeks” in
the world. The said collaboration collection demonstrates
the outfit style in modern workplace. To change the
monotonous perception, the collection added a touch of
casualness in formal footwear. Designer Cristiano Burani
was formerly the design director of Blumarine Jeans, and
is currently the creative director of Takisada Group in
Japan. He also worked for luxury brands such as Versace
and La Perla before.
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MANAGEMENT'’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B B i X s A

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Brand Building (Continued)

During the year under review, the Group also held
the 2019 Fall/Winter and 2020 Spring/Summer Media
Preview Day for le saunda and LINEA ROSA at two top-
class hotels, namely the Ritz-Carlton Shanghai, Pudong
and Hotel Eclat Beijing. In the events, the Group invited
a number of major media publishers, senior fashion
editors, celebrity stylists and fashion KOLs to preview the
products of the two brands in the new season. LINEA
ROSA further held the 2019 Fall/Winter Media Preview
Day and opened a new showroom in the prosperous Via
Filippo Turati in Milan, which attracted a number of foreign
media and fashion stylists.

In addition, the Group passed the assessment in
the “Quality Tourism Services” certification scheme
implemented by the Hong Kong Tourism Board and
was recognized as a certified retailer. The products and
services of participating retailers were assessed by three
main criteria, namely “transparent price; clear product
information; and superb customer service”, to attain the
certification of the scheme and the recognition proves to
be trustworthy for consumers. Moreover, the Group was
named again as one of the “2019 Top 100 E-commerce
Enterprises in Guangdong Province”. The annual
assessment of “Top 100 E-commerce Enterprises in
Guangdong Province” aims to acknowledge e-commerce
enterprises with considerable amount of assets, huge
social influence, promising development potential and a
strong sense of social responsibility.

Apart from organizing marketing and promotion functions
as well as participating in award-winning activities, the
Group also fulfilled its corporate social responsibilities
through collaboration with social service organizations
to, among others, take part in charitable activities and
environmental protection initiatives, offer youth internship
programs and participate in youth training projects.
During the year under review, the Group was honour to be
awarded the “10 Years Plus Caring Company Logo” and
the “Happy Company” award again. In future, the Group
will continue to strive for better results while proactively
participate in community affairs to contribute to the
society.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OUTLOOK AND LONG-TERM STRATEGIES OF THE
GROUP

At the beginning of 2020, the outbreak of COVID-19
materially impacted consumer sentiment. To meet
the consumption demands accumulated during the
outbreak, the Group will make use of the advantage
of “contactless” transaction of e-commerce, expedite
the development of e-commerce, proactively foster the
exchange of traffic between online and offline channels
and prepare to introduce new experiential shopping
services in our physical stores to satisfy the demands
accumulated during the outbreak, thereby improving our
sales performance. Meanwhile, the uncertainty in the
global economy and market still casts a shadow over
the consumer markets in Hong Kong and the PRC. The
Group will adopt a prudent and pragmatic approach that
there has no expansion plan to open new stores in the
short run. Instead, we will reduce the number of stores in
certain regions and continue to reduce cost to increase
our operational efficiency.

E-commerce business continues to play a key role in
the Group’s development. The new retail trend has
entered the stage of stable development. A number
of new competitors entered the e-commerce market
while some e-commerce operators also opened offline
physical stores. The e-commerce market has changed
from the orientation of increasing traffic flow to meeting
customer demand. To distinguish from numerous
operators in the market, it is necessary to meet the needs
and expectations of consumers. The Group will use
information technology tools to analyze customers’ buying
habits and preferences, and explore the potential needs
of the market by cooperating with suitable key opinion
leaders in promotion. In addition, building relationships
with VIPs is another key aspect of work, where we will
establish more personalized communication with VIPs
and provide them with more caring services. As usual, the
Group conducts business with multiple large e-commerce
platforms. In the following year, the Group will strengthen
the cooperation with e-commerce platforms and develop
low-tier markets as new growth engine.
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MANAGEMENT'’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B B i X s A

OUTLOOK AND LONG-TERM STRATEGIES OF THE
GROUP (CONTINUED)

In addition to working with e-commerce platforms and
social networking e-commerce companies, the Group also
actively searches for other partners such as department
stores. During the reform of the industry, some department
stores succeeded in the transformation to enhance their
key operational capacities by introducing experience-
based service to attract traffic, as well as implementing
digital management in various aspects such as supply
chain, marketing, payment and VIPs' database. With a
mutual goal to provide better service for customers, having
a strategic partnership with department stores, enable the
Group and these department stores to benefit from the
competitive edges of each other. In the future, shopping
will not only offer physical products, but also provide an
inspiring experience which is emotionally satisfying for the
customers.

Besides, the Group will continue to reduce cost and
improve operational efficiency through transition from
manufacturing and sales of our own products to relying
on purchase wholly from external subcontractors. The
Group will concentrate its resources onto product
development and design. By strengthening cooperation
with overseas ltalian designers, we will offer more stylish
products to boost the brand awareness in the market.
To keep abreast of new digital technology, the Group will
implement modern management practice to utilize human
resources in a more efficient manner.

The Group believes that we will strengthen our core
competitive advantages by means of ongoing implementation
of the above strategies and measures. We will strive for better
results and create stable returns for our Shareholders when
the market and economy recover.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 29 February 2020, bank deposit of RMB700,000 (28
February 2019: RMB700,000) has been pledged as rental
deposit for a subsidiary of the Company.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CORPORATE GUARANTEES

The Company has given corporate guarantees in favour of
banks for banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries
on letters of credit and bank loans to the extent of
RMB135,000,000 (28 February 2019: RMB212,900,000),
of which RMB780,000 (28 February 2019: RMB2,400,000)
was utilised as at 29 February 2020.

DIVIDEND

The Board has not recommended a final dividend for the
year ended 29 February 2020 (28 February 2019: no final
dividend per ordinary share and a final special dividend of
HK35.0 cents per ordinary share).

No interim dividend or interim special dividend was paid
for the six months ended 31 August 2019. (six months
ended 31 August 2018: no interim dividend and interim
special dividend per ordinary share).

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 29 February 2020, the Group had a staff force
of 2,394 people (28 February 2019: 2,958 people). Of
this number, 53 were based in Hong Kong and Macau
and 2,341 in Mainland China. The remuneration level of
the Group’s employees was in line with market trends
and commensurate to the levels of pay in the industry.
Remuneration of the Group’s employees comprised
basic salaries, bonuses and long-term incentives. Total
employee benefit expenses for the twelve months ended
29 February 2020, including Directors’ emoluments,
net pension contributions and the value of employee
services, amounted to RMB247,500,000 (2018/2019:
RMB301,300,000). The Group has all along organized
structured and diversified training programmes for staff
at different levels. Outside consultants will be invited to
broaden the contents of the training programmes.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Chui Kwan Ho, Jacky, aged 56, first joined the Group
in 1981 and was appointed as an Executive Director of
the Company in September 1992 and left the Group in
September 2010. She re-joined the Group in April 2016.
She is an Executive Director of the Company and acts
as a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Ms. Chui is responsible for the Group’s manufacturing
management of production facilities in Mainland
China, product design and development, e-commerce
business operations, marketing, human resources and
administration functions. She has over 34 years of
experience in retail and production management. Prior to
re-joining the Group, she was the chief executive officer
in a renowned handbag company in Mainland China and
was responsible for footwear products development,
manufacturing management and retail operations.

Liao Jian Yu, aged 50, joined the Group in March 2010
as the general manager of E ¥ F X (M M)BR A
&) (“Xindie"), which is and was at the material times a
66.7% owned subsidiary of the Group, and was mainly
responsible for business development and retail operation
in Zhejiang and Anhui provinces in Mainland China.
The remaining 33.3% of the equity interest in Xindie, of
which her spouse is a director and legal representative,
is and was at the material times owned by a company
owned by Ms. Liao and her spouse. She was appointed
as an Executive Director of the Company in March 2018
and is responsible for retail and franchise operation and
business development of the Group in Mainland China.
Prior to joining the Group, she was a franchisee of the
Group which operated in Zhejiang province. Ms. Liao has
over 22 years of experience in business development and
retail management in Mainland China and was given the
award “MM1i# g ¥ #5 %8 A” at Hangzhou Xiacheng District in
February 2018.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ERGTLARETHAR

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Li Wing Yeung, Peter, aged 61, joined the Group in
January 2000 and was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company in January 2020. He was previously the
Factory Manager of the former Shunde Production Plant
of the Group. He is currently the Technical Director of the
Group and is responsible for the development and quality
control of the Group’s product. He also acts as a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Li has over 14
years of experience in factory’s production management.
He is the son of Mr. Lee Tze Bun, Marces, a controlling
shareholder of the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

James Ngai, aged 57, joined the Group in March 2011.
He is a Non-Executive Director of the Company, the
Chairman of the board of the Company (the “Board”)
and a member of the remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination
committee (the “Nomination Committee”) of the Board.
He is responsible for the Group’s leadership and
management of the Board and the Group’s strategy.
Mr. Ngai graduated from University of Toronto with a
Bachelor’s degree in Economics. He is a Certified Public
Accountant (Practising) in Hong Kong and a member of
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is
also a fellow member of The Taxation Institute of Hong
Kong. He has over 30 years of experience in accounting,
auditing and taxation matters. Mr. Ngai is a director of
Stable Gain Holdings Limited (“Stable Gain”) which has
an interest in the shares of the Company which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”). He is also an independent
non-executive director of Max Sight Group Holdings
Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Lam Siu Lun, Simon, aged 71, joined the Group in
January 2006. He is an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company, the chairman of the audit
committee (the “Audit Committee”) of the Board and
the Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee. Mr. Lam graduated from The
University of Hong Kong in 1973. After graduation, he
worked at KPMG London and Hong Kong and obtained
his qualification as a chartered accountant and certified
public accountant from The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants respectively. Mr.
Lam has been a practising accountant for over 30 years
and is the proprietor of Messrs. S. L. Lam & Company.
He has served as a member of Insider Dealing Tribunal on
a number of occasions. Mr. Lam is also an independent
non-executive director of Lifestyle International
Holdings Limited, the shares of which are listed on the
Stock Exchange. He was previously an independent
non-executive director of Sansheng Holdings (Group) Co.
Ltd. (formerly known as Lifestyle Properties Development
Limited), the shares of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange.

Leung Wai Ki, George, aged 62, joined the Group in
September 2004. He is an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company and a member of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee. Mr. Leung has over 32 years of
experience in accounting, financial management, auditing
and receivership. He is a director and financial controller
of a real estate development company in Hong Kong.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ERGTLARETHAR

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

Hui Chi Kwan, aged 71, joined the Group in November
2007. He is an Independent Non-Executive Director of the
Company, the chairman of the Nomination Committee and
a member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee. Mr. Hui graduated from The University of
Hong Kong with a Bachelor’s degree in Laws in 1980 and
has been a solicitor practicing in Hong Kong since 1983.
Before joining the Group, Mr. Hui was a partner of a law
firm in Hong Kong. He retired from the partnership in
2007 and remained as a consultant of the said law firm.
Mr. Hui is also an independent non-executive director of
Max Sight Group Holdings Limited, the shares of which
are listed on the Stock Exchange.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Yuen Chee Wing, aged 54, joined the Group in August
2010. He is the Chief Financial Officer and Company
Secretary of the Company and is responsible for the
Group’s financial control and accounting, treasury,
tax, legal and company secretarial matters. Mr. Yuen
graduated from City University of Hong Kong with a
Bachelor’'s degree in Business, The Chinese University
of Hong Kong with a Master’'s degree in Business
Administration, and Manchester Metropolitan University
with a Bachelor’s degree in Laws. He is a certified public
accountant of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Yuen has over 25 years of experience in
audit and accounting. Prior to joining the Group, he was
the financial controller of a machinery manufacturer listed
on the Stock Exchange.

Li Ying Ying, aged 51, joined the Group in September
1997. She is the General Manager (Southern China) of the
Group and is responsible for the Group’s retail business
operations in the southern region of Mainland China.
Ms. Li has over 23 years of retail experience in Mainland
China.

Xiao Kun Min, aged 45, joined the Group in March
2004. She is the General Manager (Southwestern China)
of the Group and is responsible for the Group’s retail
business operations in southwestern region of Mainland
China. Ms. Xiao has over 24 years of retail experience in
Mainland China.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Le Saunda Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) is committed
to achieving and maintaining the highest standard of
corporate governance. The Board and its management
understand that it is their responsibility to establish a
good corporate management system and practice and
strictly comply with the principles of independence,
accountability, responsibility and impartiality so as to
improve the operation transparency of the Company,
protect the interests of shareholders (the “Shareholders”)
of the Company and create value for the Shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

During the year, the Company has complied with the code
provisions of, and applied the principles in, the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), except for the following:

() Code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code stipulates,
among others, that generally independent
non-executive Directors and other non-executive
Directors should also attend general meetings. Due
to other business engagement, Mr. Lee Tze Bun,
Marces, a Non-Executive Director as he then was
(who resigned with effect from 16 October 2019) was
unable to attend the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 8 July 2019.

(i)  Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that
the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual. Following the resignation of Mr.
Cheng Wang, Gary as Chief Executive Officer and
Executive Director with effect from 16 October 2019,
the position of Chief Executive Officer is currently
vacant. The Company is in the process of identifying
a suitable candidate to fill the position of Chief
Executive Officer and the role and responsibility of
the Chief Executive Officer are being performed by
other Executive Directors of the Company for the
time being.

The Board will continue to enhance the Group’s corporate
governance practices appropriate to the conduct and
growth of the Group’s business and to review such
practices from time to time to ensure that they comply
with statutory and professional standards and align with
the latest developments.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SRR W

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is committed to providing effective and
responsible leadership for the Company. The Directors,
individually and collectively, must act in good faith in the
best interests of the Company and its shareholders.

Board Composition

During the year ended 29 February 2020, the Board
comprised two to three executive Directors, one to
two non-executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors. The Board has established three
Board committees, namely the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”), remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”), to oversee different areas of the Company’s
affairs. The composition of the Board and the Board
committees are given below and their respective
responsibilities and work performed during the year are
discussed elsewhere in this report.

During the year ended 29 February 2020 and up to the
date of this report, the Board comprises the following
members:

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheng Wang, Gary (Chief Executive Officer)
(resigned with effect from 16 October 2019)
Ms. Chui Kwan Ho, Jacky
Ms. Liao Jian Yu
Mr. Li Wing Yeung, Peter
(appointed with effect from 22 January 2020)

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. James Ngai (Chairman)
Mr. Lee Tze Bun, Marces
(resigned with effect from 16 October 2019)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon
Mr. Leung Wai Ki, George
Mr. Hui Chi Kwan
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Board Composition (Continued)

There is no relationship (including financial, business,
family or other material relationship) among members of
the Board, except that:

(@)

Mr. James Ngai is a director of an accounting firm
which provides advisory and audit services to private
companies owned by Mr. Lee Tze Bun, Marces;

Both Mr. Lee Tze Bun, Marces and Mr. James
Ngai are the directors of Stable Gain Holdings
Limited (“Stable Gain”), a controlling shareholder
of the Company. The entire issued share capital of
Stable Gain was registered in the name of Stable
Profit Holdings Limited (“Stable Profit”), a company
wholly-owned by HSBC International Trustee
Limited (“HSBC Trustee”) which acted as trustee of
Lee Tze Bun Family Trust (the “LTB Family Trust”),
a discretionary trust, of which Mr. Lee Tze Bun,
Marces was the founder and an eligible beneficiary
thereunder. Mr. Lee Tze Bun, Marces was also the
sole director of Stable Profit;

Mr. Li Wing Yeung, Peter, the son of Mr. Lee Tze Bun,
Marces, is a trustee of The Lee Keung Charitable
Foundation (“Charitable Foundation”), of which Mr.
Lee Tze Bun, Marces is the founder; and

Both Mr. James Ngai and Mr. Hui Chi Kwan are
independent non-executive directors of Max Sight
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 8483).

The biographical details of each Director are set out
in the section headed “Board of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 33 to 36 of this report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Board Composition (Continued)

Each Director possesses the necessary expertise and
experience and provides checks and balances for
safeguarding the interests of the Group and the Shareholders
as a whole. During the year, the Independent Non-Executive
Directors provided the Group with a wide range of expertise
and experience. Their active participation in the Board and
committee meetings brought independent judgment on
issues relating to the Group’s strategy, performance and
management process, taking into account the interests of all
Shareholders.

During the year and up to the date of this report, the
Company has three Independent Non-Executive Directors
representing not less than one-third of the Board. Mr. Lam
Siu Lun, Simon, one of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors, has the appropriate professional qualifications,
or accounting or related financial management expertise
as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. The
Company has received from each of the Independent
Non-Executive Directors a written confirmation of
his independence and has satisfied itself of such
independence in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Whilst
Mr. James Ngai and Mr. Hui Chi Kwan are directors of
both the Company and Max Sight Group Holdings Limited
(stock code: 8483) and thus hold cross-directorships, the
Board determines that Mr. Hui Chi Kwan is nevertheless
independent with respect to his directorship at the
Company since Mr. James Ngai and Mr. Hui Chi Kwan
hold only non-executive roles at both companies and have
no interest in both companies as disclosed under Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Board Meetings

The Board conducts meetings on a regular basis and on
an ad hoc basis of at least four times a year to discuss
the overall strategy as well as the operational and financial
performance of the Group, and to review and approve
the Group’s annual and interim results. The Board
members are served with notices of at least 14 days and
provided with all agendas and adequate information for
their review at least 3 days before the meetings. After
the meetings, draft minutes are circulated to all Directors
for comments before confirmation and sign-off. Minutes
of board meetings and meetings of board committees
are kept by the company secretary of the Company (the
“Company Secretary”) and are available for inspection by
any Director at any reasonable time on reasonable notice.
Each Director is entitled to seek independent professional
advice under appropriate circumstances at the expense of
the Company. During the year, the Board held 8 physical
meetings and 3 written resolutions were signed and
passed by all Directors. The attendance records of each
Director at the Board meetings are set out on page 55 of
this report.

Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board is accountable to the Shareholders for the
development of the Group with the goal of maximizing
Shareholders’ value in the long run. The Board also takes
the responsibility for the overall strategies and policies
of the Group, approves and monitors the strategic
plans, investment and funding decisions, and reviews
the Group’s financial and operational performance and
internal controls. The Group’s day-to-day operations and
administration are overseen by the Executive Directors
and the management.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Responsibilities and Delegation (continued)

The Board is responsible for setting the strategic
direction and policies of the Group and supervising the
management of the Company. Some functions including
the monitoring and approval of material transactions,
matters involving a conflict of interest for a substantial
Shareholder or Director of the Company, the approval
of interim and annual results, declaration of interim
dividends and proposal of final dividends and other
disclosures to the public or regulators are reserved by
the Board for consideration and approval. Matters not
specifically reserved to the Board and necessary for the
daily management and operation of the Company are
delegated to the Executive Directors and the management
of the Company.

Directors’ Training

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The Company would provide a
comprehensive induction package covering the summary
of the operations and business, constitutional documents,
the latest published financial reports of the Company,
“A Guide on Directors’ Duties” issued by the Companies
Registry of Hong Kong and the Guidelines for Directors
and the Guide for Independent Non-Executive Directors
published by the Hong Kong Institute of Directors to
each newly appointed Director to ensure that he/she is
sufficiently aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The Company Secretary reports from time to time the
latest changes and development of the Listing Rules,
corporate governance practices and other regulatory
regime to the Directors with written materials, as well as
organizing seminars on the professional knowledge and
latest development of regulatory requirements related to
directors’ duties and responsibilities.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Directors’ Training (Continued)

During the year and up to the date of this report, all
Directors pursued continuous professional development
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and relevant details are set out below: Flaign N
Types of training

Name of Directors EEHS = 2 38 A
Executive Directors: HITEE:
Mr. Cheng Wang, Gary (resigned with effect from B8R4 (B —FE— N F

16 October 2019) +A 1N HEFFIE) A, B
Ms. Chui Kwan Ho, Jacky TR Z L B
Ms. Liao Jian Yu B2y 2+ B
Mr. Li Wing Yeung, Peter (appointed with effect TXRBAEEBH=-F=-FF

from 22 January 2020) —AZ1ZHEEZT) A, B
Non-Executive Directors: FHITEE:
Mr. James Ngai 152 76 & 5 & A, B
Mr. Lee Tze Bun, Marces (resigned with effect TFIWEEHE=ZF—NF

from 16 October 2019) +HA+NHEFEE) B
Independent Non-Executive Directors: BYFHITES:
Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon MROK B o £ A B
Mr. Leung Wai Ki, George REELESE B
Mr. Hui Chi Kwan HNE b A, B
Remarks: FHE -

A — Attending seminars/conferences/forums
B — Reading journals/updates/articles/materials

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance coverage for indemnifying the
Directors and officers of the Company against costs,
charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred arising

out of the corporate activities.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Board is responsible for selecting and appointing
individuals with integrity, experience and caliber to act as
Directors. The Board reviews the profiles of the candidates
and seeks recommendations from the Nomination
Committee on the appointment and re-election of the
Directors.

According to bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-Laws”),
each Director so appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy shall hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting (the "AGM”) of the Company in
case of an addition to the Board and shall then be eligible
for re-election at such meeting. Moreover, one-third of
the Directors for the time being, (or, if their number is not
a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not
less than one-third), shall retire from office by rotation,
provided that every Director (including those appointed for
a specific term) shall retire from office by rotation no later
than the third AGM after he was last elected or re-elected.
The rotating Directors who are subject to retirement and
re-election at the forthcoming AGM are set out on page
72 of this report.

All Non-Executive Directors (including the Independent
Non-Executive Directors) of the Company were appointed
for a specific term of 2 years but subject to the relevant
provisions of the Bye-Laws or any other applicable laws
whereby the Directors shall vacate or retire from their
office but be eligible for re-election.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

In order to maintain a balance of power and authority, the
roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company are segregated and assumed by separate
individuals who have no relationship with each other.
During the year, Mr. James Ngai, being the Chairman of
the Board, is responsible for overseeing the function of the
Board and formulating overall strategies and policies of
the Company and ensuring that all Directors are properly
briefed on issues arising at the Board meetings and
receive adequate information, which must be complete
and reliable, in a timely manner. Before his resignation
effective on 16 October 2019, Mr. Cheng Wang, Gary,
being the Chief Executive Officer as he then was, was
responsible for the implementation of the Company’s
overall strategies and coordination of overall business
operation. Since his resignation and whilst the Company
is in search of a suitable candidate to assume the role
as Chief Executive Officer, the role and responsibility of
the Chief Executive Officer are being performed by other
Executive Directors of the Company in the meantime. The
day-to-day operations and administration of the Group are
delegated to the Executive Directors and the management
responsible for different aspects of the business.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has established three board committees,
namely the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee, to oversee particular
aspects of the Company’s affairs and to assist in the
execution of the Board’s responsibilities. All board
committees have clear and specific written terms of
reference, report their work to the Board after each meeting
and are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their respective duties. Copies of minutes of all meetings
and written resolutions passed at the board committees
are kept by the Company Secretary.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established with written
terms of reference (as amended) since 1999. As at 29
February 2020 and up to the date of this report, the Audit
Committee comprises three Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon (chairman of
the Audit Committee), Mr. Leung Wai Ki, George and
Mr. Hui Chi Kwan. Mr. Lam has appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise as required under Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules.

The primary functions and duties of the Audit Committee
are to recommend the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of the external auditor, oversee the integrity of
financial information of the Company and its disclosure,
provide independent review of the effectiveness of the
financial controls, risk management and internal control
systems of the Group, and review the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group. The full
terms of reference of the Audit Committee are posted on
the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

During the year, the Audit Committee held 5 physical
meetings with the external auditor, internal auditor and
independent consultants. The Chairman of the Board,
the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer
were invited to attend the meetings. The attendance
records of each member of the Audit Committee are
set out on page 55 of this report. A summary of work
performed by the Audit Committee during the year was as
follows:

() review of the audit plan, terms of engagement,
independence and qualification of the external auditor
and the remuneration paid to the external auditor;

(i) review of the financial information of the Group
including the annual and interim financial statements
and related documents before submission to the
Board for approval;

(iii)  review of the management letters and reports issued
by the external auditor;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Audit Committee (Continued)

(iv) review of accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and the potential impacts of
the change in accounting standards to the Group’s
financial statements;

(v) review of the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group; and

(vi) review of the internal audit reports prepared by
an independent consulting firm in respect of the
effectiveness of the financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management of the
Group twice a year.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established with
written terms of reference (as amended) since 2005. As
at 29 February 2020 and up to the date of this report, the
Remuneration Committee comprises three Independent
Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon
(chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Leung Wai
Ki, George and Mr. Hui Chi Kwan, and one Non-Executive
Director, namely Mr. James Ngai.

The primary functions and duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to make recommendation to the Board
on the Company’s policy and structure for remuneration
of all Directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy, determine the terms
of specific remuneration package of the Executive
Directors and senior management, and review and
approve the performance-based remuneration proposals
with reference to the corporate goals and objectives
resolved by the Board from time to time. The full terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee are posted on
the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Remuneration Committee (Continued)

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held 1
physical meeting and 1 written resolution was signed
and passed by all members of the Remuneration
Committee. The attendance records of each member of
the Remuneration Committee are set out on page 55 of
this report. In the meeting, the Remuneration Committee
(i) reviewed the remuneration of the Executive Directors
and senior management of the Company; (i) approved
performance-based remuneration with reference to the
corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board
and/or the senior management from time to time; and (iii)
ensured that no Director or senior management or any of
his/her associates was involved in deciding his/her own
remuneration. Details of the emoluments for Directors,
chief executive and five highest paid individuals, and
senior management’s remuneration by band during the
year are set out in notes 10 and 11 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established with written
terms of reference (as amended) since 19 March 2012.
As at 29 February 2020 and up to the date of this report,
the Nomination Committee comprises three Independent
Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Hui Chi Kwan
(chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Lam Siu
Lun, Simon and Mr. Leung Wai Ki, George, and one
Non-Executive Director, namely Mr. James Ngai.

The primary functions and duties of the Nomination
Committee are to review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategies, and
identify individuals suitably qualified to become Directors
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships. The
full terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
posted on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Nomination Committee (Continued)

During the year, the Nomination Committee held 1
physical meeting and 1 written resolution was signed and
passed by all members of the Nomination Committee. The
attendance records of each member of the Nomination
Committee are set out on page 55 of this report. In the
meeting, the Nomination Committee (i) reviewed the
structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board; (i) assessed
the independence of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors; (iii) made recommendation to the Board on
the proposed re-election of the retiring Directors at the
forthcoming annual general meeting; and (iv) reviewed the
diversity of the Board’s composition.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted a board diversity policy with the aim
of achieving diversity on the Company’s board of directors
in August 2013. The Company recognizes the benefits of
having a diverse Board, and sees diversity of perspectives
at the Board level as essential in achieving a sustainable
and balanced development. In designing the Board’s
composition, Board diversity has been considered from
a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age, educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge, industry experience and expertise.
All Board appointments are based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against a variety of criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board. The Nomination Committee will review this policy,
as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of this policy.
The Nomination Committee will discuss any revisions that
may be required, and recommend any such revisions to
the Board of Directors for examination and approval.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Nomination Committee (Continued)
Board Diversity Policy (Continueq)

The Board contains individuals who have diverse
educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge, industry experience and expertise. Coming
from diverse business and professional backgrounds,
the Non-Executive Directors actively bring their valuable
experience to the Board for promoting the best interests
of the Company and the Shareholders. On the other
hand, the Independent Non-Executive Directors contribute
to ensuring that the interests of all Shareholders of the
Company are taken into account by the Board and that
relevant issues are subject to objective and dispassionate
consideration by the Board. The biographical details of
the Directors are set out on pages 33 to 36 of this report.
In implementing the board diversity policy, the Board aims
to have a balanced composition in each of the relevant
areas, but recognizing at the same time that all Board
appointments must be based on meritocracy having
regard to the best interests of the Company and the
Shareholders.

Nomination Policy

In December 2018, the Board adopted a nomination
policy (the “Nomination Policy”) with the aim to set out
the criteria and procedures for the Nomination Committee
considering candidates to be appointed or re-appointed
as the Directors.

(1) The factors listed below will be considered in
assessing the suitability of a candidate:

(@) age, skills, knowledge, experience, expertise,
professional and educational qualifications,
background and other personal qualities of the
candidate;

(b) effect on the Board’s composition and diversity;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Nomination Committee (Continued)
Nomination Policy (Continued)

(1) The factors listed below will be considered in
assessing the suitability of a candidate: (Continued)

(¢ commitment of the candidate to devote
sufficient time to effectively discharge his/her
duties as a member of the Board and/or Board
committee(s) of the Company. In this regard,
the number and nature of offices held by the
candidate in public companies or organizations,
and other executive appointments or significant
commitments will be considered;

(d) scrutinizing the Company’s performance
in achieving agreed corporate goals and
objectives, and monitoring the reporting of
performance;

(e) independence of the candidate in accordance
with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules subject to its
amendments from time to time;

(f)  potential/actual conflicts of interest that may
arise if the candidate is selected;

(9) in the case of a proposed re-appointment of an
independent non-executive Director, the number
of years he/she has already served;

(hy conforming to any requirement, direction
and regulation that may from time to time be
prescribed by the Board or contained in the
constitutional documents of the Company or
imposed by legislation or the Listing Rules,
where appropriate; and

()  other factors considered to be relevant by the
Nomination Committee on a case by case basis.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Nomination Committee (Continued)

Nomination Policy (Continued)

(2) Process of appointment of a new director:

(@)

le saunda holdings Itd.

the Nomination Committee and/or the Board
may select candidates for directorship from
various channels, including but not limited
to internal promotion, re-designation, referral
by other members of the management and
external recruitment agents, and should, upon
receipt of the proposal on appointment of a new
director and the biographical information (or
relevant details) of the candidate, evaluate such
candidate based on the criteria as set out above
to determine whether such candidate is qualified
for directorship. If an independent non-executive
Director is to be appointed, the Nomination
Committee and/or the Board will also assess
and consider whether the candidate can satisfy
the independence requirements as set out in the
Listing Rules;

If the process yields one or more desirable
candidates, the Nomination Committee and/
or the Board should rank them by order of
preference based on the needs of the Company
and reference check of each candidate (where
applicable);

The Nomination Committee should then
recommend to the Board to appoint the
appropriate candidate for directorship, as
applicable; and

For any person that is nominated by a
shareholder for election as a director at
the general meeting of the Company, the
Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
evaluate such candidate based on the criteria
as set out above to determine whether such
candidate is qualified for directorship.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Nomination Committee (Continued)

Nomination Policy (Continued)

(3)

Re-election of Director at General Meeting:

(@)

The Nomination Committee and/or the
Board should review the overall contribution
and service to the Company of the retiring
Director and his/her level of participation and
performance on the Board;

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board
should also review and determine whether the
retiring Director continues to meet the criteria as
set out above. If an independent non-executive
Director is subject to the re-election, the
Nomination Committee and/or the Board
will also assess and consider whether the
independent non-executive Director will continue
to satisfy the independence requirements as set
out in the Listing Rules; and

The Nomination Committee and/or the
Board should then make recommendation to
shareholders of the Company in respect of the
proposed re-election of Director at the general
meeting.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Nomination Committee (Continued)
Nomination Policy (Continued)

Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect or
re-elect a candidate as Director at the general meeting,
the relevant information of the candidate will be disclosed
in the circular to shareholders of the Company and/or
explanatory statement accompanying the notice of the
relevant general meeting in accordance with the Listing
Rules and/or applicable laws and regulations.

The following graph provides an analysis on the
composition of the Board as at the date of this report:

Number of Directors

E=2H

8

»

@]

N

EDs
WE

y Female

oy

Designation Gender
iz MR
Remarks:
EDs — Executive Directors

NEDs — Non-Executive Directors
INEDs — Independent Non-Executive Directors
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)

Attendance Records

The individual attendance records of each Director at
the physical meetings of the Board, Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee and
the annual general meeting of the Company (“2019 AGM”)
during the year ended 29 February 2020 are set out
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below:
Number of physical meetings attended/held during his/her tenure
FtE/ REFHRETZ 22
Audit  Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee 2019 AGM
ZR-NE
Eze B ZEe §MzEe R2z88 RRAEAE
Executive Directors: YnES:
Mr. Cheng Wang, Gary gnkk 5/5 33 N/A N/A il
(resjgned with effect (E-F-1% AR AER
fiom 16 October 2019) FATABEEE)
Ms. Chui Kwan Ho, Jacky RENRL 88 N/A N/A N/A 1/1
TR TER TER
Ms. Liao Jian Yu BERRL 78 N/A N/A N/A 11
TER TEE Nk
Mr. Li Wing Yeung, Peter Yy 0 N/A N/A N/A N/A
(anpointed with effect (B-F-%f AER AER AER AER
fiom 22 January 2020) —A-f-HEEEH)
Non-Executive Directors:  F#7E%:
Mr. James Ngai FEREE 8/8 5/5 il i il
Mr, Lee Tze Bun, Marces FFWLE 0/ N/A N/A N/A 0/
(resigned with effect (E-F-N% TiER TER TER
fiom 16 October 2019) FAT A HEFE)
Independent Non-Executive BUF#HTEE:
Directors:
Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon WAB L& 8/8 5/5 1 11 11
Mr. Leung Wai Ki, George PEERE 8/8 5/5 1 il il
Mr. Hui Chi Kwan FREEE 88 5/5 1 il 11
Notes: B it -
1. Mr. Cheng Wang, Gary attended the Audit Committee meetings as an 1. BREEUZBEAOEEEZEZEESE S °
invitee.
2. Mr. James Ngai attended the Audit Committee meetings as an invitee. 2. MESEEUZBESGHEEEZZETGH -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Company is committed to enhancing its corporate
governance practices relevant to the model and growth of
its business. In order to achieve a right balance between
governance and performance, the Board is responsible for
ensuring the application of the principles in the CG Code
and introducing and proposing other relevant principles
concerning corporate governance so as to enhance the
standard of corporate governance of the Company. The
Board is primarily responsible for performing the following
corporate governance functions adopted with written
terms of reference on 19 March 2012:

()  to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management of the Group;

(i)  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees of the Group and the Directors; and

(v) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the corporate governance
report.

The details of the corporate governance functions
reviewed and performed by the Board during the year are
further disclosed and explained elsewhere in this report.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 29 February 2020, in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) and the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Listing Rules.
In preparing the financial statements, the Directors have
adopted HKFRSs and suitable accounting policies and
applied them consistently, made judgments and estimates
that are prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared the
financial statements on a going concern basis. The Board
is not aware of any material uncertainties relating to any
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern
in the course of preparing and reviewing the financial
statements for the year under review.

The reporting responsibilities of the external auditor of the
Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers, on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group are set out in the
section headed “Independent Auditor's Report” on pages
94 to 106 of this report.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the
Audit Committee on the re-appointment of the external
auditor of the Company.

Auditor’s Remuneration

For the year ended 29 February 2020, the fees in respect
of audit and non-audit services (the non-audit services
comprised of agreed upon procedures and tax advisory
services only) provided to the Group by the external
auditor of the Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers,
amounted to approximately HK$2,050,000 (2018/19:
HK$2,250,000) and HK$254,000 (2018/19: HK$488,000)
respectively. The Audit Committee was of the view that
the non-audit services provided by the external auditor
of the Company did not impair its independence and
objectivity.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Yuen Chee Wing (“Mr. Yuen”) was appointed as the
Company Secretary of the Company on 1 January 2019.
Mr. Yuen is a certified public accountant of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. In his capacity
as the Company Secretary, Mr. Yuen reports to the Board
and is responsible for advising the Board on corporate
governance matters. In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules, Mr. Yuen took not less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training during the year.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
as its own code of conduct (the “Code of Conduct”)
regarding securities transactions by the Directors since
4 QOctober 2005. The terms of the Code of Conduct are
no less exacting than the required standard in the Model
Code, and the Code of Conduct applies to all the relevant
persons as defined in the Code of Conduct, including the
Directors, any employee of the Company, or a director
or employee of a subsidiary or holding company of the
Company, who, by reason of such office or employment,
are likely to be in possession of unpublished price
sensitive information in relation to the Company or its
securities.

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Code of
Conduct and the required standard set out in the Model
Code during the year ended 29 February 2020 and up to
the date of this report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has developed the Group’s internal control, risk
assessment and management systems and has overall
responsibility for reviewing and maintaining adequate and
effective risk management and internal control systems to
safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and the assets
of the Group. It reviews and evaluates the effectiveness
of the said systems at least annually (and has done so
during the year) to ensure the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions.

Risk Management and Internal Control Systems

The Company’s risk management and internal control
systems are designed to manage and mitigate risks,
rather than eliminate risks, of failure to achieve the
business objectives of the Company, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. We have employed a bottom-up
approach for identification, assessment and mitigation of
risk at all business unit levels and across functional areas.

Main Features of Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The key elements of the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems include the establishment of a risk
register to keep track of and document identified risks, the
assessment and evaluation of risks, the development and
continuous updating of responsive procedures, and the
ongoing testing of internal control procedures to ensure
their effectiveness.

An ongoing risk management approach is adopted by the
Company for identifying and assessing the key inherent
risks that affect the achievements of its objectives. A risk
matrix is adopted to determine risk rating (L = low risk, M
= medium risk, H = high risk) after evaluation of the risk
by the likelihood and the impact of the risk event. The risk
ratings reflect the level of attention of the management
and the effort of risk treatment required.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(CONTINUED)

Process used to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks

During the process of risk assessment, each of the risk
owners of departments and major subsidiaries is required
to capture and identify the key inherent risks that affect
the achievement of its objectives. Each inherent risk
is evaluated according to the risk matrix. After taking
into consideration of the risk response, such as control
measures in place to mitigate the risk, the residual risk
of each inherent risk is evaluated again. The risk register
with the risk responses and residual risks is reported to
the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee evaluates the
effectiveness of the systems and reports to the Board.
The highest category of residual risks is subject to the
Board’s oversight.

Process used to review the effectiveness of the
Risk Management and Internal Control Systems
and to resolve material internal control defects

In view of the Company’s business and scale of operations,
the Group set up an internal audit department (the “Internal
Auditor”) in August 2017 with an aim to continuously
improve the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control of the Group. The Internal Auditor is required to
prepare a risk oriented annual audit plan, and on the basis
of risk assessment results, determine the work focus of
internal audit that is in line with the organization objective.
The annual audit plan should be subject to approval by the
Audit Committee.

Further, the Board has engaged an independent consulting
firm (the “Consultant”) to conduct a thorough review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems for the period from 1 March 2019 to 29
February 2020 in accordance with the requirements under
Code Provision C.2 of the CG Code, according to the scope
of review agreed and approved by the Audit Committee.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(CONTINUED)

Process used to review the effectiveness of the
Risk Management and Internal Control Systems
and to resolve material internal control defects
(Continued)

After conducting a review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group
during the year, the Internal Auditor and the Consultant
reported to the Audit Committee and the Audit Committee
was satisfied that there had been no major deficiency
noted in the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems after implementation of the recommendations
of the Internal Auditor and the Consultant with regard
to internal control defects. The Audit Committee
reviews annually, and has reviewed during the year, the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial
reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures and
has access to information necessary to fulfil its duties
and responsibilities with respect to risk assessment
and risk management. Based on the foregoing review,
the Audit Committee and the Board considered the risk
management and internal control systems to be effective
and adequate during the year.

Procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information

The Board has established a policy on the procedures
and internal controls for the handling and dissemination
of inside information. The policy stipulates the duty
and responsibility of inside information announcement,
restriction on sharing non-public information, handling of
rumours, unintentional selective disclosure, exemption
and waiver to the disclosure of inside information, and
also compliance and reporting procedures. Every member
of the senior management of the Company must take all
reasonable measures to ensure that proper safeguards
exist to prevent a breach of a disclosure requirement in
relation to the Company from time to time. They must
promptly bring any possible leakage or divulgence of
inside information to the attention of the Chief Financial
Officer, who will notify the Board accordingly for taking the
appropriate action promptly. For any material violation of
this policy, the Board will decide, or designate appropriate
persons to decide, on a course of actions for rectifying
the problem and avoiding recurrence.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company intends to create long term value for the
Shareholders through maintaining a balance between
dividend distribution, preserving adequate liquidity and
reserve to meet its working capital requirements and
capturing future growth opportunities. The Board has
sole discretion to declare and distribute dividends to
the Shareholders subject to any restrictions under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
Memorandum of Association and the Bye-Laws of the
Company and any other applicable laws, rules and
regulations.

The Board adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”) to provide guidance on whether to propose a
dividend and to guide the Board to consider, inter alia, the
following factors in determining the dividend amount:

° the Group’s actual earnings performance;

o retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company and each of the subsidiaries of the Group;

e the Group’s expected working capital requirements,
capital expenditure requirements and future
expansion plans;

e the Group’s liquidity position;

e general economic conditions, business cycle of the
Group’s business and internal or external factors that
may have an impact on the business, financial results
and position of the Company; and

° other factors that the Board may deem appropriate
and relevant.

The Board will review the Dividend Policy from time to
time and may exercise its sole and absolute discretion to
update, amend and/or modify the Dividend Policy at any
time as it deems fit and necessary. There is no assurance
that dividends will be paid in any particular amount for
any given period. The Dividend Policy shall in no way
constitute a legally binding commitment by the Company
that any dividend will be paid in any particular amount
and/or in no way obligate the Company to declare a
dividend at any time or from time to time.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company treats all Shareholders equally and ensures
that the Shareholders’ rights are protected and every
convenience is provided to them where practicable to
enable the exercise of their rights.

1. Procedures for convening a special general
meeting (“SGM”)

Pursuant to Bye-Law 58 of the Bye-Laws, Shareholders
(the “Requisitionists”) holding at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company may request
the Board to call a SGM by a written requisition to
the Board or the Company Secretary. The objects of
the meeting must be stated in the written requisition.
The requisition must be signed by the Requisitionists
and deposited with the Company Secretary at the
Company’s head office and principal place of business
in Hong Kong at Suites 1104-1106, 11th Floor, 1063
King’s Road, Quarry Bay, Hong Kong. Before convening
the SGM of the Company, the requisition will be verified
with the Company’s Share Registrars in Bermuda or
Hong Kong to obtain their confirmation that the request
is proper and in order. The SGM shall be held within
2 months after the deposit of such requisition. If the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting within
21 days of such deposit, the Requisitionists themselves
may do so in the same manner in accordance with
Section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended).
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

2.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
Shareholders’ meetings

Pursuant to Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), (i) the
shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth
of the total voting rights; or (ii) not less than 100
shareholders, are entitled to request the Company
to give shareholders notice of a resolution which
is intended to be moved at the next AGM or
SGM. A written notice to that effect signed by the
Requisitionist(s) with contact information must be
deposited at the Company’s head office and principal
place of business in Hong Kong at Suites 1104-11086,
11th Floor, 1063 King’s Road, Quarry Bay, Hong
Kong (addressed to the Company Secretary). The
notice shall contain, inter alia, a description of the
proposed resolution desired to be put forward at
the meeting, the reasons for such a proposal and
any material interest of the proposing shareholder in
such a proposal. The request will be verified with the
Company’s Share Registrars in Bermuda or Hong
Kong and upon their confirmation that the request is
proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask
the Board to include the resolution in the agenda for
the general meeting.

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person other
than a retiring Director for election as a Director at a
general meeting, the Shareholder should follow the
“Procedures for Shareholders to propose a person
for election as a Director”, which is posted on the
website of the Company.

Procedures for raising enquiries to the Board
The Shareholders may at any time send their
enquiries and concerns to the Board in writing
through the Company Secretary whose contact
details are as follows:

Address: Suites 1104-1106, 11th Floor, 1063 King’s

Road, Quarry Bay, Hong Kong
Facsimile: (852) 2554 9304

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the
Board at general meetings of the Company.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

Communication with the Shareholders and
Investors

The Board recognizes that effective communication
with the Company’s investors plays a crucial role in
maintaining existing investors’ confidence and attracting
new investors and enhancing their understanding of the
Group’s performance, strategies and future direction. To
foster effective communication with the Shareholders
and potential investors of the Company, the Company
endeavors to provide accurate, clear, comprehensive and
timely information of the Group through the publication of
the interim and annual reports, announcements, circulars,
press interviews and press releases on the website of the
Company.

The AGM provides a useful platform for the Shareholders
to exchange views with the Board. The Chairman of the
Board and the Chairman of each Board Committees
are available at the AGM to answer questions from the
Shareholders in respect of the matters that they are
responsible and accountable for. The external auditor
of the Company is also available at the AGM to assist
the directors in addressing any relevant queries by
the Shareholders. To ensure the Board is maintaining
an on-going dialogue with the Shareholders, the
Shareholders are encouraged to attend the AGM or other
general meetings of the Company. The notice of AGM is
sent to the Shareholders at least 20 clear business days
before the AGM and posted on the respective websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

In addition to the AGM, the Board designates specialized
personnel to maintain close communication with research
analysts, fund managers, the Shareholders and media
outlets via regular one-on-one meetings, luncheons,
factory visits, press conferences and road shows to keep
them informed of the Group’s business performance and
developments.

Constitutional Documents

There was no change in the Memorandum of Association
and the Bye-Laws of the Company during the year ended
29 February 2020.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
o

The board of directors (the “Board”) of Le Saunda
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) has pleasure in
presenting to the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) its report together with the audited
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) for the year ended 29 February
2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The activities of its principal subsidiaries are set
out in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.
The Group is principally engaged in manufacturing and
sale of footwear.

Details of the analysis of the Group’s performance for
the year ended 29 February 2020 by business and
geographical segments are set out in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group as required
pursuant to Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), comprising
analysis of the Group’s performance during the year,
description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing
the Group, particulars of important events affecting the
Group that have occurred since the end of the financial
year as well as indication of likely future development in
the business of the Group are set out in the Chairman’s
Statement on pages 12 to 15 of this report and
Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 16 to 31
of this report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year
using financial key performance indicators is set out in the
Financial Highlights on page 2 of this report.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

U

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group understands that its business has an
impact on the environment and recognizes the
importance of sound environmental management
and sustainable development. It is committed to
complying with the relevant environmental legislations
and standards related to its business operations as
set by the authorities in the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC”) and Hong Kong where it operates.

The Group has implemented a number of
environment-friendly measures in its operations and
workplaces including but not limited to production
plants, retail shops, warehouses and offices. The
Group will prioritize the purchase of eco-friendly
materials and also manage the environmental
performance of its supply chain. During
manufacturing, the Group deals with air emission
by active carbon treatment. In daily operations, the
Group advocates “paperless office” and actively
promotes electronic management information
system. It also sets up the equipment necessary
for teleconference and video conference in order to
reduce the emission of exhaust gas and greenhouse
gas caused by transportation for attending the
physical meeting. For retail shops, the Group has
implemented energy saving practices by using LED
lighting fixtures.

The environmental, social and governance report of
the Company will be published as a separate report
on the respective websites of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and the
Company within 3 months after the publication of this
report.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
(1) Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group recognizes the importance of compliance
with regulatory requirements and the risks of
non-compliance with such requirements. The Group
has conducted on-going review of the newly enacted
laws and regulations affecting the operations of the
Group and provides relevant trainings and guidance
to the staff. The Group has complied with the
relevant laws and regulations of PRC and Hong Kong
that have significant impact on the operations of the
Group for the year ended 29 February 2020.

(lll) Key Relationships

(@)

(b)

Employees

The Group believes that employees are a key
element to the success of its business, so it
strives to maintain a high staff retention rate by
providing competitive remuneration packages
and developing a harmonious workplace.
To enhance the capabilities and productivity
of its employees, the Group provides a
comprehensive training program to instill them
with quality service skills, product knowledge
and language and interpersonal skills. In
addition, the Group organizes regular retail staff
gatherings to promote team spirit and awards
retail staff with outstanding sales performance.

Consumers

The Group provides direct service to consumers
in its retail shops. To ensure continuous
improvement of the quality of products and
services, the Group regularly conducts internal
and external market surveys to interact with
consumers and to gain more market insights
and feedback.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
(1ll) Key Relationships (Continued)

()

(@)

Suppliers

The Group has established long business
relationship with certain suppliers. It selects
its suppliers prudently. The relevant suppliers
need to fulfil certain assessment criteria of the
Group, including, among others, track record,
experience, financial capability, reputation
and history of meeting our standards for raw
materials or finished products. The Group has
established anti-bribery policies which are
required to be observed by all parties with
business dealings with the Group.

Shareholders and Investors

The Board believes effective communication
and the disclosure of accurate and timely
information build the confidence of Shareholders
and investors, and also facilitate the flow of
constructive feedback and ideas that are
beneficial for investor relations and future
corporate development. For details, please
refer to the Shareholders’ Rights and Investor
Relations of the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 63 to 65 of this report.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 29 February
2020 are set out in the consolidated income statement on
page 107 of this report.

No interim dividend was paid for the year ended 29
February 2020 (2018/19: Nil).

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend (2018/19: final special dividend HK35.0 cents per
ordinary share) in respect of the year ended 29 February
2020.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The five-year financial summary of the Group is set out on
pages 214 to 215 of this report. The summary does not
form part of the audited financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the issued share capital of
the Company during the year are set out in note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group
and the Company during the year available for distribution
to the Shareholders are set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

The Group made charitable donation of RMB3,000,000
during the year (2018/19: Nil).
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-Laws”) or the laws of
Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment

of the Group during the year are set out in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Details of the principal investment properties held by the

Group are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of principal subsidiaries of the Group are set out in
note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) during the
year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheng Wang, Gary (Chief Executive Officer)
(resigned with effect from 16 October 2019)
Ms. Chui Kwan Ho, Jacky
Ms. Liao Jian Yu
Mr. Li Wing Yeung, Peter
(appointed with effect from 22 January 2020)

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. James Ngai (Chairman)
Mr. Lee Tze Bun, Marces
(resigned with effect from 16 October 2019)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon

Mr. Leung Wai Ki, George

Mr. Hui Chi Kwan
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and senior
management of the Group as at the date of this report are
set out on pages 32 to 36 of this report.

RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

In accordance with Bye-Law 87 of the Bye-Laws, Mr.
James Ngai and Mr. Leung Wai Ki, George shall retire
from office by rotation at the AGM and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

Pursuant to Bye-Law 86(2) of the Bye-Laws, Mr. Li Wing
Yeung, Peter, who has been appointed as an Executive
Director, will hold office only until the forthcoming AGM
and, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM.

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received from each of the Independent
Non-Executive Directors an annual confirmation of their
respective independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). The Company considers
that all Independent Non-Executive Directors meet the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with
the guidelines. Whilst Mr. James Ngai and Mr. Hui Chi
Kwan are both Directors of the Company and Max Sight
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 8483) and thus hold
cross-directorships, the Board determines that Mr. Hui is
nevertheless independent with respect to his directorship
at the Company since Mr. Ngai and Mr. Hui hold only
non-executive roles at both companies and have no
interest in both companies as disclosed under Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation). During
the year, the service contracts of Mr. Leung Wai Ki, George,
Mr. Hui Chi Kwan and Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon, all acted as
Independent Non-Executive Directors, were renewed for a
fixed term of 2 years with the Company with effect from 1
November 2019, 26 November 2019 and 16 January 2020
respectively. In addition, Mr. Li Wing Yeung, Peter, who was
appointed as an Executive Director on 22 January 2020,
entered into a service contract with the Company with effect
from 22 January 2020.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

Except for the connected transactions as detailed below,
no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
to the Company in which a Director or an entity connected
with a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
entered into any contract of significance with the
Company’s controlling shareholders or their subsidiaries,
or any contract of significance for the provision of
services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by the
Company’s controlling shareholders or their subsidiaries,
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors had engaged in or were interested
in any business which competed or was likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group
during the year.
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B

CHANGES IN DIRECTORSHIP AND OTHER EERHREEERNCHEMET
CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

The changes in directorship and other changes in the 1R MBI F1351B)VGZEE AT
information of the Directors of the Company, which are FEEEBAATEHEE_Z—HLF_A=+N
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the HIFEE ZFERFIZHUNKRAKQNT 72 EFHE
Listing Rules, subsequent to the publication of the annual &N ESFEER 2 EMmEFHEF I WO T :
report of the Company for the year ended 28 February

2019 are set out below:

Name of Directors

EEgR

Details of change

BBHHER

Executive Directors:

BITES:
Mr. Cheng Wang, Gary
v

Mr. Li Wing Yeung, Peter
FXKGERE

Non-Executive Directors:

FHTES:

Mr. Lee Tze Bun, Marces

FFWELE

le saunda holdings Itd. &8 HTHERR AR A A

° Resigned as an Executive Director and the Chief Executive
Officer with effect from 16 October 2019
B_Z-AFtATABRRERBERITES RITHAH

e  Appointed as an Executive Director with effect from 22 January
2020
BT - TF—A-+_RAREZTAHNTES

° Entered into a service contract with the Company without a fixed
term commencing on 22 January 2020
HEARAVEBEEFHZREGHN B _Z_TF-—A_+=
B AW

° Resigned as a Non-Executive Director with effect from 16
October 2019
B NFHAT R NBAREEIFENTES



CHANGES IN DIRECTORSHIP AND OTHER
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ESOBNRESERNCHMEEH (F)

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

Name of Directors
EEHA

Details of change

SEBHFE

Independent Non-Executive
Directors:
BIYFHITES:

Mr. Leung Wai Ki, George
REELE

Mr. Hui Chi Kwan
B R85 A&

Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon

PROK B 7

Renewed service contract with the Company with a fixed term
of 2 years commencing on 1 November 2019 and ending on 31
October 2021

BEEARAEIRB AN H-TE-NF+-—A—BHEE_-F
T—Ft+A=1T—BI AMFEEFH

Renewed service contract with the Company with a fixed term of
2 years commencing on 26 November 2019 and ending on 25
November 2021

CEARFETREAY BH-_ZT—NAF+—A-+BEEZ
To—F+—AZ+THBI - AWEFEEEFH

Renewed service contract with the Company with a fixed term
of 2 years commencing on 16 January 2020 and ending on 15
January 2022
BEEARAEIRB AN BT _TF A+ "ABRE_-F
ZZHF—ATHRBLE - AWMEEEFH

Saved as disclosed above, there is no other information F& EXPriKEE &SN - BB EME R AR
required to be disclosed herein pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1)  1& £ £ BI 513.561B(1) {4 2 # & M 7 LA

of the Listing Rules.

==
B °©
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 29 February 2020, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company
in the ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the capital
of the Company (the “Shares”), underlying Shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong, the “SFQO”)) which were notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules were as follows:

() Long positions in Shares (including
underlying Shares)

EERBESTRAERARAREM
BEEzRM  HEAROREZDR
BEZEERAXR

R-ZZE-_TE-_A=-+HhB KAQFES
MESITBRABRARG R EAEEE (T
ERBEBEPBNMEBLFL ISR ([F
E R EEEG ) EXVE) Z %A F =R
BONOB Lo EBR(RM)) - KM
NEHFTFES  BREBEFSFLHEKD
EXVE BTN FESD HEME KR a) KB
RFIZEZEAXE(BERBEELFLRHE
GOl s Z2EBRNEEESIR BHEBZE
HHAKB) WELAREBESENBEK
BIEIRER T BEGFEZERMzERZ X
KB IR EWAR RS ATE 2 £
MBEITAESHETEFRSHZESTR| (12
EFANBERNERARBI LBz ERZ K
KB

) RiozgE(BEAEABRH)

Number of Shares
ke %A
Approximate
percentage
of the issued
Personal Spouse Corporate share capital of
Name of Directors interests interests interests Other interests Total  the Company
HEERLT
ERORE
ESpg EARE EEk: Gl $5 Hip s st AR
Mr. Li Wing Yeung, Peter (‘Mr. Li") 6,239,200 11,000 - 55,000,000 61,250,200 8.67%
FxBRE Note 1) (H#1) (Note 2) (H1722)
Ms. Chui Kwan Ho, Jacky (“Ms. Chul") 5,027,000 - - - 5,027,000 0.71%
REFRL(BrL))
Ms. Liao Jian Yu (‘Ms. Liao") 299,200 - - - 299,200 0.04%
BERLL(BRL)) (Note §) (H723)
Mr. Leung Wai Ki, George (‘Mr. Leung’) - - - 1,700,000 1,700,000 0.24%
PEELE(REE) Note 4) (Hi#24)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (CONTINUED)

Long positions in Shares (including
underlying Shares) (Continued)

m

Notes:

Mr. Li personally held 5,909,200 Shares and was entitled to
330,000 share options granted by the Company, the underlying
Shares of which he was taken to have an interest.

Mr. Li, Ms. Lee Wing Kam Rowena Jackie and Ms. Cheung Man
Ching, Teresa jointly held 55,000,000 Shares as trustees of The
Lee Keung Charitable Foundation (the “Charitable Foundation”),
representing approximately 7.79% of the issued share capital
of the Company. Therefore, all of them are deemed to be
interested in these Shares which are duplicated amongst their
respective interests.

Ms. Liao personally held 114,400 Shares and was entitled to
184,800 share options granted by the Company, the underlying
Shares of which she was taken to have an interest.

Mr. Leung was a governor of Xin Chuan Middle School
Foundation Limited, which held 1,700,000 Shares. Therefore,
Mr. Leung was deemed to be interested in these Shares.
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BEEzRM  HEAROREZDAR
BEZEERAXR A

) BRozHr(BEHEBRS) (HE)

Hrat

1.

Z K15 5% 4 @ A £ E5,909,2000% B% 5 &
JE R QB % F330,00010 B AL #E - B R
RO HEE#EE -

FxGRE  FREBLEIRERXELLE
REREBRBES(BEERNDZRTAHR
[F ¥ /55,000,000[% i {7 -+ 15 " A A2 %
TTERAKT79% - At REB WA RBEER
ZERMZ D MERESEEZRO#ER
EHER-

B @ A E114,4000% Bk (0 & AR
A% F184,8001% B8 A% 7 - 1% 7 s% tH BE A%
DREEER -

EHEBRESERAATENDRE A

BENZEE AN)EE1,700,0000 8% % °
Hitt - REEWE BEEZERMDZES -
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wHHFHRY

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S BEERBETHRAERAQATIREMNE
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN BB z2RD  HBARORESDPF
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND BEZEZRAAE(E)

DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (CONTINUED)

() Long positions in underlying shares and (I XATAZHEHBROREFZHFE
debentures of the Company

Interests in share options BREE D

Adjusted number of Shares (Note 3)

BREZRAHA ML)
Total
outstanding Adjusted
Balance as Granted  Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed  Adjustment as at 29 exercise
Name of Date of share at1March  duringthe  duringthe  duringthe  duringthe  during the February price per
Directors options granted 2019 year year year year year 2020 Share  Exercise period
(Notes 16 2) (Note 4) (Note 3)
RZB-1%E 33
=ZB-82 RER RER RER RER RER ZBZthA el
£33 REBREZAH & i g B P Bl HAGE  BROKE TRHE
(W1k2) (Wit4) (Wit3)
HKS
B
Mr. Li 10 July 2012 - - - - - 110,000 110,000 2185 10 July 2014-9 July 2022
TkBERE 2012577108 04ETAI0BE
20225 7A9H
10 July 2012 - - - - - 110,000 110,000 2185 10 July 2015-9 July 2022
20126 7A10A 201557A1002
2022%7A9A
10 July 2012 - - - - - 110,000 110,000 2.185 10 July 2016-9 July 2022
2012710 2016F7A10RZE
022%E7A9A
Ms. Liao 10 July 2012 184,800 - - - - - 184,800 2185 10 July 2016-9 July 2022
Bxt 2012578108 2016%47A108E
2022%7R9H
Total 184,800 - - - - 330,000 514,800

&5t
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (CONTINUED)

() Long positions in underlying shares and

debentures of the Company (Continued)
Interests in share options (Continued)

Notes:

1. The vesting period of the above share options is from their date
of grant until the commencement of their exercise period.

2. The closing price of the Shares immediately before 10 July
2012 on which the share options were granted was HK$2.41
per Share.

3. On 13 July 2015, an ordinary resolution was duly passed

by the Shareholders at the annual general meeting of the
Company to approve the issue of bonus Shares on the basis
of one bonus Share for every ten existing Shares held by the
qualifying Shareholders on the record date (the “Bonus Issue”).
As a result of the Bonus Issue, adjustments were made to the
exercise price and the number of Shares to be allotted and
issued upon full exercise of subscription rights attached to the
outstanding share options with effect from 30 July 2015. The
exercise price per Share indicated in the above table is the
exercise price per Share after the said adjustments were made
on 30 July 2015. Prior to the adjustments, the exercise price
per Share in relation to share options granted on 10 July 2012
was HK$2.404. For details, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 29 July 2015.

4. Mr. Li had been entitled to 330,000 share options granted by
the Company immediately before and after his appointment as
a Director of the Company with effect from 22 January 2020.

Save as disclosed above, as at 29 February 2020,
none of the Directors or chief executive (including
their spouse and children under 18 years of age) of
the Company had any interests and/or short positions
in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and/or short positions which are taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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ARRANGEMENTS FOR DIRECTORS TO
PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Directors’
and chief executive’s interests and short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations” above and
the paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” below,
during the year ended 29 February 2020, (a) at no time
was the Company or a specified undertaking (as defined
in the Companies (Directors’ Report) Regulation (Chapter
622D of the Laws of Hong Kong)) of the Company a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors or the chief
executive of the Company to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate; and (b) none of
the Directors, their respective spouses nor their respective
children under the age of 18 had any right to subscribe
for securities of the Company or had exercised any such
rights.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 29 February 2020, according to the register of
interests in Shares and short positions of the Company
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO, the
following persons or corporations (other than the Directors
or chief executive of the Company) had interests or short
positions in the Shares and underlying Shares which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

() Interests and short positions of substantial
shareholders in the Shares and underlying
Shares

Long positions in Shares

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EREHRE

FTERRREMALRRG REEK
MZEBERKAE

RZZEZZEF_A-+NAA BEEFR
HI B R DI 2533615 R € Pifr B < I in #E &2
KoxkazBRMAAEek - N ALSEE
(RRAREEFREDTHRABRINREND
SEERDTPEAEDIORE MARE
B MEBEROIEXVEFE2R E3ID HIE
HK R

N FERRREROREBERO 2R
RXA

BozHE

Number of Shares and nature of interests

ROBERERER
Approximate
percentage
of the issued
Interests of Share
Beneficial controlled Other capital of the
Name of Shareholders owner corporation interests Total Company
HEXRTF
EBRTRE
RRERB REHEBA BRLAFESR Hitt & @t Bt
Mr. Lee Tze Bun, Marces 54,561,000 36,600,000 280,500,000 371,661,000 52.65%
(“Mr. Lee”) (Notes 1 & 2) (Notes 3 & 4)
FrwEE(ZER4%E]D) (Hat1k2) (H1i25/%4)
Stable Gain Holdings Limited 225,500,000 — - 225,500,000 31.94%
(“Stable Gain”) (Note 5) (1 i£5)
Stable Profit Holdings Limited - 225,500,000 - 225,500,000 31.94%
(“Stable Profit”) (Note &) (H1i25)
HSBC International Trustee - — 225,500,000 225,500,000 31.94%
Limited (‘HSBC Trustee”) (Note &) (H1i25)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
(CONTINUED)

m

Interests and short positions of substantial
shareholders in the Shares and underlying
Shares (Continued)

Long positions in Shares (Continued)

Succex Limited, a corporation which was controlled and wholly
owned by Mr. Lee, held 33,000,000 Shares. Therefore, Mr. Lee
was deemed to be interested in these Shares.

Mr. Lee was a founder and governor of Qing Yun Middle
School Education Development Foundation Limited, which
held 3,600,000 Shares. Therefore, Mr. Lee was deemed to be
interested in these Shares.

Stable Gain held 225,500,000 Shares, representing approximately
31.94% of the issued share capital of the Company. The entire
issued share capital of Stable Gain was registered in the name of
Stable Profit, a company wholly-owned by HSBC Trustee which
acted as trustee of Lee Tze Bun Family Trust (the “LTB Family
Trust”), a discretionary trust, of which Mr. Lee was the founder
(as defined in section 308 of the SFO) and an eligible beneficiary
thereunder. Mr. Lee was also the sole director of Stable Profit.
Therefore, Mr. Lee was deemed to be interested in these Shares.

The Charitable Foundation, of which Mr. Lee was the founder
(as defined in section 308 of the SFO), held 55,000,000 Shares,
representing approximately 7.79% of the issued share capital of
the Company. Therefore, Mr. Lee was deemed to be interested
in these Shares.

Stable Gain held 225,500,000 Shares, representing
approximately 31.94% of the issued share capital of the
Company. The entire issued share capital of Stable Gain
was registered in the name of Stable Profit, a company
wholly-owned by HSBC Trustee which acted as trustee of the
LTB Family Trust, a discretionary trust, of which Mr. Lee was a
founder (as defined in section 308 of the SFC) and an eligible
beneficiary thereunder. Mr. Lee was also the sole director of
Stable Profit. Therefore, HSBC Trustee was deemed to be
interested in these Shares in its capacity as trustee (other than
a bare trustee) and Stable Profit was deemed to be interested
in these Shares by virtue of the interest of its controlled
corporation (being Stable Gain). The respective interests
of Stable Gain, Stable Profit and HSBC Trustee were thus
duplicated.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER

PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
(CONTINUED)

(1)

Interests and short positions of other

persons in the Shares and underlying Shares

Long positions in Shares

Number of Shares and nature of interests

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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FTERRREMALRRG REEK
zERER AR (&)

() HttALTREOREBERS2ES

RxR

BozHE

ROHEREZER
Approximate
percentage
of the issued
Share
Personal Spouse Other capital of the
Name of Shareholders Note interests interests interests Total Company
ORI N
ERITRE
RREMH Bt & BAES REER Hit i & Bt B
Ms. Lee Wing Kam 1 6,985,000 — 55,000,000 61,985,000 8.78%
Rowena Jackie
("Ms. Lee”)
FREaL(zatL))
Ms. Cheung Man Ching 2 - 2,585,000 55,000,000 57,585,000 8.15%
Teresa
(“Ms. Cheung”)
KXERT (Rt
Ms. Lee, Mr. Li and Ms. 3 - - 55,000,000 55,000,000 7.79%

Cheung as trustees
of the Charitable
Foundation

Pt FABEER
RUTHEREEES
ZRFEA
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
(CONTINUED)

(1)

Interests and short positions of other
persons in the Shares and underlying Shares
(Continued)

Long positions in Shares (Continued)

Notes:

1.

Ms. Lee was interested in an aggregate of 61,985,000 Shares
(comprising 6,985,000 Shares personally held as beneficial
owner and 55,000,000 Shares jointly held by her, Mr. Li
and Ms. Cheung as trustees of the Charitable Foundation),
representing approximately 8.78% of the issued share capital of
the Company.

Ms. Cheung was interested in an aggregate of 57,585,000
Shares (comprising 2,585,000 Share held by her spouse as
beneficial owner and 55,000,000 Shares jointly held by her,
Ms. Lee and Mr. Li as trustees of the Charitable Foundation),
representing approximately 8.15% of the issued share capital of
the Company.

Ms. Lee, Mr. Li and Ms. Cheung jointly held 55,000,000
Shares as trustees of the Charitable Foundation, representing
approximately 7.79% of the issued share capital of the
Company. Therefore, all of them were deemed to be interested
in these Shares which were duplicated amongst their respective
interests.

Save as disclosed above, as at 29 February 2020,
the Company had not been notified of any other
persons (other than the Directors or chief executive
of the Company) or corporation who had interests
directly or indirectly and/or short positions in the
Shares and underlying Shares of the Company which
would be required to be disclosed to the Company
and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

At the special general meeting of the Company held on 22
July 2002, the Shareholders approved the adoption of a
share option scheme (the “Scheme”) pursuant to Chapter
17 of the Listing Rules.

The purpose of the Scheme was to enable the Board
to grant options to selected eligible persons (as defined
under the Scheme) as incentives or rewards for their
contribution or potential contribution to the Group. The
total number of the Shares available for issue upon
exercise of all options granted under the Scheme must
not exceed 1,624,700 Shares, representing approximately
0.23% of the total number of issued Shares of the
Company as at the date of this report. The aggregate
number of the Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company must not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue
from time to time.

The maximum number of the Shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of options granted under the
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company to each eligible person (including cancelled,
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period must not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue. Any
further grant of options in excess of such limit must
be separately approved by the Shareholders with such
eligible person and his associates abstaining from voting.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the Scheme at any time during a period commencing
on such date on or after the date on which the option
is granted as the Board may determine in granting the
option and expiring at the close of business on such date
as the Board may determine in granting the option but
in any event shall not exceed 10 years from the date of
grant (which is the date of offer of grant if the offer for the
grant of the option is accepted). The minimum period for
which an option must be held before it can be exercised
is determined by the Board upon the grant of an option.
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The amount payable on acceptance of an option is
HK$1.00. The full amount of the exercise price for the
subscription of the Shares must be paid upon exercise of
an option.

The price per Share payable on the exercise of an option
is to be determined by the Board provided always that it
shall be at least the higher of: (i) the closing price of the
Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet issued by
the Stock Exchange on the date of offer of grant (which
is deemed to be the date of grant if the offer for the grant
of an option is accepted by the eligible person), which
must be a business day; (i) the average closing price
of the Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer of grant; and (jii)
the nominal value of a Share.

The Scheme expired on 21 July 2012.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Pursuant to the Scheme, the Company granted
14,100,000 and 17,440,000 share options to certain
Directors and employees of the Company to subscribe
for up to a total of 31,540,000 Shares on 27 June 2011
and 10 July 2012 respectively. Particulars of such share
options and their movement during the year ended 29
February 2020 were as follows:

Adjusted number of share options (Note 5

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EREHRE

B ETE(E)

RIEZTE KRR ——F
/\HZ"“EE&:;:—:E‘EH‘{_E ’ f"ﬂ
KAAlHATESKEES K 714,100,000 %
17,440,000 B Ig 1 - MREBEHZ G5 A
N AR A F31,540,0000 % - HE-_T =
ZF_A+NABILEFEARN LEERE
MEFBREEFHHT :

BRE EREHA WY
Outstanding Adjusted
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Notes 142) Note 3) Note 4) Note 8
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Directors Note ) 27 June 2011 - - - -

- - 4300 27 June 2014-26 June 2021

3070 201156278 2014E6R27RZ202156A26R
27 June 2011 - - - - - - 4300 27 June 2015-26 June 2021
2011E6727H 015E6A27H 22021464268
27 June 2011 - - - - - - 4300 27 June 2016-26 June 2021
011E6727H 201668270 22021564268
10 July 2012 - - - - 110,000 110,000 2185 10 July 2014-9 July 2022
2012%£7A108 014E7A10B E2020% 7798
10 July 2012 - - - - 110,000 110,000 2185 10 July 2015-9 July 2022
2012574108 0155 7R10A 2202246 7A9H
10 July 2012 184,800 - - - 110,000 294,800 2185 10 July 2016-9 July 2022
201278108 2016F7A108 220225 7A9H

Sub-total 184,800 - - - 330,000 514,800

bt

Employees 27 June 2011 - - - - - - 4300 27 June 2014-26 June 2021

B8 2011E6727H 014E6A27H 22021564260
27 June 2011 - - - - - - 4,300 27 June 2015-26 June 2021
2011E6727H 2015E6A27H 22021568268
27 June 2011 - - - - - - 4300 27 June 2016-26 June 2021
011568278 20166275 2202167268
10 July 2012 111,100 - - - (110,000) 1,100 2185 10 July 2014-9 July 2022
2012£7A108 2014ETA10B 22025 7R9R
10 July 2012 444,400 - - - (110,000) 334,400 2185 10 July 2015-9 July 2022
201278108 2015E7A10H £20224 7A9A
10 July 2012 884,400 - - - (110,000) 774,400 2185 10 July 2016-9 July 2022
2012£7A108 201673108 220224 798

Sub-total 1,439,900 - - - (330,000) 1,109,900

It

Total 1,624,700 - - - - 1,624,700

a
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Notes:

le saun

The respective vesting periods of the above share options are from
their respective dates of the grant until the commencement of their
respective exercise periods.

The closing prices of the Shares immediately before 27 June 2011
and 10 July 2012 on which the share options were granted were
HK$4.65 and HK$2.41 per Share respectively.

Upon the grant of 17,440,000 share options to eligible persons by the
Company on 10 July 2012, there were 1,960 shares options available
for grant under the Scheme. The Scheme expired on 21 July 2012.

Mr. Li had been entitled to 330,000 share options granted by the
Company immediately before and after his appointment as a Director
of the Company with effect from 22 January 2020, so that his share
options were adjusted from the category of employees to directors.

On 13 July 2015, an ordinary resolution was duly passed by the
Shareholders at the annual general meeting of the Company to
approve the Bonus Issue. As a result of the Bonus Issue, adjustments
were made to the exercise price and the number of Shares to be
allotted and issued upon full exercise of subscription rights attached
to the outstanding share options with effect from 30 July 2015. The
exercise price per Share indicated in the above table is the exercise
price per Share after the said adjustments were made on 30 July
2015. Prior to the adjustments, the exercise price per Share in relation
to share options granted on 27 June 2011 was HK$4.730 while that in
relation to share options granted on 10 July 2012 was HK$2.404. For
details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 29
July 2015.

For a detailed breakdown of the Directors’ interest in share options,
please refer to page 78 of this report.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, for the purpose of the Listing Rules, the
following connected transactions (including continuing
connected transactions) subsisted or were agreed
between the Group and the connected person(s) (as
defined under the Listing Rules) of the Company:

Pursuant to a purchase framework agreement dated
25 February 2019 (the “2019 Purchase Framework
Agreement”) entered into betweenM{Z & 5 (KX 2)F R
2 A] (Changxin Trading (Tianjin) Limited*) (“Changxin”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, andf{z
G M) AR AR (Xindie Commercial (Hangzhou)
Limited*) (“Xindie”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, Changxin agreed to sell and Xindie agreed
to purchase certain products (including footwear and
handbags) of the Group’s brands for a term commencing
on 1 March 2019 and expiring on 29 February 2020.

The aggregate purchase price payable under the purchase
orders/purchase contracts entered into pursuant to the
2019 Purchase Framework Agreement for the year ending
29 February 2020 shall not exceed RMB27,000,000.
Details of the 2019 Purchase Framework Agreement
were disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated
25 February 2019. The aggregate transaction amount
under the 2019 Purchase Framework Agreement was
approximately RMB22,332,000 for the year ended 29
February 2020.

On 14 February 2020, Changxin and Xindie entered
into another purchase framework agreement (the “2020
Purchase Framework Agreement”) in relation to the
renewal of the 2019 Purchase Framework Agreement for
a term of one year commencing on 1 March 2020 and
expiring on 28 February 2021. The aggregate purchase
price payable under the purchase orders/purchase
contracts entered into pursuant to the 2020 Purchase
Framework Agreement for the period ending 28 February
2021 shall not exceed RMB19,000,000. Details of the
2020 Purchase Framework Agreement were disclosed in
the Company’s announcement dated 14 February 2020.

* For identification purpose only
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

The 2019 Purchase Framework Agreement and the 2020
Purchase Framework Agreement are collectively known as
“Purchase Framework Agreements”.

Xindie is a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
which Ms. Liao and her spouse together can control
the exercise of 33.3% of the voting power at its general
meeting (through a corporate shareholder of Xindie
owned by Ms. Liao and her spouse), and is therefore
a connected subsidiary of the Company. Xindie is also
a 30%-controlled company held indirectly by Ms. Liao
and her spouse and is hence an associate of Ms. Liao.
Accordingly, Xindie is a connected person of the Company
and the transactions contemplated under the Purchase
Framework Agreements constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. As each of the applicable percentage ratios
in respect of the respective transactions contemplated
under the Purchase Framework Agreements is more than
0.1% but less than 5%, the respective transactions are
subject to the reporting, annual review and announcement
requirements but are exempted from the circular (including
independent financial advice) and the independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

All Independent Non-Executive Directors have reviewed,
during the year ended 29 February 2020, the above
continuing connected transactions and confirmed that
such transactions have been entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(2) on normal commercial terms; and
(8) according the Purchase Framework Agreements,

on terms which are fair and reasonable, and in the
interests of the Shareholders as a whole.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on
the Group’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagement Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”
and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. According to
the Board, the auditor has issued an unqualified letter
to the Board, confirming that nothing has come to the
auditor’s attention that causes the auditor to believe
that the continuing connected transactions disclosed in
this report (1) have not been approved by the Board; (2)
were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Group if the transactions involve
the provision of goods or services by the Group; (3) were
not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance
with the relevant agreement governing the transaction;
or (4) have exceeded the annual cap for the continuing
connected transactions. A copy of the auditor’s letter has
been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed above, related party transactions
disclosed in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements do not constitute connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions (as defined in
the Listing Rules). The Company confirmed that it has
complied with the requirements in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year ended 29 February 2020.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

The Articles of Association of the Company provides that
the Directors shall be indemnified and secured harmless
out of the assets and profits of the Company against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which they or any of them shall or may incur in or about
the execution of their duty or supposed duty, in their
respective offices or trusts, provided that the indemnity
shall not extend to any matter in respect of fraud or
dishonesty which may attach to any of the Directors.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts (other than service contracts with
Directors as disclosed) concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, sales to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for approximately 1.3% of the
total revenue from sales of goods for the year and sales
to the largest customer included therein amounted to
approximately 0.5% of the total revenue from sales of
goods for the year. Purchases from the Group’s five
largest suppliers accounted for approximately 30.8% of
the total purchases for the year and purchases from the
largest supplier amounted to approximately 7.5%.

None of the Directors or any of their respective close
associates or any Shareholders (which to the best
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Shares) had any interest in the Group’s five largest
customers and/or five largest suppliers.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

A corporate governance report is set out on pages 37 to
65 of this report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

The environmental, social and governance report of
the Company will be published as a separate report on
the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company within 3 months after the publication of this
report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, as
at the date of this report, there is sufficient public float
of more than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as
required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 29 February 2020 have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the
re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as the auditor
of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming
AGM.

By Order of the Board

James Ngai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 May 2020

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EREHRE

RIE HERER

ARARZERE HE@REARESHAES
BEFARTHEMLRER=TEARD 5
RERXAEARBHEEE -

EHLABERE
REBEARBIMENLRAEREAESHAN
RABERH  ARr—E#F LEHH A
FIREZRARRFTRE  IBBAR
A2 #ITIR 225% °

% 4]
BE-_Z-_TEFE_A-t+HhABILEFEZE
AU BHRERELCHEERM KESFASE
BHEZ ZRBMERER EFE
ERLBEEER BHERESRMKE
SHMEBAAARARE 2 ZEE 2 K&
REREERREAFAGLRESR -

REED

=

e
172 HE&

B ZEFRAZ-ZTHH

annual report 3k 2020

93



94

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
T8 A% S e

_
pwc

To the Shareholders of Le Saunda Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Le Saunda
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 107 to 213, which comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 29 February
2020;

e the consolidated income statement for the year then
ended;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for
the year then ended;

° the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
which include a summary of significant accounting
policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 29 February 2020, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’'s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised
as follows:

° Provision for impairment of inventories; and

° Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED) BRESEGE)
Provision for impairment of inventories FERERE
Nature of the key audit matter BARETEEZMHE

Refer to Note 4(d) and Note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements.

At 29 February 2020, the Group’s gross inventories
and provision for impairment of inventories amounted
to RMB310,122,000 and RMB37,029,000, respectively.

As described in the accounting policies in Note
211 to the consolidated financial statements,
inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

The Group is engaged in the retail and distribution
of footwear and accessories, and is subject
to changing consumer demands and fashion
trends. In current year, the retail operation was
also adversely affected by the recent outbreak
of novel coronavirus (COVID-19) epidemic since
late January 2020. Management’s judgement
is required for assessing the appropriate level
of inventory provision in light of the current
challenging retail environment.

Management determines the appropriate provisions
for obsolete or slow-moving inventories based on
a detailed ageing analysis of inventories and the
Group’s estimates of projected sales of aged
inventories in consideration of various factors,
such as the marketability of aged products and the
market conditions under the impact of COVID-19
epidemic.

We focused on this area due to the significant
value of inventories and the critical estimates
made by management on the provision for
obsolete or slow-moving inventories.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED) HREETEEE)
Provision for impairment of inventories &R {ERE (&)

(Continued)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter

Our procedures for assessing the appropriateness
of management’s judgements applied in assessing
the provision for impairment of inventories
included:

o Evaluated management’s estimations made
in prior years by reference to the level of
inventories write-off during the year in relation
to stock loss.

o Evaluated analysis and assessment made by
management with respect to slow-moving
inventories.

° Performed audit analytics on stock holding
and movement data during the year and after
year end to identify products with indications
of obsolescence.

° Compared the net realisable value of inventories
sold subsequent to the year end to the cost
of inventories.

o Evaluated the future estimated sales through
of aged inventories with reference to historical
sales performance of similar products through
different sales channels, management assessment
of the length of time under which the negative
impact of COVID-19 epidemic would last,
relevant external market information and
the Group’s business strategies identified
through enquiries with management.

e Tested the mathematical accuracy of
management’s year end calculation of
provision for impairment of inventories.

Based on the above audit procedures performed,
we found that management’s assessments were
supported by the evidence that we obtained.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

ERFASEHGE

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets

Nature of the key audit matter

Refer to Note 16 and 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group had recorded impairment loss of
RMB9,974,000 and RMB11,946,000 in respect
of its property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets respectively for the year ended 29
February 2020.

Due to the outbreak of COVID-19 epidemic in
January 2020 and the related precautionary and
control measures taken place, the resumption
of production of the Group’s factory in Shunde,
the PRC (the Shunde Factory) was delayed after
the Chinese New Year. Management has carried
out an impairment assessment of the property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets of
the Shunde Factory and has written down the
carrying amount of the assets to its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount of the assets
was determined by management based on their
fair value less cost to sale given all the production
of the Shunde factory were subsequently ceased
in May 2020 after a brief resumption of operation.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)
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ERFASEHGE

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets (Continued)

Nature of the key audit matter (Continued)

Certain of the Group’s retail stores with operations
of more than one year were loss making during
the year and the operation of the Group’s
retail stores was also adversely affected by the
outbreak of COVID-19 epidemic. Management
regards each individual retail store as a separately
identifiable cash-generating unit and carried out
impairment assessment for the retail store assets
which have impairment indicator. The recoverable
amount of the assets of the relevant retail stores
is determined by value-in-use calculations using
discounted cash flow projections based on sales
forecast prepared by management with major
assumption such as gross profit, the length of
time which the impact of COVID-19 may continue
and the speed of recovery.

We focused on this area because significant
estimation and judgement were involved in
determining the recoverable amounts of the
relevant assets subject to impairment assessment.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

ERFASEHGE

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets (Continued)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter

We evaluated and tested management’s
impairment assessment of the property, plant and
equipment of the Shunde Factory by performing
the following procedures:

ME BERRBUREREEEREGE)
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Compared the recoverable amount of the
property in respect of the Shunde Factory to
the estimated fair value based on valuation
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report prepared by an independent valuer
and evaluating management’s estimation of
changes in the fair value from the date of the
valuation to the year end date.

e Enquired management on their basis of
estimation of the recovery amount of the
other fixed assets of the Shunde factory
and comparing that with similar historical
transactions of the Group.
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ERFASEHGE

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets (Continued)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter (Continued)

We evaluated and tested the impairment assessment
of the property plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets of the retail stores by performing the following
procedures:

° Enquired management on their basis of identifying
impairment indicators and challenging the
judgements made in the identification of
impairment indicators;

o Compared the forecasted sales performance
and estimated running costs of the retail
stores used in the value in use calculation to
their historical records;

° Enquired management in relation to key
assumptions in their value in use calculations
and evaluated the key assumptions (such
as gross profit, the length of time which the
impact of COVID-19 may continue and the
speed of recovery) applied by comparing
them to our understanding of latest market
information and conditions and historical
information, where applicable;

o Recomputed the impairment loss calculation;

° Evaluated the sensitivity analysis to ascertain
the extent of change in the key assumptions
that would result in the retail store assets
being impaired and also considered the
likelihood of such a change in the key
assumptions arising.

Based on our work performed, we found the
impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets made by management to be
supported by available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Financial Highlights, Corporate
Information, Shareholder Information, Key Milestones,
Chairman’s Statement, Management’s Discussion and
Analysis, Board of Directors and Senior Management,
Corporate Government Report, Report of the Directors,
Five-Year Financial Summary and Investment Properties
(but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon), which we
obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, and the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report, which is
expected to be made available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not and will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other
information that we obtained prior to the date of this
auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report, if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the
matter to Audit Committee and take appropriate action
considering our legal rights and obligations.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BREMAETEEMBHRREAEN
B (&)

(CONTINUED)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this

independent auditor’s report is Mr. Yuen Kwok Kin
Andrew.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 May 2020
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

A H R
For the year ended 29 February 2020

Year ended Year ended
29 February 28 February
2020 2019
BZ HE
—EC-TF Z—T-hEF
—A=+hH Z—AZ=Z+N\H
IEEE IEFE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
izt AR®Tr AR®TT
Revenue & 5 736,387 908,784
Cost of sales 5 & K AR 7 (279,912) (338,568)
Gross profit £ 456,475 570,216
Other income EH A A 6 7,589 15,244
Other losses, net HEibEs1E - FEE 6 (1,594) (7,226)
Impairment losses on trade Z S EWRIBREEISE -
receivables, net FRE 7 (2,255) (5,454)
Selling and distribution expenses  $5%& & 7 $4 F &2 7 (335,197) (436,745)
General and administrative — M RITER X
expenses 7 (153,182) (160,982)
Operating loss KREBRE (28,164) (24,947)
Finance income, net WA - FEE 8 6,890 11,508
Loss before income tax Br TS B AT S 18 (21,274) (13,439)
Income tax expense Fri8 B2 12 (9,046) (13,889)
Loss for the year FHNEE (30,320) (27,328)
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable FE15F R (E518), 5% 7
to:
— owners of the Company — ARRIEHFEEA (30,519) (28,032)
— non-controlling interest — JEE Hx &= 199 704
(30,320) (27,328)
Losses per share attributable to KRREERFBAEWN
the owners of the Company EREBEARED)
(express in RMB cents)
— Basic — AKX 13 (4.32) (3.97)
— Diluted — #y 13 (4.32) (8.97)
Dividend g 14 - 210,428

The notes on pages 114 to 213 are an integral part of
these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Ak AT AR

For the year ended 29 February 2020
HE_Z_TF_A_+NBILFE

Year ended Year ended

29 February 28 February

2020 2019

BZE HZE

—EF-FF —FTNHF
—A=+hB —A=+/\H
LLFE FFEE

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BT 5 AR¥BTT AR®ETT

Loss for the year FANEBE (30,320) (27,328)

Other comprehensive income for  F R K F % 2 H b2 @ Uk
the year, net of tax A

Item that will not be reclassified to E & 1@ &3 4 Bir A5

consolidated income statement BEmiksHE
— Actuarial losses on retirement  — EBRIKEFHNEET 2 HFE
benefit obligation &8 28 (23) (524)
Items that will be reclassified to ﬁfé A B D HBAEEE
consolidated income statement mx ZHE
— Currency translation — ERERE
differences 23,714 19,918

Total comprehensive loss for the — F A2 &8 25
year (6,629) (7,934)

Total comprehensive (loss)/income [ERF AR M (EE), I

for the year, attributable to: ANKBRE -
— owners of the Company — ARAEEREBA (6,828) (8,638)
— non-controlling interest — EERER 199 704

(6,629) (7,934)

The notes on pages 114 to 213 are an integral part of HF14E21BE 2 M AAXRMBwETAIH
these consolidated financial statements. oz #H o
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AT EEARER

As at 29 February 2020
RZZEZZF_A=-+AhA

As at As at
29 February 28 February

2020 2019

—E-EF —T-hEF
—BA=ZthB Z—A=+NH

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARBTT ARETIT

ASSETS BE
Non-current assets RBEE
Investment properties KEME 15 2,360 56,360
Property, plant and equipment M HEREE 16 127,613 153,306
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 17 37,969 -
Land use rights + Mo A 18 - 20,442
Long-term deposits and RER & RFERRIE
prepayments 22 3,421 4,632
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTISHIBEE E 20 55,332 54,302
___226,695 289,042
Current assets REBEE
Inventories rE 21 273,093 325,444
Trade and other receivables B REWRE R H g
W BR 18 22 53,529 74,940
Deposits and prepayments B4 RFERRIE 22 43,072 45,471
Pledged bank deposit BRI ER 23 719 665
Cash and bank balances IB& MIRT1T 4 6k 23 508,555 590,596
_..878,968 _ 1,037,116
Total assets wEE 1,105,663 1,326,158
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves attributable to ZN2 &) # #4758 A JE (b %
the owners of the Company PN R e
Share capital s 7R 26 59,979 59,979
Reserves K]
Proposed dividends BERE 29 - 210,428
Others HAt 29 891,452 905,309
951,431 1,175,716
Non-controlling interest FERES 10,273 10,450
Total equity R 961,704 1,186,166

The notes on pages 114 to 213 are an integral part of F14E21BE 2 M AARMBwETAIH
these consolidated financial statements. Bz EBm o
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

MO EREAMRE

As at 29 February 2020
RZZEZZTF-_A-+1HAH

As at As at
29 February 28 February
2020 2019
" i
—F-FF Z—FTNHF
—A=-+hB Z—A=+N\H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARBTFRT AR®FT
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities kRBER
Deferred income tax liabilities BEEFEHRIEARE 20 24,757 27,869
Lease liabilities HEBE 17 14,724 -
__.__39481 27869
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade payables, other payables ENEBE SR - HibfE
and contract liabilities NERELEHNAE 25 85,341 106,378
Lease liabilities HEAEF 17 17,635 -
Current income tax liabilities BEHMEHAE 1,502 5,745
___104478 ___ 112,128
Total liabilities BRERE _ 143,959 139,992
Total equity and liabilities EzRkEEHEE 1,105,663 1,326,158

The consolidated financial statements on page 107 to 213
were approved by the Board of Directors on 25 May 2020

and were signed on its behalf.

James Ngai
157 7 %

Chairman

FE

The notes on pages 114 to 213 are an integral part of
these consolidated financial statements.

le saunda holdings Itd. &8 HTHERR AR A A
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Chui Kwan Ho, Jacky
Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
AR MRS ) R

For the year ended 29 February 2020

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARRRBEAAELR
Non-
Share controlling
capital  Reserves  Sub-total interest Total equity
RA it f& B FERER BER
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AR%Tn AR®Tn AR¥Tn AR%Trn
Balance at 1 March 2018 RZF-\FZA-H 59079 1172351 1232330 10451  1,242781
Comprehensive income FERA
(Loss)/profit for the year ER(ER)/ &7 - (28,032) (28,032) 704 (27,328)
Other comprehensive income At 2ERA
Currency translation differences ERER - 19,918 19,918 - 19,918
Actuarial losses on retirement RABMERZ
benefit obligation REER - (524) (524) - (524)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for  ERZE (B E),/ KA
the year R - (863 (863 704 (7934
Transactions with owners BEBALRS
Dividends [ - 47978 @rote  (105)  (4868)
Balance at 28 February 2019 RZE-NE-A=+)\H
LR 59,979 1,115,737 1,175,716 10,450 1,186,166
Balance at 28 February 2019 RZE-NE-A-+/\H
L% 59,979 1,115,737 1,175,716 10,450 1,136,166
Initial application of HKFRS16 BAEREANBRE
BRI E16% - (2,987) (2,987) - (2,987)
Restated total equity at 1 March 2019 W=Z—-n%=F—H
BRSSO TS0 LT 10480 1163179
Comprehensive income 2EBA
(Loss)/profit for the year ER(ER)/ &5 - (30,519) (30,519) 199 (30,320)
Other comprehensive income A A
Currency translation differences EAER - 23,714 23,714 - 23,714
Actuarial losses on retirement RIRBHERZ
benefit obligation REER - (23) (23) - (29)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for  FRZHE (EE),/ WA
the year T - (6828 (6828 199 (6629)
Transactions with owners BEEAIRS
Dividends - - _(2154_70_) _ _(211,4_70_) L _(3_76_) _ _(215,8_46_)
Balance at 29 February 2020 RZEZTE-A-TNH
L% 59,979 891,452 951,431 10,273 961,704

FNAZ2IBE ZWE R AU BRI

a8y e

The notes on pages 114 to 213 are an integral part of
these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
mallaiaR

For the year ended 29 February 2020
HE_Z_TF_A_+NBILFE

Year ended Year ended
29 February 28 February
2020 2019

BZz HE
—EBE-EFE —T-hF
—A=t+hB ZAZ=+NH

IEFE HEE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

et AR®TR ARETT

Operating activities REEK T
Net cash generated from REXBEE RS FHE

operations 24(a) 101,137 47,937
Hong Kong and overseas taxation B #& & &8 90N 18

paid (17,085) (15,961)
Interest paid 25 B 17 (1,785) -

Net cash generated from operating KEEKEZBELEZRE

activities R . 82267 = 31976
Investing activities REEEH
Interest income on bank deposits & 1717 7% 2 F B U A 5,880 8,308
Other finance income H b B A 2,795 3,200
Purchases of property, plantand BB % - #E MR B

equipment 16 (16,373) (26,068)
Increase in bank deposits with #838 =8 A 2 E B 17 kg

initial term over three months hn (700) (85,000)
Proceeds from disposal of HEME - A%

property, right-of-use assets/ BE/LTHFERER

land use right and investment REME

property 24(b) 70,500 6,000
Proceeds from disposal of plant HE RS R R

and equipment 24(c) 2,139 -
Increase in pledged deposit A 3R 17 FE N (54) (41)

Net cash generated from/(used in) & EBELS (R Z
investing activities e FHE 64,187 (43,601)

The notes on pages 114 to 213 are an integral part of F14E21BE 2 M AARMBwETAIH
these consolidated financial statements. Bz EBm o
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended 29 February 2020

maBlaeiitik

Year ended  Year ended
29 February 28 February
2020 2019
BZ HE
—E-EHF —hEF
ZA=t+thB —AZ+NH
IEFE IEFE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARBTR AR®TT
Financing activities Al & E B
Principal element of lease MENRZEE D
payments (24,191) -
Dividends paid =S (214,388) (49,032)
Dividends paid to non-controlling & 1< JF 2 & # 25 A% 2
interest (376) (705)
Net cash used in financing activities B & & EFE A 2 IR £ %5 __ (288,955)  (49,737)
Net decrease in cash and cash ReERFRRSIEB R D
equivalents i%’r e (92,501) (61,362)
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXREFHTE  F58
changes, net 9,760 13,835
Cash and cash equivalents at FYIzREEERRAS
beginning of year HH 555,596 603,123
Cash and cash equivalents atend FX RS NKERBE S
of year 5 H 23 472,855 555,596

The notes on pages 114 to 213 are an integral part of
these consolidated financial statements.

F4E21IBB 2 AR ISR T D

a8y e
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Le Saunda Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally
engaged in manufacturing and sales of footwear and
accessories. The Group mainly operates in Mainland
China, Hong Kong and Macau.

The Company is a limited liability company
incorporated in Bermuda. The address of its
registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The Company is listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), unless otherwise
stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in
the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the
Group have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountant (“HKICPA”)
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622. The
consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention,
as modified by the revaluation of investment
properties, which are carried at fair value.

le saunda holdings Itd. &8 HTHERR AR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial
statements in conformity with HKFRS requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
[t also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

(a) New and amended standards and
interpretation adopted by the Group
The Group has adopted the following new
and amended standards and interpretation
that have been issued and effective for the
Group’s financial year beginning on or after
1 March 2019:

Amendments to HKFRSs
BB BEREEREE]AX)
HKAS 19 (Amendment)

BB GFERUFE19]R(BET )

HKAS 28 (Amendment)
BB G ERFE285 (BR] A)

HKFRS 9 (Amendment)

A o A R Mk

FTESEHABRERMEE)

21 RREER)

RREEFBYHRE LD —
ZHBmRAERE THEES
At BEEEBENARERA
S B2 BREEL A E -
PRBEEREEHEH RS EM
ZEIS - OF R BERE MR
ZMEBERN 2BERMAERH
B - MOP R4 R -

(a) FEBFHZHED - 15
F AR SR
FREBR-E-AE=H—
Ask > % B0y B BE

AT B B 2
HORA SEZREARR
7

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015 — 2017 Cycle
—E-REE_ZTtLFRPEEVBREENZ
FEME

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement
FFEMEIE ~ BRI BE

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures
REERAIREEEENREER

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

BAMBHRELRBOR(BFIA) ERFBHEZANREN

HKFRS 16 Leases
BBV B W EERFE165] HE

HK (IFRIC) — Int 23

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

ER(BRMGREREZEE) MERGEEI I BEEM

— B EFE235
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A o A AR Mk

2

le saunda holdings Itd.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

@

(b)

New and amended standards and
interpretation adopted by the Group
(Continued)

The Group changed its accounting policies
as a result of adopting HKFRS 16. In
accordance with the transition provisions
of HKFRS 16, the Group has adopted
the modified retrospective application
for existing leases at 1 March 2019 with
certain transition reliefs and under which
comparative figures are not restated.
This is disclosed in Note 2.2 below. Most
of the other amendments listed above
did not have any impact on the amounts
recognised in prior periods and are not
expected to significantly affect the current
or future periods.

New and amended standards and
interpretations not yet adopted

Certain new accounting standards,
amendments to standards and
interpretations have been published that
are not mandatory for the financial year
ended 29 February 2020 and have not
been early adopted by the Group. The
Group’s assessment of the impact of
these new and amended standards and
interpretations is set out below.

A AHERAR AR

2

FTESEHABRERMEE)

241

n R E % ()

@)

(b)

KEB RN FER - 15
T2 BRI R FE(E)

RNEBRKX®E LYK
HELERE165REIE &I
HEBETEFBRER - RER
B B 15 & B 165k 2
BIEGRX > ANEED KA
REEEBR T E - R_F
—NF=R—B BEXZ
HEANBE —EMNBEK&
Mo B REINLEEF -
BEEE BN TP FE2. 28 5B ©
REBm EX Aoz &g
R0 R R I B AR
ANEREXRTERZE -
HFEHAEHEMHI KRR
HIfERERTE -

AR BRA 2 FTET2ER) ~ 15
FTZERIR i FE

AEBWLSBERERME
EHER_ZTE_TF A
T+ N B R E IR A R R
BlEM 2B Tl g%
Al BEl 2 ER RZE -
KEBHZEHMTELEL
BRIz BRI R2ENTE
Z A ES AT o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(b) New and amended standards and

interpretations not yet adopted
(Continueqd)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8
B GFEABIR K FSH (B FEA)

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 7 and
HKFRS 9

BB G ERFEI9% - BAEM K mEEL
BT & F (B TE A)

Amendments to HKFRS 3
BBV BEREEREIFUBEEARN)

Conceptual framework for Financial
Reporting 2018
—E-)\FUBHRE 2B SER

HKFRS 17
BB E LR B175R

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (Amendments)

EBAMERESEINFI0HRLESSTED
F2857 (57T A)

1 Effective for the accounting period beginning on or
after 1 March 2020

2) Effective for the accounting period beginning on or
after 1 March 2021

(3) Effective date to be determined

These standards are not expected to
have a material impact on the entity in the
current or future reporting periods and on
foreseeable future transactions.

A o A R Mk

2 FEEHBRRBMEGE

21 RREER)
(b) [H KR Z FETER - MF
T2 BRI R FE(E)

Definition of Material™
EFEEMNERD

Hedge Accounting®

¥ @ 3 B0

Definition of a Business

EBOEER

Revised Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting™
s 2 BT SELRO

Insurance Contracts®@

(N a=old

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture®

REEHREBERASIEELE ZEN
BEHEHTEO

(1) RZZEZTF=ZA—Hzxz#’
Flia 2 &5 B &£

@ RKR-ZTE-_—F=-F—H=2z2#%
A 2 & 5 B R A

(@) EMEHEBARE

A ERMERFEF S HE
EMHARRBREHE K
AAERKRRXZERERX
=8

=
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A o A AR Mk

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Change in accounting policies

This note explains the impact of the adoption
of HKFRS 16 Leases on the Group’s financial

statements.

As indicated in Note 2.1 above, the Group has
adopted HKFRS 16 Leases retrospectively
from 1 March 2019, but has not restated
comparatives for the 2019 reporting period, as
permitted under the specific transition provisions
in the standard. The reclassifications and the
adjustments arising from the new leasing rules
are therefore recognised in the opening balance
sheet on 1 March 2019. The new accounting

policies are disclosed in Note 2.19.

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group
recognised lease liabilities in relation to
leases which had previously been classified
as “operating leases” under the principles
of HKAS 17 Leases. These liabilities were
measured at the present value of the remaining
lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate as of 1 March 2019.
The weighted average lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate applied to the lease liabilities on

1 March 2019 was 4.44%.

()  Practical expedients applied

In applying HKFRS 16 for the first time,
the Group has used the following practical

expedients permitted by the standard:

o relying on previous assessments on

whether leases are onerous;

° accounting for operating leases with
a remaining lease term of less than 12
months as at 1 March 2019 as short-

term leases;

le saunda holdings Itd. &8 HTHERR AR A A
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FTESEHABRERMEE)

22 B REED

AWEARERNEBSTERS
7 B Z5169% ¥ AN & E B 15 ¥k &k
ZRE

I XK RE2 AR B B —
T-NFZAF—H#E AEEP
B B 5 ERE R F1655%
B 15 2E Bl (N RF TE BB IR XCET R
T AEEERMEETE P
FE BURENZF—NEF
EREHHEOLREFT - AH
HELAMEEZEFTH»ER
ABRR-_ZTE—HhhEF=ZA—HHH
MEEBBRTER - i
BERFEFERT XM FF2.19 ©

RN B B B 7% RS E R E16
g AEEBARZAREERE
S EREI7THRIAE R A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Change in accounting policies
(Continued)

(i)  Practical expedients applied
(Continueqd)

° excluding initial direct costs for the
measurement of the right-of-use asset
at the date of initial application; and

° using hindsight in determining the
lease term where the contract
contains options to extend or
terminate the lease.

The Group has also elected not to reassess
whether a contract is, or contains a lease
at the date of initial application. Instead, for
contracts entered into before the transition
date the Group relied on its assessment
made applying HKAS 17 and HK (IFRIC) —
Int 4 “Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease”.

A o A R Mk

FTESEHABRERMEE)
22 B REEDH (H)

() EHEZEELEGE)

e REXERBHMHEK
B EEK AL E
EREEE M

e MAHNEBEERXK
IEHREREZRE A
RERETHS -

AREBFBDEETEH T
HAENEERNERBSHZ
CHESRGTRSHE-
MR $REBEBBZ
RIEIM A% AEBIK
BEHEABBS S EAE
175 BB (BB B %5 &
REZEO)REBEIANE
TLRHRLBEEREIMEDR
B RE AR ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B B 5 AR B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Change in accounting policies
(Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

le saunda holdings Itd.

Measurement of lease liabilities

2 FEEHBRRBMEGE
22 B REEDH (H)

(i) HEEBEZ:EZ

RMB’000
AREFTT
Operating lease commitments disclosed RZ-ZZ—hLF=-HA=+/\H
as at 28 February 2019 FT#: B8 00 48 & 0 B A 69,735
Discounted using the lessee’s A A AR F G 18 K
incremental borrowing rate and PR YTIR R H IR RN
practical expedients applied upon NEREIEGZE
adoption (16,811)
Less: short-term leases not recognised & TR AEEH
as a liability EHMEE (6,510)
Lease liabilities recognised as at RZE-—NF=ZHA—B®ER
1 March 2019 WEERE 46,414
Of which are: Hebk:
Current lease liabilities nBEEAR 21,861
Non-current lease liabilities FEREBHEHEER 24,553

Measurement of right-of-use assets

The carrying amount of the associated
right-of-use assets were measured as if
the new rule had been applied since the
commencement date, but discounted
using the lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate at the date of initial application in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet. There were
no onerous lease contracts that would have
required an adjustment to the right-of-use
assets at the date of initial application.

A AHERAR AR

46,414

(i) #AEEZEEZFZ
CTREEEMBCREEB
WetEEHaREBHME
JERFER - BfHA
THEEEABRRPER
FE A B AR A B 378 18 3K
FEETHIR - WLBE
BHEHEESHNTEURNE
RERFPHEAESE#

GEEX



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B B 5 AR B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Change in accounting policies
(Continued)

(iv) Adjustments recognised in the
consolidated balance sheet on 1 March
2019

The change in accounting policy affected
the following items in the consolidated
balance sheet on 1 March 2019:

FTESEHABRERMEE)

22 B REEDH (H)

(iv)

E=F-ANF=ZA—A#F

2B EBEE IR
B
CHREREVET

—hWF=ZA-—HBGEEEE

BEXRTHTIIIER :

Before After
adoption adoption
Consolidated Balance Sheet BREERER 1 March Adoption of 1 March
(extract) (F8) 2019 HKFRS 16 2019
—E-NF EBME —T-NEF
=A—-H | ER =A—H
ERA F16KER ER#%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR%®FTnT ARETR
Non-current assets kRBEE
Right-of-use assets TRAEEE - 63,869 63,869
Land use rights T e A 20,442 (20,442) -
Total assets BEE 1,326,158 43,427 1,369,585
Non-current liabilities k¥REBEE
Lease liabilities HMEER - 24,553 24,553
Current liabilities RBEE
Lease liabilities HEBE - 21,861 21,861
Total liabilities Ber 139,992 46,414 186,406
Equity i
Reserves 1 1,115,737 (2,987) 1,112,750
Total equity R 1,186,166 (2,987) 1,183,179
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A o A AR Mk

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Change in accounting policies

(Continued)

(v) Lessor accounting

The Group did not need to make any
adjustments to the accounting for assets
held as lessor under operating leases as a
result of the adoption of HKFRS 16.

2.3 Subsidiaries
2.3.1 Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including
structured entities) over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an
entity where the Group is exposed to,
or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its
power to direct the activities of the entity.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the
date that control ceases.

Intercompany transactions, balances
and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and
equity of subsidiaries are shown separately
in the consolidated income statement,
statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and balance
sheet respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.3.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(@)

Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting
is used to account for all business
combinations, regardless of whether
equity instruments or other assets
are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary comprises the:

° fair values of the assets
transferred;

o liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquired business;

° equity interests issued by the
Group;

° fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement; and

° fair value of any pre-existing
equity interest in the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination
are, with limited exceptions,
measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The Group
recognises any non-controlling
interests in the acquired entity on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis either
at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of
the acquired entity’s net identifiable
assets. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B B 5 AR B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.3.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(@)

le saunda holdings Itd.

Business combinations (Continued)

The excess of the:
° consideration transferred;

e amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquired entity;
and

e  acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the
acquired entity.

over the fair value of the net identifiable
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If those amounts are less than the fair
value of the net identifiable assets of
the business acquired, the difference is
recognised directly in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash
consideration is deferred, the amounts
payable in the future are discounted
to their present value as at the date
of exchange. The discount rate used
is the entity’s incremental borrowing
rate, being the rate at which a similar
borrowing could be obtained from
an independent financier under
comparable terms and conditions.
Contingent consideration is classified
either as equity or a financial liability.
Amounts classified as a financial
liability are subsequently remeasured
to fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.3.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(0)

Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without change of control

The Group treats transactions with
non-controlling interests that do
not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the
Group. A change in ownership interest
results in an adjustment between the
carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests to reflect
their relative interests in the subsidiary.
Any difference between the amount
of the adjustment to non-controlling
interests and any consideration paid
or received is recognised in a separate
reserve within equity attributable to
owners of the Company.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have
control, any retained interest in the
entity is re-measured to its fair value
at the date when control is lost,
with the change in carrying amount
recognised in the consolidated income
statement. The fair value is the initial
carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities. It means the amounts
previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified
to the profit or loss or transferred
to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B B 5 AR B

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.3 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.3.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted
for at cost less impairment. Cost includes
direct attributable costs of investment. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving
a dividend from these investments if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

2.4 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance
of the operating segments, has been identified
as the executive directors that makes strategic
decisions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.5 Foreign currency translation

@)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements
of each of the Group’s entities are
measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are
presented in RMB, which is the Group’s
presentation currency and the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency using
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions or valuation where items
are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are generally recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Non-monetary items that are measured
at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was determined.
Translation differences on assets and
liabilities carried at fair value are reported
as part of the fair value gain or loss. For
example, translation differences on non-
monetary assets and liabilities such as
equities held at fair value through the profit
or loss are recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of the fair value
gain or loss and translation differences
on non-monetary assets such as equities
classified as fair value through other
comprehensive income are recognised in
other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A o A AR Mk

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all
the group entities that have a functional
currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

() assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

(i)  income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are
translated at the rate on the dates of
the transactions); and

(i) all resulting currency translation
differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

On consolidated, exchange differences
arising from the translation of the net
investment in foreign operations are taken
to other comprehensive income. When a
foreign operation is partially disposed of
or sold, exchange differences that were
recorded in equity are recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of
the gain or loss on sale.
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2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.6 Investment properties

Investment properties, principally comprising
leasehold land and buildings, are held for long-
term rental yields or for capital appreciation or
both, and that are not occupied by the Group.

Land held under operating leases are accounted
for as investment properties when the rest of
the definition of an investment property is met.
In such cases, the operating leases concerned
are accounted for as if they were finance leases.

Investment properties are initially measured at
cost, including related transaction costs and

where applicable borrowing costs.

After initial recognition, investment properties
are carried at fair value, representing open
market value determined at each financial year
end by external valuers. Fair value is based on
active market prices, adjusted, if necessary,
for any difference in the nature, location or
condition of the specific asset. If the information
is not available, the Group uses alternative
valuation methods such as recent prices on
less active markets or discounted cash flow

projections.

Changes in fair values are recorded in the
consolidated income statement as part of a

valuation gain or loss in “other losses, net”.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing the proceeds with the carrying
amount and are recognised within “other losses,

net” in the consolidated income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold land classified as finance lease
and all other property, plant and equipment
are stated at historical cost less depreciation.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised
when replaced. All other repair and maintenance
costs are charged to the consolidated income
statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Leasehold land classified as finance lease
commences amortisation from the time when
the land interest becomes available for its
intended use. Amortisation on leasehold land
classified as finance lease and depreciation on
other assets is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their cost to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, at the
following annual rates:

Leasehold land

HE i

Land and buildings

+ i KRB F

Leasehold improvements
MEEE

12 78 8

Plant and machinery 10%
1 28 I 5k 10%
Furniture and fixtures 20%-33.3%
HKMEEE 20%-33.3%
Motor vehicles 20%
ME 20%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.7

2.8

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end
of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing the proceeds with the carrying
amounts and are recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
of disposal to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets that
suffered impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at the end of each
reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B B 5 AR B

2

le saunda holdings Itd.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.9 Investment and other financial assets

@)

(b)

©

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in
the category of those to be measured at
amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group’s
business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows.

The Group reclassified debt investments
when and only when its business model for
managing those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on trade-
date, the date on which the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets
have expired or have been transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures
a financial asset at its fair value plus
transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt
instruments depends on the Group’s
business model for managing the asset and
the cash flow characteristics of the asset.
The Group classified its debt instruments
as financial assets at amortised cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.9 Investment and other financial assets
(Continued)

©

(@)

Measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest are measured at amortised
cost. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using
the effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in the profit or loss and
presented in “other losses, net” together
with foreign exchange gains and losses.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses on a forward
looking basis the expected credit loss
(“ECL”) associated with its assets carried
at amortised cost. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies
the simplified approach permitted by
HKFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables.

Impairment on other receivables is
measured as either 12-month ECL or
lifetime ECL, depending on whether there
has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. If a significant
increase in credit risk of a receivable has
occurred since initial recognition, then
impairment is measured as lifetime ECL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B B 5 AR B

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.10 Offsetting financial instruments

2.1

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the
net amount reported in the consolidated balance
sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset the recognised amounts, and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The
legally enforceable right must not be contingent
on future events and must be enforceable in the
normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group
of the counterparty.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using
the first-in, first-out (“FIFO”) method. The cost of
finished goods and work in progress comprises
design costs, raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads
(based on normal operating capacity). It
excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.

2.12 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from
customers for goods sold in the ordinary course
of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or
in the normal operating cycle of the business if
longer), they are classified as current assets. If
not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less allowance for impairment.
See Note 2.9 for further information about
the Group’s accounting for trade and other
receivables for a description of the Group’s
impairment policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in
hand, deposits held at call with banks and other
short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less.

2.14 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

2.15 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods
or services that have been acquired in the
ordinary course of business from suppliers.
Trade and other payables are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one
year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of
the business if longer). If not, they are presented
as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

2.16 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense for the year
comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case, the
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.16 Current and deferred income tax

(Continued)

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Company,
its subsidiaries and joint venture operate
and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable consolidated income
statement. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or
the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax liabilities in relation to investment
properties that are measured at fair value are
determined assuming the properties will be
recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised
only to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.16 Current and deferred income tax

(Continued)

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except for deferred income tax
liability where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group
and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income tax
assets and liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either
the taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the balances
on a net basis.

2.17 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation as
a result of past events; it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required
in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow
with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B B 5 AR B

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.17 Provisions (Continued)

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditures
required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period. The discount rate
used to determine the present value is a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific
to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

2.18 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sale
of goods in the ordinary course of the Group’s
activities. Revenue is shown net of value-added
tax, returns, rebates and discounts and after
eliminating sales within the Group.

Sales of goods are recognised at a point in time
when a group entity has delivered products
to the customer; the customer has accepted
the products and collectability of the related
receivables is reasonably assured.

(a) Sales of goods — retail and
concessionaire sales

Revenue from sales of goods including retail
and concessionaire sales is recognised
when control of the products has
transferred, which generally coincides with
the time when the goods are delivered to
customers and title has passed.

le saunda holdings Itd. &8 HTHERR AR A A

2

FTESEHABRERMEE)

217 B & (&)
RMEH  BEXREBEERE
HE Lﬁ;&ﬁﬁbﬁ?szﬁﬁ
FECHEREIIREAE

AN ERREEREEENE
T?cﬁﬁﬂbﬂ’ﬁﬁﬁvﬁ EREI
DR BR5 i 4 25 1T 28 B30 8% 5 48
MERAMBRX -

218l HER

BB IREAEERE -REK
BRREPHEZEREREZE
Hﬁlﬁf‘”ﬁlﬁfﬁzﬂﬂ?ﬁﬁio
WaEMEEER RE- O
DR LA&%E@E%IW%B
HWERZFEIR -

EmHEREBRERERER
Fl REFEKRERLITAESIE
T R °] UK 2] AR B LA 3K IR I AR

=7
Ao

(@ #HEEm — TEREFFH

=EETE
&ﬁﬁ?%’%ﬁ’\\fmﬂﬂ il
BEBERER —MREE
mMEXBERENEREER
R FFEST ©



2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.18 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(b) Sales of goods — internet sales

Revenue from the sale of goods on the
internet is recognised at the point that
the control of the inventory have passed
to the customer, which is the point of
dispatch. Transactions are settled by credit
or payment card. Provisions are made for
internet credit notes based on the expected
level of returns, which in turn is based upon
the historical rate of returns.

2.19 Leases

As explained in Note 2.2 above, the Group has
changed its accounting policy for leases where
the Group is the lessee. The new policy is
described below and the impact of the change
in Note 2.2.

Until 28 February 2019, leases in which a
significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership were not transferred to the Group as
lessee were classified as operating leases (Note
30). Payments made under operating leases
were charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease.

From 1 March 2019, leases are recognised as a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability
at the date at which the leased asset is available
for use by the Group.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are
initially measured on a present value basis.
Lease liabilities include the net present value of
the fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.19 Leases (Continued)

The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate
cannot be readily determined, the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate is used, being the
rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an
asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset
in a similar economic environment with similar
terms, security and conditions.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost
comprising the amount of the initial measurement
of lease liability and any lease payments made at
or before the commencement date.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated
over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the
lease term on a straight-line basis. If the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase
option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over
the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of
store premises are recognised on a straight-
line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-
term leases are leases with a lease term of 12
months or less.

Lease income from operating leases where the
Group is a lessor is recognised in income on
a straight-line basis over the lease term. The
respective leased assets are included in the
balance sheet based on their nature. The Group
did not need to make any adjustments to the
accounting for assets held as lessor as a result
of adopting the new leasing standard.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.20 Interest income

Interest income on financial assets at amortised
cost calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

Interest income is presented as finance income
where it is earned from financial assets that are
held for cash management purposes, see Note
8 below. Any other interest income is included in
other income.

2.21 Employee benefits
(@) Employee benefit entitlements

Salaries, bonuses, annual leave and the
cost of other benefits to the Group are
accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by the employees of
the Group.

(b) Pension obligations

The Group contributes to a mandatory
provident fund scheme which is a defined
contribution retirement scheme and
available to all Hong Kong employees. Both
the Company and the staff are required to
contribute 5% of the employees’ relevant
income with a ceiling of HK$1,500 per
month to the MPF scheme. Staff may
elect to contribute more than the minimum
as a voluntary contribution. The Group’s
contributions to this mandatory provident
fund scheme are expensed as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B B 5 AR B

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.21 Employee benefits (Continued)
(b) Pension obligations (Continued)

The Group also contributes to pension schemes
established by municipal governments in
respect of certain subsidiaries in Mainland
China. The municipal governments undertake
to assume the retirement benefit obligations
of all existing and future retired employees
of the Group. Contributions to these
schemes are charged to the consolidated
income statement as incurred.

The liability or asset recognised in the
balance sheet in respect of defined benefit
pension plans is the present value of the
defined benefit obligation at the end of
the reporting period less the fair value of
plan assets. The defined benefit obligation
is calculated annually by independent
actuaries using the projected unit credit
method.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising
from experience adjustments and changes
in actuarial assumptions are recognised
in the period in which they occur, directly
in other comprehensive income. They
are included in retained earnings in the
statement of changes in equity and in the
balance sheet.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.22 Share-based payments

@)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

The Group operates a number of equity-
settled, share-based compensation plans,
under which the entity receives services
from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair
value of the employee services received
in exchange for the grant of the options
is recognised as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options
granted:

o including any market performance
conditions (for example, an entity’s
share price);

e excluding the impact of any service
and non-market performance vesting
conditions (for example, profitability,
sales growth targets and remaining
employee of the entity over a specified
time period); and

o including the impact of any non-
vesting conditions (for example, the
requirement for employees to save).

At the end of each reporting period, the
Group revises its estimates of the number
of options that are expected to vest based
on the non-marketing performance and
service conditions. It recognises the impact
of the revision to original estimates, if any,
in the consolidated income statement, with
a corresponding adjustment to equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B B 5 AR B

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.22 Share-based payments (Continued)
(a) Equity-settled share-based payment

transactions (Continued)

In addition, in some circumstances
employees may provide services in
advance of the grant date and therefore
the grant date fair value is estimated for
the purposes of recognising the expense
during the period between service
commencement period and grant date.

When the options are exercised, the
company issues new shares. The proceeds
received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share
capital and share premium.

If the vested equity instruments are
later lapsed and are not exercised, the
corresponding amount recognised for
services received from an employee is
transferred from employees’ share-based
compensation reserve to retained earnings.

2.23 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s
shareholders is recognised as a liability in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements and
the Company’s financial statements in the
period in which the dividends are approved by
the Company’s shareholders or directors, and
no longer of the discretion of the Company,

where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B B 5 AR B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHHEBEE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.24 Government grants

2.24 FF A BY

Grants from the government are recognised
at their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grants will be received
and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred
and recognised in the income statement over
the period necessary to match them with the
costs that they are intended to compensate.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (included foreign
exchange risk and interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk.

The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of the financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance.

Risk management is carried out under policies
approved by the directors of the Company.
The directors provide principles for an overall
risk management, as well as policies covering
specific areas.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B B 5 AR B

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk

(1)

le saunda holdings Itd.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong
Kong and Mainland China with most
of the transactions settled in HKS$,
US$ and RMB. The Group is exposed
to foreign exchange risk arising mainly
from the exposure of HK$ and US$
against RMB as the majority of the
Group’s financial assets and liabilities
including deposits in banks, trade
receivables and trade payables are
denominated in HK$ and US$.

The Group manages its foreign
exchange risk by performing regular
reviews of the Group’s net foreign
exchange exposures and it has not
hedged its foreign exchange rate risk.

At 29 February 2020, if HK$ had
strengthened/weakened by 3%
against the RMB with all other
variables held constant, loss for the
year would have been approximately
RMB536,000 lower/higher (2019:
loss for the year would have been
approximately RMB1,422,000 lower/
higher) mainly as a result of foreign
exchange gains/losses on translation
of HK$ denominated deposits in
banks, trade receivables and trade
payables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(1)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

At 29 February 2020, if US$ had
strengthened/weakened by 3%
against the RMB with all other
variables held constant, loss for the
year would have been approximately
RMB3,739,000 lower/higher (2019:
loss for the year would have been
approximately RMB6,660,000 lower/
higher) mainly as a result of foreign
exchange gains/losses on translation
of US$ denominated deposits in banks
and trade payables.

The foreign exchange risk arising
from the exposure of other foreign
currencies is considered to be
minimal.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating
cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market
interest rates as the Group has no
significant interest-bearing assets
and liabilities except for the deposits
in banks, details of which have been
disclosed in Note 23. The interest rate
risk is considered to be insignificant.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B B 5 AR B

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk

The carrying amounts of the trade and
other receivables (Note 22), pledged bank
deposits and cash and bank balances
(Note 23) included in the consolidated
balance sheet represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation
to its financial assets.

Sales to retail customers are made in
cash or via major credit cards. The Group
has policies in place to ensure that sales
of products on credit terms are made
to customers with an appropriate credit
history and the Group performs periodic
credit evaluations of its customers. The
Group’s concessionaire sales through
department stores are generally collectible
within 30 to 60 days from the invoice date
while credit sales are generally on credit
terms within 90 days. Normally the Group
does not require collaterals from trade
debtors. The Group’s historical experience
in collection of trade and other receivables
falls within the recorded allowances and the
directors are of the opinion that adequate
provision for uncollectible receivables has
been made.

Substantially all the deposits with banks
are held in international financial institutions
located in Hong Kong and Mainland China,
which management believes are of high
credit quality. The Group has a policy to
limit the amount of credit exposure to any
financial institution and management does
not expect any losses arising from non-
performance by these counterparties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A B AR P
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HXREKREREGE)

(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

31 HEEAKRREE(E)
(b) EEREE (&)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measure expected credit
losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivable.

TRLEERE

BB SEEREMS
AEEBXRBEBYBRE
R FEIFPT L RFZ BT
ZERERHEEER &%
EEEEARETERE

BRI -
To measure the expected credit losses, RITEEHEEESE ¥
trade receivables has been grouped based SEWBERIEE B IE R M
on the ageing and shared credit risk HEEERRES4E -

characteristics.

The expected loss rates are based on the
payment profiles of sales over a period of
36 months before 29 February 2020 and
28 February 2019, and the corresponding
historical credit losses experienced within
this period. The historical loss rates are
adjusted to reflect current and forward
looking information on macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the customers
on an individual or collective basis, to settle
the receivables.

BHEBEEBEXREN-_ZT=-F
F_A-t+hBER=Z—A
F-A-+/\HAI36ME AR
HE MBI A & B ME
BENHEEELEEER
ME-BREEBBEXD
EHAE  URMFEE
B ERBERNERLIM
JE U 3K BE 1 &9 & A A A AE
MEBREREZEM -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BR A B R R B
3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MEEEREEGE)
(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 314 MXEAKREZ(E)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) FEEE (&)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) SREERBEE)
On that basis, the loss allowance on FUHERF BREKER
collective basis as at 29 February 2020 EMHEEEGN BN
and 28 February 2019 were determined as E-EE-_RA-t+hhB R
follows for trade receivables: E-NF-_A=+N\H #H
SEWEBEBEERET
m
31-60 61-90  Over 90
1-30 days days past days past days past
Current  past due due due due Total
U8 1230k 31260k 61290%k 90AM L Ch
R-B-%f RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
As at 29 February 2020 ZB=thH ARETR AR¥Tn ARMTR AR%Tn ARETR AR%Tn
Expected loss rate EHEEX 1.6% 42%  1.2%  34%  95.0%
Gross carrying amount BEEE
— trade receivables - BIRNER 40,534 7,345 3,340 447 6,592 58,258
Loss allowance BEER 629 308 373 139 6,260 7,709
31-60 61-90 Over 90
1-30days  dayspast  dayspast  days past
Current  past due due due due Total
0% 120F  3E60K  61Z0X  W0RME st
RIE-NE RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
As at 28 February 2019 ZA-tNA ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETRT ARET:R
Expected loss rate kil g b 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 00%  1000%
Gross carrying amount BEEE
— trade receivables - BORNEE 61,588 6,312 1,999 2,333 5454 77,686
Loss allowance BEER - - - - 5,454 5,454
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A B AR P
3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HXREKREREGE)

(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 A KREE(E)

(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EEREE (&)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) SREEREE)

The loss allowances for trade receivables as
at 29 February 2020 and 28 February 2019
reconcile to the opening loss allowances as

R_E-_FF - H_-+NH
r=FE—-NF-_A=-1+NH"
E 5 BRTA B 18 %

follows: HyEBEERERNAT:
2020 2019
—E-ERF —T-NF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
e AR®FTR AREBFTT
At beginning of year F 9] 5,454 980
Write-off as uncollectable 55 S AT Ug Bl @ BE - (980)
Write-back on recovery of 1 [B] £ BR £ ]
bad debts 7 (332) -
Increase in loss allowance FRNEFEEERK
recognised in the FRERREEE
consolidated income Rl
statement during the year 7 2,587 5,454
At end of year F 4R 7,709 5,454

For other financial assets at amortised
cost, management considers that its credit
risk has not increased significantly since
initial recognition with reference to the
counterparty historical default rate and
current financial position. The impairment
provision is determined based on the
12-month expected credit losses which is
immaterial.

REERANEMSRE
EME BEBEEZ2ERYH
HFNELENXRKER
BRI BT HERIE
RARHEEERBRY KRB B
ZIE - BEBEERE
REAEREEBEEETE
ZEREEBEBRLIEKX -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BR A B R R B
3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MEEEREEGE)
(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 314 MXEAKREZ(E)
(c) Liquidity risk (c) mEBEZERE
Prudent liquidity risk management includes EENRHELERE IR
maintaining sufficient cash, which is BiEHEFZRERE e (XEH
mainly generated from the operating cash KERSMEE) WK E
flow, and the availability of funding from BRVEEAEEZERE
an adequate amount of committed credit NHEEAIEHIHEE S - K
facilities. The Group aims to maintain EERHEFTSHANS
flexibility in funding by keeping committed AEZERE  REES
credit lines available. 1 fig 28 o
The table below analyses the Group’s TEREBAEBENTHBEE
financial liabilities into relevant maturity EHEEHES YT A
groupings based on the remaining period B ER T HAR o 47 & M8 B
at the balance sheet date to the contractual AR - RANFTIEES
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in BEXHOXRTEEBE SN - H
the table are the contractual undiscounted RITRFEDTK R12f
cash flows. Balances due within 12 months ARAEHNESESENE
equal their carrying balances as the impact BRMEAS R -
of discounting is not significant.
Between Between
Less than iand2 2and5 Over
1 year years years  byears Total
-£Z MEZ
-ENR MEZH ILFfeHE BBIE hH
R-B-%F RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
As at 29 February 2020 —“B=+hH ARBTT AR%Tn AR¥Tn AR¥TR AR%Tn
Trade and other payables ERESRER
At e ERIE 66,056 - - - 66,056
Lease liabilities HEAR 18,654 4,695 7,536 3,381 34,266
84,710 4,695 7,536 3,381 100,322
Between Between
Less than 1and?2 2and 5 Over
1 year years years 5 years Total
—5% MEZE
—E0A  mMEH  AFEzB  BARE @5t
RZF-N%F RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
As at 28 February 2019 —E=t/\R ARBTT ARBTT ARETRT ARBTT ARETR
Trade and other payables ERESHRER
EfEAERE 82,359 - - - 82,359
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group manages the capital structure and
make adjustments to it in the light of changes
in economic conditions. In order to maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payments to shareholders,
obtain new bank borrowings, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares.

The table below analyses the Group’s capital
structure as at 29 February 2020:

A o A R Mk

3 HMBRAREREGE

3.2 EXERER
AEBEREERN UREXR
SERREIFELKE  BERR
R B 5 10 & 1R AR [ 3% S B 2 -
R ERREEAGREARK
BRI »

AEEEREERARE  LRIE
RERREPFELHAE - B
FRABABEANGERE AKEEN
EHEBERTHRRORE 28
REHRITER SEXRE
PR B ATHRIAR -

RZZBE_ZTF_A-+hARB" T
REAEBENEREBE DT

T

2020 2019
—F-%F TR
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBTT
Cash and cash equivalents RekERIREER 472,855 555,596

Bank deposits with initial term HIR & =8 A IR1TF
over three months 35,700 35,000
Pledged deposits BIEIFRITER 719 665
Net cash position FIR e 509,274 591,261
Total equity B 961,704 1,186,166
Total capital BER 1,470,978 1,777,427

As at 29 February 2020, the Group maintained
a net cash position of RMB509,274,000 (2019:
RMB591,261,000).

RZFE-_TF_A-_+ 1A
AEBHFTIFHREARE
509,274,000(—ZE — N E: AR
#591,261,000) °
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or
liabilities within the next financial year are discussed
below.

(a) Useful lives of property, plant and

equipment

The Group’s management determines the
estimated useful lives of its property, plant
and equipment. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives of
property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. Management will increase the
depreciation charge where useful lives are less
than previously estimated, and will write-off or
write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.

(b) Impairment of non-financial assets

The impairment loss for non-financial assets,
comprising property, plant and equipment and
land use rights, is recognised as the amount
by which the carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in Notes 2.7 to 2.8.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in
use, which are based on the best information
available to reflect the amount obtainable at
each balance sheet date, from the disposal of
the asset in an arm’s length transaction between
knowledgeable, willing parties, after deducting
the costs to disposal.

le saunda holdings Itd. &8 HTHERR AR A A

4

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B B 5 AR B

FESEH AR AE

etk HE SEFENE  LRE
BEERLAMAR(BRBAHEER
HERLTAEEGEHEEENARAR
EMH)MIE

AEEELABEARRE G RERR -
BERE MEEGEAHAERS
REMERGR -GHFEEREEN
BEREERNT BV RFELR
B AT ER RO MG MR
T o

(@) W% HEERRBENITERF
4
AEEEEBEETAREYE
sl REOEEAERER -
AR DRBE AL E R Ae
MYE BEhREBEBENE
BRA s A A E o fie A fE AR
FHIRERGETFH - AE
2 E A IR AT E 0 I
M MEEERER L ENBE
BT IFREEMEE E -

(b) k&BMEERE
FEeMEERBEEE BED
¥ OMBEREBER I EPAE -
1B M 5F2.722.8F7 & & 5T &
KEWE BBELIZENE
HEERETKE €3 A #E
REBEZBAREER - Tk
CleBEAEEERNTFERBMEEK
AEEEFREMERIRS
BB REE RN KB
MERBBEMNSHZAFRA
ETRSULEEE T LNR
HEXARERSEEB ]G
ey



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Taxes

The Group is subject to various taxes in Hong
Kong, Macau and Mainland China. Significant
judgement is required in determining the
provision for these taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences or tax losses can
be utilised. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, such differences will
impact the recognition of deferred tax assets
and taxation in the periods in which such
estimate is changed.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less estimated costs of completion
and selling expenses. These estimates are
based on current market conditions and the
historical experience of manufacturing and
selling products of similar nature. Management
reassesses the estimation at each balance sheet
date.

A o A R Mk

4 FEGEHEERHAE ()

(c)

(d)

BE

REBMEBEERE BFIEPH
AESWZEREB BEENLSE
IR EEL E K HIE -
REEEKBRET TR H5R
ATEMRAHIBETE REEE -
WMEEEENERHIBEEZY
RENEeBETIR EEEEB
FETEBMNBIEEE -

?/Eﬂ

EEEEBRSAIRAERE
Xﬁ%%ﬁuﬁ%*Xﬁ%m
wAE - BERE TEREZR
MBEELCHEREAEENMKEF
BE - MBMERERSAR
ERZESTERFTHLEAEED
HAMELEHSREEE MK
I/E:E}jﬁﬁﬁ/u °

FENURRFE
FEMNAERFERATER
B2 AR TS B R E ET T K
MARBEERZ - LFEMETTY
$ETFEHI JULA K B iE K E

BFUHEERNBAELR - &
ﬁ%&%ﬂ%iaiﬁ%ﬁﬁ
B ET ©
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments
based on the reports reviewed by the executive
directors that are used to make strategic decisions.

The executive directors review the Group’s financial
information mainly from a retail and non-retail
perspective. For the retail business, the executive
directors further assess the performance of
operations on a geographical basis (Mainland China,
Hong Kong and Macau respectively). The reportable
segments are classified in a manner consistent with
the information reviewed by the executive directors.

The executive directors assess the performance
of the operating segments based on a measure of
reportable segment loss. This measurement basis
excludes other income (excluding government
incentives), other losses, net (excluding gain on early
termination of leases), finance income, net, and
unallocated expenses.

Segment assets mainly exclude deferred income
tax assets and other assets that are managed on a
central basis.

Segment liabilities mainly exclude current income tax
liabilities, deferred income tax liabilities and other
liabilities that are managed on a central basis.

In respect of geographical segment reporting, sales
are based on the country in which the customer is
located, and total assets and capital expenditure are
based on the country where the assets are located.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(1)

A o A R Mk

5 WaRkIBEHGE)

The segment information provided to the (i)
executive directors for the reportable segments
for the year ended 29 February 2020 is as

MHTEERBIERAHE-F
—E2E-AtARLEEZT
ESRHWLHEERMT :

follows:
Retail Others Total
2L Rt B
Mainland
China HK & Macau
TEAE EBRREM
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR¥TR AR¥TR AR%Txn
Revenue from external customers MREEZ &R 705,621 30,766 - 736,387
Reportable segment loss 2RI EER (10,235) (16,479) - (26,714)
Other income (excluding government ~ E i Yt A (R BIEH R
incentives) i) 81
Other losses, net (excluding gainon £ 51 » FB(FEHE
early termination of leases) RALIHESHN
) (1,814)
Finance income, net BBBA 58 6,890
Unallocated expenses APERX 283
Loss before income tax BEEHAER (21,274)
Income tax expense BT (9,046)
Loss for the year ERER (30,320)
Depreciation and amortisation FTERSEH 39,471 10,919 - 50,390
Impairment loss on property, plant ~ #1%  WERRERES
and equipment & 9,182 792 - 9,974
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets 1# F €& E FiEE & 6,339 5,607 - 11,946
Additions to non-current assets (other 3k EEERE (BT
than deferred income tax assets) GHEZERMN 32,074 - - 32,074
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A o A AR Mk

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(i) The segment information provided to the
executive directors for the reportable segments
for the year ended 28 February 2019 is as

5 WaRkIBEHGE)

(i

MATESREIEAEZ_Z
—NEFE-_AZ-+N\HIEFEE 29
ESRHWLHEERMT :

follows:
Retall Others Total
& Hith 2%
Mainland
China HK & Macau
TEAE  ABEREM
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT AR%T:
Revenue from external customers MREEZ W& 850,949 57,835 - 908,784
Reportable segment loss T2RNEER (10,551) (6,891) - (17,442)
Other income (excluding government ~ E i Yt A (R BIEH R
incentives) i) 78
Other losses, net AEE  F8 (7,226)
Finance income, net BEMA T8 11,508
Unallocated expenses RAERX (357)
Loss before income tax BEGHAER (13,439)
Income tax expense FER% (13,889)
Loss for the year FRER (27,328)
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH 31,858 1,784 - 33,642
Additions to non-current assets (other iR B4 E R E GEITFf
than deferred income tax assets) BHRBEERN 23,482 2,586 - 26,068

For the years ended 29 February 2020 and
28 February 2019, revenues from external
customers are mainly derived from the Group’s
own brands, le saunda, le saunda MEN, LINEA
ROSA, PITTI DONNA and CNE.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fr A B A R R e
5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WBEERTEER(H)

(CONTINUED)

(i) An analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities iy R—FE-_TF-_A-t+hH X«
as at 29 February 2020 by reportable segment EEERARERHmoBE D EBEE
is set out below: LBESWHT:

Retail Others Total
BE Hitr an
Mainland

China HK & Macau

hEAE ERREM
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTn AR%Tn AR%Tr AR¥ETx
Segment assets PEREE 773,649 240,541 - 1,014,190
Deferred income tax assets EERBHELE 55,332
Unallocated assets ROBEE 36,141

Total assets per consolidated GAEEEBRZEE

balance sheet g 1,105,663
Segment liabilities TEEE 102,275 14,885 - 117,160
Current income tax liabilities EHREHAR 1,502
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFEHEERE 24,757
Unallocated liabilities ROMEE 540

Total liabilities per consolidated 4AZEEERzEE
balance sheet g 143,959

~
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fr A B 7 e PR
5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WBEERTEER(H)

(CONTINUED)

(iv) An analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities vy RZZE—hNhF-_A=-+NA\H =&
as at 28 February 2019 by reportable segment EEERARERHmoBE D EBEE
is set out below: NBESHOT:

Retall Others Total
L& it B
Mainland
China  HK & Macau
mEARE  FEREM
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR
Segment assets NEEE 929,287 314,366 145 1,243,798
Deferred income tax assets EEMEHEEE 54,302
Unallocated assets AOREE 28,058
Total assets per consolidated GAEERRBRZEAE
balance sheet ax 1,326,158
Segment liabilties ARAR 99,521 6,005 13 105,539
Current income tax liabilities EHREHARE 5,745
Deferred income tax liabilities EEMEHEAR 27,869
Unallocated liabilities APORERE 839
Total liabilties per consolidated LAEERBRZER
balance sheet B 139,992
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For the years ended 29 February 2020 and 28
February 2019, there was no transaction with a
single external customer that amounted to 10%
or more of the Group’s revenue.

AR A B S R B
5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WakoEERGE
(CONTINUED)
(v) The analysis of revenue from external customers V) AEBZAUZHRHOEE H 2K
by geographical segments is as follows: BINRERPIZIINT -
2020 2019
—EB-BHE —T-AF
RMB’000 RMB’000
Revenue W = AR¥T T AR®ETF T
Mainland China A K P 705,621 850,949
Hong Kong BB 27,904 54,550
Macau JE P 2,862 3,285
Total HET 736,387 908,784

BHE-_Z-_FTF_A-+hLBK
—E-HNE-_RA-t+NBILEE -
WEESE - IIREPETELEHE

5 o

EAREB W ZF10% L A E B
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162

Fr A B 7 e PR
5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WHEkoBEERE)

(CONTINUED)

(vij An analysis of the non-current assets (other vii REBIZAZFHEE D2k
than deferred tax assets) of the Group by mEHEE(RLERESEHRBEEER
geographical segments is as follows: INZ DT

2020 2019

—E-EH —ET-NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

Non-current assets ERBEE AR T AREF T
Mainland China o B K R 92,779 151,262
Hong Kong BB 5,403 13,937
Macau B 73,181 69,541
Total BEt 171,363 234,740

le saunda holdings Itd.
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A o A R Mk

OTHER INCOME AND OTHER LOSSES, NET 6 HMtWARHMER F8E
2020 2019
—ECEHF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR T T
Other income H g A
Gross rental income from KEMEZ
investment properties HeBRHA 81 78
Government incentives K T #78 Bh 7,508 15,166
7,589 15,244
Other losses, net HihgEE - F8
Fair value losses on investment KEMELNFEER
properties (Note 15) (K1 7E15) - (6,909)
Net exchange losses (Note) fEHEE - F5
(K1 at) (7,457) (4,531)
Gain on disposal of property, HEYSE - FRE
right-of-use assets/land use BE T Ak
right and investment property PNEE- I ES €
(Note 24 (b)) (K1 5#24(b)) 5,643 4,214
Gain on early termination of IRAMREHESHIK
leases (Note 17) @ (M at17) 220 -
(1,594) (7,226)

Note: Net exchange losses arose from the settlement of transactions
denominated in foreign currencies and from the translation at
year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities,
including inter-company balances, denominated in foreign
currencies.

Wi REIEHERZEEREFREXR
BHUSN Bt EcEBEERAGEERE
KERREERMELEZELBRF
e

annual report 3k 2020

163



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BR A B S R B
7 EXPENSES BY NATURE 7 RMBESEZEAX
Expenses included in cost of sales, impairment HABERAN - B EWEBRRMES
losses on trade receivables, net, selling and B FE HELDHEASZIMN KK
distribution expenses, and general and administrative TERY 2SO :
expenses are analysed as follows:
2020 2019
—E-EHF — N
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTET
Auditors’ remuneration % AT B &
— Audit services — Z B R 1,814 1,912
— Non-audit services — R BRT 225 228
Amortisation of land use rights TP AR
(Note 18) (#t &t 18) - 791
Depreciation of property, plant and ME HERBEITE
equipment (Note 16) (H1z#16) 25,348 32,851
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FTRHEEERE
(Note 17) (Kfat17) 25,042 -
Loss on write off/disposal of plant and ~ #fi$4 / H & # 22 &
equipment (Note 24(c)) BB EE (B E24(c) 8,869 3,725
Cost of sales 5 & B AR 279,912 338,568
Operating lease rentals in respect of T REF LR
land and buildings e
— minimum lease payments — KM 2B - 52,230
— contingent rents — ZRHE - 1,299
Expenses relating to short-term leases %2 ﬁﬁ KEHERI R
and variable lease payments AEEENK 117,998 -
Freight charges B % 7,038 8,841
Postage and express charges IR RES 3,418 3,815
Advertising and promotional expenses E& & SEM XL 21,890 40,536
Concessionaire fees [ERCESERE == - 144,903
Employee benefit expenses (including EERMBEX(BIEES
directors’ emoluments) (Note 9) B =) (47 7£9) 247,506 301,325
Impairment losses/(write back of GFEREEE
impairment) on inventories CRE#E) 14,114 (409)
Impairment losses on trade receivables, 25 EWERIBREEE
net R 2,255 5,454
Impairment loss on property, plant and %)% - # 23 & R &R E
equipment (Note 16) & 18 (h7 it 16) 9,974 -
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets i Fi#& & & R (B &5 18
(Note 17) (Htat17) 11,946 -
Direct operating expenses arising from BEHE W A Z & E Y
investment properties that generated XEECEELKE
rental income (Note 15(a)) 72 (87 7 15(a)) 9 10
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A B S R B

FINANCE INCOME, NET 8 MBWA FHE
2020 2019
—ECEHF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBFT
Interest income on bank deposits 8 1777 7k 2 F| B UL A 5,880 8,308

Interest expense on lease liabilites M E & & 2 B H

(Note 17) (H717) (1,785) -
Other finance income oAl B A U A 2,795 3,200
6,890 11,508

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 9 EEFFHAIXEREEMS)
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

2020 2019
—E-EH —E—NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBFT
Wages and salaries TERE® 203,681 251,586
Staff welfare and other benefits 8 T 48 | I H fth 2 B 15,382 14,590

Pension costs — defined RIKEKAR — REHKGTE
contribution plans (Note) (Ht72) 28,443 35,149
247,506 301,325

Note:

#ret

Employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong participate
in a mandatory provident fund scheme (“MPF Scheme”) which is a
defined contribution scheme. The assets of the MPF scheme are held
separately from those of the Group under independently administered
funds. Contributions to the schemes by the employers and employees
are calculated as a percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
Group has no further obligations for the actual payment of post-
retirement benefits beyond the contributions.

AEEREENMBLATMNEES BREMHK
FHEl - Rt AEesE(TRESFED - B
BMEMmBEEVREASEEGEE HERE
EHBIESEENTAFE BIREER
BIESFEMHE - DRAEENERFEFH -
AEBRMEFTIIBEAEHETERERKE
BMBEE -
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EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (CONTINUED)

Employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland
China are required to participate in defined
contribution retirement schemes administered and
operated by municipal governments. The Group’s
subsidiaries in Mainland China contribute funds
to the retirement schemes to fund the retirement
benefits of the employees which are calculated
on certain percentages of the average employee
salaries as agreed by the municipal governments.
Such retirement schemes are responsible for the
entire post-retirement benefit obligations payable
to the retired employees. The Group has no further
obligations for the actual payment of post-retirement
benefits beyond the contributions.

Retirement benefit scheme costs amounting to
RMB28,443,000 (2019: RMB35,149,000) were paid
by the Group during the year. Forfeited contributions
totalling RMB606,000 (2019: RMB540,000) were
refunded and credited in the employee benefit
expenses during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B B 5 AR B

EERMNAXX(BRESM2)(EA)

AEEBRTBEARENNBEARES
A2EATHRFEEREENATE
HREREHE - AKERFEX
FER) PN B N B R K& AT B A
[ E B IR ORI A - BB R
EMRNEENFHOREF NS
TEOHAE ZFEKEFER
JER TRINE BRI 2 ARRIREEF
AEBEBRERIN  BAREERX
MRAREMOEMEE -

FAR - AEEZNTHRIKEF G E
A B A R #28,443,000L (= &
— N F: A R#35149,0007T) - B3R
B8 Bt 5 & H B A R #606,000
T(ZE—NF: A R%540,0007T)
WEFAREEFMAX -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A B S R B
10 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 10 EBE2REARER
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s () EERESTHRAEME
emoluments
Pursuant to section 383 of the Hong Kong B B(REIEGFEB22E)
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), Companies FIBE(RARI(HBEEEFREE
(Disclosure of Information about Benefit of A 8 BIH(FEe22G E) & £ 8
Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G) and the Al MEREFLRZRTTHRAR
Listing Rules, the emoluments paid or payable (TwmERARRSENE AR/
to every director and the chief executive for the EEREETBRAB)REFRIER
year are as follows: ey AR - 2 Wk A Fr
B an T
2020
“ECEF
Salary,  Employer’s
bonus, other  contribution
allowances to retirement Share option
and benefits benefit benefits
Fees in kind scheme (Notg) Total
e R4 .
‘ HRER REIE#S  RRESEAN .
he ENflg HE Eit (W) @it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Name #% ARETR AR%®Tr AR®Tn ARETn AR%T:n
Executive directorand ~ HTEER
chief executive THAR
Mr. Cheng Wang, Gary Or%s
(resigned on 16 October (R=Z2-N%
2019) TRt REM) - 1,269 10 - 1,219
Executive directors YTEE
Ms. Chui Kwan Ho, Jacky REFRL - 2,504 16 - 2,520
Ms. Liao Jian Yu BREATT - 1,829 21 - 1,850
Mr. Li Wing Yeung, Peter FXBEE
(appointed on 22 January (R=ZF-%%
2020) -F=fZH
BZ1) - 79 3 - 82
Non-executive directors ~ #17EZ
Mr. James Ngal RRRTE 212 - - - 212
Mr. Lee Tze Bun, Marces TFW i
(‘Mr. Leg”) (E33)
(resigned on 16 October (R-Z2-NF
2019) TR+ AEf) - - - - -
Independent non-executive BUFHTEES
directors
Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon WRELE 212 - - - 212
Mr. Leung Wai Ki, George 2EELE 212 - - - 212
Mr. Hui Chi Kwan FRA%E 212 - - - 212
843 5,681 50 - 6,579
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B B 5 AR B

10 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s

emoluments (Continued)

10 EE2EANRER (B

(a) EERRETRAEME (H)

2019
“I-NF
Salary, Employer's
bonus, other contribution
allowances and  to refirement  Share option
benefits benefit benefits
Fees in kind scheme (Note) Total
ge-fa
EtEER  EERAKE  ERERA
ik ENNE HE:3 H#) &3
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Name 4 ARETT  AREBTT  ARETr  ARETR ARETRn
Executive directorand ~ HTEER
chief executive THAR
Mr. Cheng Wang, Gary LYk - 1,530 15 - 1,545
Executive directors BTEZE
Ms. Chui Kwan Ho, Jacky REHLL - 2,311 15 - 2,326
Ms. Liao Jian Yu BRATL
(appointed on (RZF-N\E=
16 March 2018) BT/ REZA) - 1,597 31 - 1628
Non-executive directors ~ #H17ES
Mr. James Ngai fERsEE 204 - - - 204
Mr. Lee Tze Bun, Marces TFH R
(‘Mr. Leg”) (E323) - - - - -
Independent non-executive BLFHTES
directors
Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon B E 204 - - - 204
Mr. Leung Wai Ki, George REELE 204 - - - 204
Mr. Hui Chi Kwan RBEE 204 - - - 204
816 5,438 61 - 6,315

Note:

Share option benefits are non-cash compensation which were
determined based on the fair value of share options granted to
the relevant directors at the date of grant and recognised over
the vesting period (Note 27).

No other emoluments paid or receivable in respect of director’s
other services in connection with the management of the affairs
of the company or its subsidiary undertaking during the year
ended 29 February 2020 (2019: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Directors’ retirement benefits

During the year ended 29 February 2020, no
retirement benefits were paid to or receivable
by the directors in respect of their services as
directors of the Company and its subsidiaries
or other services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company or its
subsidiary undertaking through defined benefit
pension plans (2019: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits

During the year ended 29 February 2020, no
payments or benefits in respect of termination of
directors’ services were paid or payable, directly
or indirectly, to the directors (2019: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties
for making available directors’ services

During the year ended 29 February 2020, no
consideration was provided to or receivable
by third parties for making available Directors’
services (2019: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans
and other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors

During the year ended 29 February 2020, there
are no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in
favour of the directors, their controlled body
corporates and connected entities (2019: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Company’s business
to which the Company was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the
year (2019: Nil).

A o A R Mk

10 EE2EANRER (B

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

EEEKER
HE-T-TF-A-thAL
FE UMEFEBREEN
Si 8 RAMERARD R
FEARZ RS - KEREAT
RENBARLBNEREE
T EMBRT XNk
RINEF (B —hE @) -

RIEESRB-HmES

BHE-ZT-_FEE_A-t+AHIL
FE UERAEFHEERXBRE
XANBERELEESERE 2 KA
SHE BRARMNRACE
—NhE &)

REZEZRERE=SRHEH
%
BE-_Z-_FTHE_A-_tNABL
FE - YEREFZREIAE
= XN REEBH(—T—N
FE) -

FRNES ZSESEZEE
FERAEERAZHTACE
FEERREMXRZZEHR

BE_ZTZ-_ZTF_A-_tNBL
Ef BENES ZFEFZ

TABEREERAR G A
Zfﬁ HERREMRS(Z
T-NF 8-

ESRXRE  RPEISHNE
KA =

ARBMEITAEARAESFTH
EREAERAEARNGEIRNF
REFAREAEREDATE
BEARBEBBAEBEBNERRLS
THEAEHN(ZTE-NEF &)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BR A B S R B
11 SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS 1 SREEAEMS
(a) Five highest paid individuals (a) EBEEEFAL
The directors’ emoluments presented above EXZ2IMNEEHeERER
include the emoluments of 3 (2019: 3) highest EE-FZ(ZE-NE: =8)&%
paid individuals in the Group. The emoluments SHATHME BB TZZ
of the remaining 2 (2019: 2) highest paid —E-AF —R)EREHFATL
individual during the year ended 29 February REZE2-_ZE-ZFEF - A -+ NH
2020 was: ITFEZHMNG:
2020 2019
—EB-FF —TNF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARET T

Salaries, bonus, other allowances # & ~ JE4L ~ H

and benefits in kind R B = 2,193 2,045
Employer’s contributions to EEXRIKSFEIHER
retirement benefits scheme 32 40
Compensation for loss of office B B B (& - 296
2,225 2,381
Emolument band Number of individuals
¥ B &8 A"
2020 2019
—EF-FF —TNF
RMB500,001 — RMB1,000,000 500,0017C A R# &
1,000,0007C A R #& 1 -
RMB1,000,001 — RMB1,500,000 1,000,0017t A R# =
1,500,0007T A R # 1 2
None of the directors or the five highest paid FRN JSEEFTHREZHEFA
individuals waived or agreed to waive any THEEREXRERELM
emoluments during the year (2019: Nil). MeE(ZTE—NF:|) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B B 5 AR B

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS 11
(CONTINUED)

(b) Senior management’s emoluments by
band

The senior management’s emoluments fell within
the following bands:

Emolument band

EREBAEME (A

(b)

EREBAEFHEE

BREEANBZHFMEBELT

Number of individuals

5 i 8 A"
2020 2019
—EZEF —E-NEF
Nil — RMB500,000 OTARKZE
500,0007T A R # 1 3
RMB500,001 — RMB1,000,000 500,0017T A R#& =
1,000,0007T A R # 1 1
RMB1,000,001 — RMB1,500,000 1,000,0017t A R# =
1,500,0007T A R #§ 1 1
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12 FiBHxH
The amount of income tax charged to the RieBaxkPHBR BN EHE
consolidated income statement represents: =K
2020 2019
—B=-%%F —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AREFTT
Current income tax EHIREMN
— Hong Kong profits tax — FEHENERH - _
— People’s Republic of China — hzE AR
(“the PRC”) corporate income ([ B ) 02
tax 713 8 13,180 16,839
Deferred income taxation (Note 20) i 3t B 15 %t 18 (47 7£.20) (4,134) (2,950)
9,046 13,889

annual report 3k 2020



172

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BR A B S R B
12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 12 FrEB X H (&)
The PRC corporate income tax is provided on the NEBHTRBEWEB AT S J11E25% (—
profits of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC at 25% T—NF:25% 2FBEBERESH
(2019: 25%). WL o
The applicable rate of Hong Kong profits tax is 16.5% EAFNER EHEB X A165% (- =
(2019: 16.5%). No provision for Hong Kong profits —NF:16.5%) c AR AEERE =
tax has been made in the financial statements as the —EZEF_A-tTHAEHEZZE—N
Group does not have any assessable profit arising in FZAZTN\BUEFETEREAE
Hong Kong during the year ended 29 February 2020 HEEMERNERN W BRERA
and 28 February 2019. WERBEBNESHELEE -
The applicable rate of Macau complementary B EE AN EBR X AE12% (=
tax is 12% (2019: 12%). No provision for Macau T—NF:12%) c BERAEEREZE
complementary tax has been made in the financial —E-EF-_A-F+NABEZZE—N
statement as the Group does not have any FA-H+N\BLEFEIERBE
assessable profit arising in Macau during each of the HTMERMEF  HBERRA
two years ended 29 February 2020 and 28 February W BRI E B E L BE o
2019.
The taxation on the Group’s loss before income tax NEERKRETERBE R 2B IEHEE
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise BEBRXRFEZERTE =R
using the applicable tax rate as follows: N
2020 2019
—EZEF —ET-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AR®ETF T
Loss before income tax BrETSBLAT < B 18 (21,274) (13,439)
Tax calculated at domestic tax % & B H [ 5 A
rates applicable to profits in the i ash= ORI ST
respective geographical areas FSTEMRIE (3,526) (3,903)
Income not subject to tax BA R A (1,300) (623)
Expenses not deductible for tax EIEE s s
purposes 10,677 6,991
Tax losses for which no deferred RERELEFTEHIA
income tax asset was recognised BEZMIEEIE 3,929 8,569
Utilisation of previously unrecognised & 3 5t Bl & # 52
tax losses MIEE B (2,836) (446)
Withholding tax TE AR 2,102 3,301
Income tax expense FT 157 S 9,046 13,889
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

There was no tax charge relating to components of
other comprehensive income for the year ended 29
February 2020 (2019: Nil).

LOSSES PER SHARE

Basic

Basic losses per share is calculated by dividing the
loss attributable to owners of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

12

13

A o A R Mk

Fr 18 B X ()
BE_Z-_ZEF_A-THALFE -
WEEMEEmBABD ZHEBEZL (=
T-NEFE |

BREE

R
BEREAEBERIEARAEDFTAE
/\FEE&T@I‘%LAEWE?&TTE@J&
ZhnEFHEEE

2020 2019
—B-EF —NEF
Loss attributable to owners of the ~ ANA A H AL
Company (RMB’000) BRAR®T T (30,519) (28,032)
Weighted average number of ordinary B % 77 % #8 i% 2 ji 4
shares in issue ('000) 8 (FED) 705,895 705,895
Basic losses per share (RMB cents) &% & A& E548
(AR%5) (4.32) (3.97)

Diluted
For the years ended 29 February 2020 and 28
February 2019, diluted losses per share equals basic
losses per share as there was no dilutive potential
shares.

BE

@I—?—?ﬂz H —'—j—LEl&—?
—NF_AZFTNHLEEE TEE
FHEETEB 2 EBR BRESE
BHENRGRELNERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A o A AR Mk

14 DIVIDEND 14 BRE
2020 2019
—E-FF —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR T T
No final, proposed, (2019: No final  # # :% K #Hi % &

dividend) —ENFER
EAHKE - -

No final special, proposed, BmEZANAFRRE

(2019: HK35.0 cents per ordinary (ZZE-—NF: 8K
share) 38 A% 35.07 {1l - 210,428
- 210,428

R-_E_EFRA-_T+THBRTZE
Egt EEETERREHZE=_Z
“EF-_A-TNABIEFE ZRKEK

At the Board of Directors’ meeting held on 25 May
2020, the Directors did not propose a final dividend
for the year ended 29 February 2020.

B o
15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15 REYE
2020 2019
—E-EHF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR®ET T
At beginning of year NG 56,360 128,594
Fair value losses recognised in the 4R & 1Bz & R
consolidated income statement NFEEB A T6)
(Note 6) - (6,909)
Transfer to property, plant and HEYE KER
equipment Bigi] - (68,989)
Disposal HE (54,000) -
Exchange differences MW ZE5 - 3,664
At end of year RE R 2,360 56,360
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Investment properties are stated at the professional
valuation made on an open market value basis
at 29 February 2020 and 28 February 2019 by
an independent professional valuer, Ravia Global
Appraisal Advisory Limited. The revaluation losses
are included in “other losses, net” in the consolidated
income statement.

(@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated
income statement for investment
properties

A o A R Mk

15 BEWE(E)

KREMEDRBUEXGEMK S
RERFEFBDERRARE T
EE_A-TABR-ZE-NAF_A
“tNBZARMmEEEMEREEM
B MEEEBHERDCHFAKS
BamAR[EMER  FE]-

(a) REEEERBRAZBREME

2020 2019
—g-8F -T-nF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ETR ARET T

Rental income (Note 6) MW A K ite6)
Direct operating expenses BEESKAZ
from investment properties WEYEFEEZ

that generated rental income  EE &L/ Y
(Note 7) (B it7)

As at 29 February 2020, the Group had no
unprovided contractual obligations for future
repairs and maintenance (2019: Nil).

The Group’s investment properties are held
within a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties
through sale. The Group has measured
the deferred tax relating to the temporary
differences of these investment properties
using the tax rates and the tax bases that are
consistent with the expected manner of recovery
of these investment properties (Note 20).

81 78
) (10)
72 68

R-T-_ZFEE_A-1+hB X&H
BRARFRORKEERREZY
BEE(CE-NF 8E)-

AEENKREMENBEEASE
BEEENTABERREMWERK
MOMEENS - AEREEHER
B RO EHNE S A —Bay X
AR A %ﬁﬁﬁ&§%¥m%ﬁ
HERBBOREMSHETTE
i£20) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A o A AR Mk
15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Valuation basis

The Group obtains independent valuations for
its investment properties at least annually. In
the current year, the valuations are performed
by Ravia Global Appraisal Advisory Limited, an
independent professional qualified valuers. At
the end of each reporting period, the directors
update their assessment of the fair value of each
property, taking into account the most recent
independent valuations. The directors determine
a property’s value within a range of reasonable
fair value estimates.

At each financial year end the finance
department:

° Verifies all major inputs to the independent
valuation report;

° Assesses property valuations movements
when compared to the prior year valuation
report;

° Holds discussions with the independent
valuer.

The best evidence of fair value is current prices
in an active market for similar investment
properties. Where such information is not
available the directors consider information from
a variety of sources including:

() current prices in an active market for
properties of different nature or recent
prices of similar properties in less
active markets, adjusted to reflect those
differences;

(i)  discounted cash flow projections based on
reliable estimates of future cash flows; or

(i) capitalised income projections based upon
a property’s estimated net market income,
and a capitalisation rate derived from an
analysis of market evidence.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SR B R R B
15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 15 REWE(E)
(b) Valuation basis (Continued) (b) 1B E % (&)
Fair value hierarchy ARG -ES

Fair value measurements
at 29 February 2020 using
R-ZZ-EF-A=-thH

EHTSAFETE
Quoted prices
in active Significant
markets for other Significant
identical observable unobservable
assets inputs inputs
HEEEZ EZHAM EEARA
EETEHRE THREAAE BEBAE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(5—8) (5=8) (5=F8)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Description o AR¥ TR AR TR AR TR
Recurring fair value BEUERTFEGE
measurements
Investment property: REME:
The PRC o - - 2,360
Fair value measurements
at 28 February 2019 using
RZE-NEZAZ1+/\AB
FRTIATEFE
Quoted prices
in active Significant
markets for other Significant
identical observable unobservable
assets inputs inputs
HREEYZ EERHM EZAT
ERMSRE ABEREARE BERBAE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(F—8) (F=B) (B=E)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Description ot AR®F T ARET T ARETT
Recurring fair value CEUHERNTFEFE
measurements
Investment properties: REME:
The PRC h - - 56,360
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A o A AR Mk

15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)
(b) Valuation basis (Continued)

Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (level 3)

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers
into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy
levels as of the date of the event or change in
circumstances that caused the transfer.

There were no transfers among levels 1, 2 and
3 during the years ended 29 February 2020 and
28 February 2019.

15

REYE (&)

(b) HEE®E(HE)
ARFEGIEFEHEET B
WAE(E=E)
AEENERERSHELEAR
FTESHELREASBRR
So|MER AERBEEES o

HE-_ZT-_ZTF_-_A=-+thHK
—E-NE-A=-+N\BILEE -
REE—EB F_BRE=ZEZ
ﬁZ@W%@°

The PRC Macau Total
H R Mt

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®BTR AR®TR

At 1 March 2018 RZT—-N\EF
=H—H

Losses from fair value adjustment AF(EHAE 2 EiE

Transfer to property, plant and BEYE - IR

equipment PELE

Exchange differences bE L ERE

At 28 February 2019 RZZE-NF
—AZ+NH

At 1 March 2019 RZZE-NF
=A—H

Disposal &

Exchange differences bE 5 ERE

At 29 February 2020 R-TE-TF
—RAZ+AH
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60,600 67,994 128,594
(4,240) (2,669) (6,909)
- (68,989) (68,989)

- 3,664 3,664
56,360 - 56,360
56,360 - 56,360
(54,000) - (54,000)
2,360 - 2,360




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 15
(b) Valuation basis (Continued)
Valuation techniques

Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (level 3)

The valuations were determined by using the
direct comparison approach. Sales prices of
comparable properties in close proximity are
adjusted for differences in key attributes such as
property size. The most significant input into this
valuation approach is price per square meter.

A o A R Mk
REWMEA)
(b) fH{EE % (&)
18 18 £

NFEFEEAERETAER
wAEBEFE=E)

ERBENERERLBAE
FE o fE AP AT b 8 Y A] i B W)
XZEBERBWEXRNNEE
ZRRZEZEEZFLBE - HH
BNERR/REEZRARER
F¥TKER -

Fair value at
29 February Range of Relationship of
2020 Valuation Unobservable unobservable unobservable inputs
Description (RMB’000) technique inputs input to fair value
R-BZ%%
ZRZtNAH
NYE BEZTEN BELIN BEAIUNBAR
ER (AR®Tn) fELE PN BAENEE BATENRE
Investment property 2,360  Direct comparison Comparable’s unit ~ RMB16,523 per The higher the unit selling
— retail shop in approach selling/asking price  square meter price, the higher the fair
the PRC value
RENZE 2360 EELEE AtIERA FYARARE EBENEBRR LTER
- URPETER BREE/RE 165237 B
Fair value at
28 February Range of Relationship of
2019 Valuation Unobservable unobservable unobservable inputs
Description (RMB'000)  technique inputs input to fair value
RZE-NE
ZRZTARH
NYE BRI BETIHM BEAIMAAE
ER (AR¥TR) fERE GAE GAEMEE BRTEMEE
Investment properties 2,360  Direct comparison Comparable’s unit ~ RMB16,523 per The higher the unit selling
— retail shop in approach selling/asking price  square meter price, the higher the fair
the PRC value
RENZ 2360 EELEE AIERA BYARKARE ENEERR DTER
- URPERER EMEER/HE 166237 S
Investment properties 54,000  Direct comparison Comparable’s unit ~ RMB929 per The higher the unit selling
— factory building in approach selling/asking price  square meter price, the higher the fair
the PRC value
RENZ 54000 EENBE AIERA GYARARE ENEERR ATER
- iR E B ENEB/FRE 9297 &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B B 5 AR B

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16 W¥  HBRRE

Leasehold Furniture
Landand  improve- Plant and and Motor
buildings ments machinery fixtures vehicles Total
Rams
T1HREF REIR HKERRE HKARXE AE H)
RMB'000 RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
AR#BTT ARBTR ARBTR ARETR ARBTR AR¥T:R
At 1 March 2018 RZZ-N\E=A-H
Cost k& 81,915 187,187 105,643 26,967 4,120 405,832
Accumulated depreciation 2ENE (43,031) (159,924) (86,930) (18,456) (3,100) (811,441)
Net book amount REZFE 38,884 27,263 18,713 8,511 1,020 94,391
Year ended 28 February 2019 HEZZ-NF
ZAZTN\BLFE
Opening net book amount FNEREFE 38,884 27,263 18,713 8,511 1,020 94,391
Exchange differences ERER 100 208 - 112 14 434
Additions NE - 22,035 403 2,326 1,304 26,068
Transfer from investment properties  EH R E M %

(Note 15) (Hii15) 68,989 - - - - 68,989
Write off/disposal Wi/ e (339) (2,246) (702) (343) (95) (3,725)
Depreciation i (1,942) (23,411) (2,598) (3,849) (1,051 (32,851)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 105,692 23,849 15,816 6,757 1,192 153,306
At 28 February 2019 RZB-NE

ZAZTAH
Cost KA 151,325 187,744 108,750 26,357 4,199 473,375
Accumulated depreciation ZENE (45,633) (163,895) (87,934 (19,600) (8,007) (320,069)
Net book amount REEE 105,692 23,849 15,816 6,757 1,192 153,306
Year ended 29 February 2020 HE-Z-ZF

ZAZTABLEEE
Opening net book amount FRRRFE 105,692 23,849 15,816 6,757 1,192 153,306
Exchange differences ERER 4,314 197 - 101 16 4,628
Additions NE - 14,068 1,043 411 851 16,373
Write off/disposal s/ HE (364) (2,083) (7,073) (1,478) 874) (11,372
Depreciation nE (902) (19,305) (2,170) (2,729) (242) (25,348)
Impairment (Note (3) & (b)) HEW 2B Wb) - (2,358) (7,616) - - (9,974)
Closing net book amount FRERFE 108,740 14,368 - 3,062 1,443 127,613
At 29 February 2020 RZZ-Z%F

ZA=tAhA
Cost k& 155,131 189,071 87,162 23,187 3,599 458,150
Accumulated depreciation 2ENE (46,391)  (174,703) (87,162) (20,125) (2,156)  (330,537)
Net book amount FHFE 108,740 14,368 - 3,062 1,443 127,613
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

Note:

(@

Due to the outbreak of COVID-19 epidemic in January 2020
and the related precautionary and control measures taken
place, the resumption of production of the factory at Shunde
(“Shunde Factory”) was delayed after the Chinese New Year.
The Group has carried out an impairment assessment of the
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets of the
Shunde Factory. As a result, the carrying amount of the plant
and machinery of the Shunde Factory has written down to its
recoverable amount and the Group recognised an impairment
loss of RMB7,616,000 in general and administrative expenses.
The recoverable amount of the assets of the Shunde Factory
were determined based on their fair value less cost to sale given
all the production of the Shunde Factory were subsequently
ceased in May 2020 after a brief resumption of operation (Note
35).

Certain retail stores with operation for more than one year
were making loss during the year and the Group foresees the
retail stores’ operation will also be affected by the uncertainties
that brought by the outbreak of COVID-19 epidemic since
late January 2020. The Group regards each individual retail
store as a separately identifiable cash-generating unit and
carried out impairment assessment for the retail stores which
have indicator of impairment. As a result, impairment loss
of RMB2,358,000 and RMB11,946,000 against leasehold
improvements and right-of-use assets, respectively, were
recognised in selling and distribution expenses of the Group.
The estimates of the recoverable amounts were based
on value-in-use calculations using discounted cash flow
projections based on the sales forecast.

17 LEASES

The

Group’s right-of-use assets and lease liabilities

as a lessee mainly arise from lease of various retail
shop premises, warehouses and offices with terms

of 6

months to 10 years. Lease terms are negotiated

on an individual basis and contain a wide range of
different terms and conditions.

The

Group has recognised right-of-use assets for

these leases, except for short term leases, see Note
2.2 to the consolidated financial statements further
information.

16

17

A o A R Mk

MR- AR R RE ()

g

@ MR EZ_ZFE-—AREFUBKESE
5 WHE TR A TEL FdE 648 5 -
BTIEE TR (E®E TR N EE % B K
BEE AEECHIBEIMOME  #
BLEERERAEEEETRESG - B
bt BEITHmAOEERREZEBEEDRE
REEATKESEHE  AEBIE—KRRT
RS R R T REEIE ARK7616,000
e BREIMESEMELTELBERN-
T-ZFERAEILLEEMFS) Bt
BEIMzEENARESERREER
AEEREBEFTHOEEER -

by BHTEEBB—FOHTEEHEAFEE
AEE - AKEEFE-ZT=TF—AT
BAR FREBRBESEBEREEMBR
MTAEEHEOBETYETEEHOLE - K
SEGREHTEEMAEBERESEEEN -
WHBRETROZEEFHETHET
e Al AEETHERSHBAZF S
BAHAOMERETIRENFERAEELERR
TORE B 1B A R #2,358,0007T M A R
11,946,0007C ° fHaH AT IR Al € 28 2 R E
BEATE HPERTHSEMNFOT
RIS REBATE -

HE

EREABEAN REBZEREEENR
HEREBE T2XRETEEH EAR
EBRAEZARBESYN MHEE
BH 2 F B R6ME A E10%F - HERK
REEHNEEHRBHABEZELR
figR R B AR A o

BREMEEN AEECHREE

M RERRAE - SBAN #
& M ts & B WA 2.2 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A o A AR Mk

17 LEASES (CONTINUED)

The consolidated balance sheet shows the following

17 HE(#E)

GABERBRETTATHARA

amounts relating to leases: ENEE:
As at As at
29 February 1 March
2020 2019
R-E-FHF RZZE—NF
—HB=+hH =A—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR®ET T
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE
Land use rights + b s A4 20,102 20,442
Retail shop premises, warehouses ZEEH - EA2 K
and offices WAE 17,867 43,427
37,969 63,869
As at As at
29 February 1 March
2020 2019
R=ZBZBF RIZ-NF
—BA=+hB =HA—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AR T T
Lease liabilities HEA®E
Current B 17,635 21,861
Non-current JE R & 14,724 24,553
32,359 46,414
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SR B R R B
17 LEASES (CONTINUED) 17 HE (&)
2020
—E-EHF
Retail shop
premises,
Land use  warehouse
rights and office Total
2EEH
TiEAE ERERBEAE #t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR AR TR AR TR
Right-of-use assets CREEE
Opening right-of-use assets as at R=Z—NLF=HF—H
1 March 2019 (Note 2.2(iv)) ZENERREE
(Kt i#2.2(v) 20,442 43,427 63,869
Additions NE - 15,701 15,701
Depreciation charge (Note 7) WEBRWZ7) (806) (24,236) (25,042)
Disposal & (507) - (507)
Early termination of leases RAKIHESEY - (5,079) (5,079)
Impairment (Note 16(b)) WAE (A7 2 16(b) - (11,946) (11,946)
Currency translation difference fEH =% 973 - 973
Right-of-use assets as at RZZZTF
29 February 2020 —AZthRBRZ
EREEE 20,102 17,867 37,969
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fr A B 7 e PR
17 LEASES (CONTINUED) 17 HE (&)
2020
—EB-EHF
RMB’000
AR T
Lease liabilities HEAE
Opening lease liabilities as at 1 March 2019 RZE-NF=ZA—HBZ
(Note 2.2(iv)) HyHERE W Z22(v) 46,414
Additions NE 15,435
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHEAE (25,976)
Interest for lease liabilities (Note 8) HMER B (B E8) 1,785
Early termination of leases RAIKIEHEESN (5,299)
Lease liabilities as at 29 February 2020 RZZE-_ZTF-_A=+NH
ZHERE 32,359

As at 29 February 2020, the total future lease
payments for short-term leases and low value leases
amounted to RMB8,047,000.

R-ZE-_FEE_-_HA-+hHH 2HA
ENBEEEHENRKKHEEMNZR
% & A R 1#8,047,0007T °

18 LAND USE RIGHTS 18 LT ib{F FH#E
2019
—T-NEF
RMB’000
AR®ET T
At beginning of year F 9] 21,239
Amortisation B H (791)
Disposals & (956)
Exchange differences MEH Z5 950
At end of year FR 20,442

From 1 March 2019, land use rights are included
in right-of-use assets (Note 77) upon the adoption
of HKFRS16. Please refer to Note 2.2 to the
consolidated financial statements for details about
the change in accounting policy.
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19 SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries of
the Group at 29 February 2020 which, in the opinion
of the directors, principally affect the results or form

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A o A R Mk

19 KEBAT
EER AN _ZE-_ZETFE_-_A=-+NH
HAEBEBEREEATELEXARN
EBFEEMNTEL»NETENE

a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group:

/NG INE

Place of Particular of issued
incorporationand  share capital and Principal activities/ 2020 and 2019
Name of entity kind of legal entity  debt securities place of operation Interest held
AR BRTRER TEER/ ZRZBER
MEARER EAER BRES EXHE “E-NERBRER
Blooming On Limited Hong Kong, limited 2 ordinary shares of Property holding/ 100%
liability company HK$1 each the PRC
REBRRA BE 2REREEIET KEN%/
AREERA EER e
Brightly Investment Limited Hong Kong, limited 2 ordinary shares of Property holding/ 100%
liability company HK$1 each the PRC
BRRERRRAA BE 2REREEIET BENE/
AREERA EER E
Grandmark Holdings Limited Hong Kong, limited 1 ordinary share of Investment holding/ 100%
liability company HK$1 each Hong Kong
EHEEBRAT BE REREEET RERR,/
EREHEAT ERAK Bk
Great Sino Enterprises Limited Hong Kong, limited 10,000 ordinary shares ~ Provision of management 100%
liability company of HK$1 each services and
investment holding/
Hong Kong
EZRRERAR BB 10,000k EREEIET REERRHR
BEREERT LBk RERKR/
BE
Le Saunda (B.V.I.) Limited British Virgin Islands, 31,500 ordinary shares  Investment holding/ 100%
(Note (a)) limited liability of US$1 each Hong Kong
(H#p) company
EREAHE 31,500 BREEIZT REER,
AREFAA EER BE
Le Saunda Calcado, Limitada Macau, limited liability ~ MOP200,000 Retailing of shoes/ 100%
company Macau
R 200,000& M RERE/
AREERA iy

annual report 3k 2020



186

19 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B B 5 AR B

19 MERR (&)

Place of Particular of issued
incorporationand  share capital and Principal activities/ 2020 and 2019
Name of entity kind of legal entity  debt securities place of operation Interest held
MBIt ER BRITRER TEER/ ZEZEBER
MEARER EAER BBES Exuy “E-NERERR
Le Saunda China Investment Hong Kong, limited 100 ordinary shares of  Investment holding/ 100%
Limited liability company HK$1 each Hong Kong
RBEAPEREERAT BE 00REREGRET RERR/
BEREERA ERR Bk
Le Saunda Licensing Limited Bahamas, limited liability 5,000 ordinary shares of Holding and licensing 100%
company US$1 each of trade-marks and
names/
Hong Kong
NMiEEBRARRA EREHES - 5000k ERAEBIZET BERKLFFLEE
EREHEAT ERR EREREE/
Bk
Le Saunda Management Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited 2 ordinary shares of Provision of management 100%
liability company HK$1 each services/
Hong Kong
KBHAERERAA BE 2REREEIET REEERS/
EREHAT ERR B
Le Saunda Real Estate Limited Hong Kong, limited 2 ordinary shares of Investment holding/ 100%
liability company HK$1 each Hong Kong
RBEHAHEERARA NN REREEIET RERR/
BEREERA ERR BE
L.S. Retailing Limited Hong Kong, limited 2 ordinary shares of Retailing of shoes/ 100%
liability company HK$1,000 each plus Hong Kong
20,000 non-voting
deferred shares of
HK$1,000 each
RANNZEERAA A REREEL00ET KETE/
BREART L@kmooks EE

FRE (E1,0008 7T %
ZRETRG

le saunda holdings Itd.

A AHERAR AR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

19 MERR (&)

A o A R Mk

Place of Particular of issued
incorporationand  share capital and Principal activities/ 2020 and 2019
Name of entity kind of legal entity  debt securities place of operation Interest held
MBIt ER BRITRER TEER/ ZEZEBER
MEARER EAER BBES Exuy “E-NERERR
Maior Limited Hong Kong, limited 1,000 ordinary shares of Trading of shoes and 100%
liability company HK$2,000 each investment holding/
Hong Kong
SEEHERERAA A 10008 BREB2000 KEZHREAERK/
BREFELT BT BE
ERAR
Master Benefit Limited Hong Kong, limited 3,000,000 ordinary Investment holding/ 100%
liability company shares of HK$1 each Hong Kong
EEBRAA A 30000008 8REE HKEREK/
BEREERA 1ETERK Bk
Super Billion Properties Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited 100 ordinary shares of ~ Property holding/ 100%
liability company HK$1 each Hong Kong
hEEEARLT B 00RSRARBT  BENE/
EREHAF ERR i
Trend Door Company Limited Hong Kong, limited 2 ordinary shares of Investment holding/ 100%
liability company HK$1 each Hong Kong
CYREI YN BA CREREEIAT RERR/
BEREHEAF ERR BB
Trend Light Trading Company Hong Kong, limited 2 ordinary shares of Investment holding/ 100%
Limited liability company HK$1 each Hong Kong
REESERAT BA 2RBREEIET RERR/
BEREHEAF LR BB
MEES(RE)ERAR The PRC, limited liability US$100,000 Wholesales and trading 100%
company of shoes/
the PRC
hE 100,000% 7T RERERES/
AREERA GigE
MEEFZRE)ERAR The PRC, limited liability HK$53,000,000 Retailing of shoes/ 100%
company the PRC
hE 53,000,000% ¢ RETE/
AREERA Gk
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19 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

19

B B~ B (4&)

Place of Particular of issued
incorporation and  share capital and Principal activities/ 2020 and 2019
Name of entity kind of legal entity  debt securities place of operation Interest held
MBIt ER BERITRAR TEER/ ZEZEBER
MEARER EAER BEHES BEWBE “E-NERERR
MEEES(RINERAR The PRC, limited liability HK$10,000,000 Retailing of shoes/ 100%
company the PRC
RE 10,000,000/ 7t REZE
BREFERT w
ETE%£(LBERD The PRC, limited liability US$6,500,000 Retailing of shoes/ 100%
company the PRC
hE - 6,500,000% 7T RETE
BREFLT r
BEERE(ERNER The PRC, limited liability US$2,200,000 Retailing of shoes/ 100%
company the PRC
hE 2,200,000% T £28/
BEREHEAF i
MRESH(R2)ERLA The PRC, limited liability US$800,000 Retailing of shoes/ 100%
company the PRC
hE 800,000% T 2E/
BEREHEAF e
EEEEHMERLT The PRC, limited liability RMB27,000,000 Retailing of shoes/ 66.67%
company the PRC
hE AR #27,000,0007C 2&/
BEREEAF i
fiB 1L B2 [ﬂ {7 The PRC, limited liability US$3,800,000 Manufacturing and 100%
EXERAD company trading of shoes/
the PRC
hE 3,800,000 T RERERES/
BEREEAF i
BLTIEEERE The PRC, limited liability US$1,050,000 Manufacturing and 100%
HEEXEARAA company trading of shoes/

RE
AREART

1,050,000% 7T

the PRC
NERERES/
ik

le saunda holdings Itd. &8 HTHERR AR A A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B B 5 AR B

19 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

19 MERR (&)

Place of Particular of issued
incorporationand  share capital and Principal activities/ 2020 and 2019
Name of entity kind of legal entity  debt securities place of operation Interest held
EMAIER BRITRAR TEER/ “BCEER
MEARER EAER BHES BEWBE “E-NERBESR
BLTEERRR The PRC, limited liabilty US$1,500,000 Manufacturing and 100%
BXARAA company trading of shoes/
the PRC
hE 1,500,000% 1T RERERES/
BREFNAT H
BLTRREREE The PRC, limited liability RMB55,000,000 Property holding/ 100%
BXARAR company the PRC
hE AEHS50000000 HENE/
BREFLT s
FUmEEEERE The PRC, limited liability - US$200,000 Inactive/ 100%
HEREERAR company the PRC
P 200,000% T RELEED,/
EREHEAF i
Note: Hiat -

(@) Le Saunda (B.V.l.) Limited is held directly by the Company. All
other subsidiaries are held indirectly.

(@) Le Saunda (B.V.) Limited i N2 &) H # #
B-MABEHMHEARY AEESSE -

L OEHEG
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20 DEFERRED INCOME TAXATION

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to set off
the tax assets against the tax liabilities and when
the deferred income taxes relate to the same tax
authority. The following amounts, determined after
appropriate offsetting, are shown in the consolidated

balance sheet:

20 EEMRBHE
EELATEENAIBELEMSEHRIESE
ERRELAEHREAGEENY  ME
EFBRM PR — S #EE - Alm

BHEEFSHIEE ERAEREKE -
TIEHEGEEABRAVENS
HEFABEE K
2020 2019
—EB-FHF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR ARET T

Deferred income tax assets
Deferred income tax liabilities

EREFTSHIAEE
EXEFBREARE

Deferred income taxation is calculated in full on
temporary differences under the liability method
using the tax rates enacted or substantively enacted

by the balance sheet date.

55,332 54,302
(24,757) (27,869)
30,575 26,433

WA SR R A RS R
=N EEE SR A R R
K H o

2020 2019
—F-FF —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARB T ARET T

At beginning of year

Credited to consolidated income
statement (Note 12)

Exchange realignment

At end of year

1 90 le saunda holdings Itd. &8 HTHERR AR A A
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AGEABREER
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R R

26,433 23,452
4,134 2,950
8 31
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20 DEFERRED INCOME TAXATION (CONTINUED) 20 IEJE f7/8 %8 (&)
The movement on deferred income tax assets and BEEFMEHESELRBENE SN
liabilities are as follows: T
Withholding tax
on dividend for
Unrealised profits on Revaluation of undistributed profits
inventories Tax losses investment properties (Note ) Others Total
AIREAHRERNH
FEREREA HEES RENXER Wia £ @it
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
ZBZ2F  “F-AF  ZBCBE CR-0F ZBIBE CER-£EF ZBIRE CE-NF ZBCBE CR-0F ZBIBE SR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARETT AR®Tr ARETT ARMTR ARETR AR%Tn  ARETR ARETR ARKTR  AR%TR  ARETR
At beginning of year REA] 46,247 a1or 4,753 5,150 (9,717) (10,656) (18,152) (19,430) 3,302 1,261 26,433 23,452
(Charged/credited to consolidated &4 1 &
income statement (1) /5 (3,681) (1,171) - (622) 1,937 1,491 1,748 1,218 4,130 1974 4,134 2,950
Exchange realignment Ex3 381 291 256 25 (573) (552) - - (56) 67 8 3
Atend of year RER 42047 46247 5,009 478 (8,359) 9717) (16,404) (18,152) 1376 3302 30,575 26,433
Note: B it -
(@)  Pursuant to the Detailed Implementation Regulations for @ BEBERZTETLF+_ABEMHLE

implementation of the Corporate Income Tax Law issued on 6
December 2007, withholding income tax of 10% shall be levied
on the dividends remitted by the companies established in the
PRC to their foreign investors starting from 1 January 2008. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
All dividends coming from the profits generated by the PRC
companies after 1 January 2008 shall be subject to this
withholding income tax. The Group did not accrue withholding
income tax for a portion of the earnings of RMB300,650,000
(2019: RMB300,650,000) of its PRC subsidiaries because the
Group does not have a plan to distribute these earnings from
its PRC subsidiaries.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried
forward to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefits
through future taxable profits is probable. As at 29 February
2020, the Group had unrecognised tax losses of approximately
RMB121,577,000 (2019: RMB121,935,000) to be carried forward
against future taxable income.

Fﬁ%%%;e/z,am &H BT ENF—HA—
~H%¥1E¢@&jm“ﬂmfﬁ\iﬁl\&
TR A B B U10% I FEF L o fifi R
Iéﬁiﬁ\\@&éﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂiﬁélﬁﬂﬁffélﬁ
B8 AIA R ERSEENRBR - R
T N\F—A—RBKRATEQRMELE
FEMAREHEMNBMB - BRA
EEEFES /ﬁﬁlﬂwﬂ% RlZzBHE
FMmABFRZEHNAMEBHZAFNAA
300,650,000 (ZE — L EF: AR
300,650,0007T) °

ﬁ“ﬁﬁEﬁﬁlﬁ%ﬁ?&*ﬁ‘ﬁb%%@ﬂiﬂwﬁ%ﬁ
MBI HEBBAESE®R A
EHREEE - R_ZT-_TF_F= Jer
H A4BEAERBEBEOAR
#121,577,000C (Z T — L F: AR ¥
121,935,0007T) °
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A o A AR Mk

20 DEFERRED INCOME TAXATION (CONTINUED) 20
The expiry of unrecognised tax losses are as follows:

S 3 FfF 18 B¢ 8 (80)
RIERBUEREZBMANT :

2020 2019

—EZEF —E-NEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ T AR T T

Tax losses without expiry date EmIEBACBIEEE 100,687 96,837
Tax losses expiring in 5 years AFRNEmZHIBEE 20,890 25,098
121,577 121,935

21 INVENTORIES 21 78

2020 2019

—E-FF —ENF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR AR T T

Raw materials R+ % 12,193 18,610
Work in progress + &K 7,831 11,055
Finished goods 2K mm 290,098 317,246
310,122 346,911

Less: Provision for impairment of B FERERE

inventories (37,029) (21,467)
273,093 325,444
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22 TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER RECEIVABLES, 22 EFREWERERKEMEKREER

AND DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS ReERBENRE
2020 2019
—E-FF —TNF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARB TR ARETTT

Trade receivables g5 rINERIA 58,258 77,686
Less: loss allowance B REE (7,709) (5,454)
50,549 72,232
Other receivables H b g Uk BR 18 2,980 2,708
53,529 74,940
Deposits Ze 13,149 18,735
Prepayments T R IE 4,212 4,158
Value added tax receivables JiE Wi 38 (B 7 1R 29,132 27,210
100,022 125,043
Presented as non-current assets 2V RIIERBEE 3,421 4,632
Presented as current assets ZEVAEREBEE 96,601 120,411
100,022 125,043
The Group’s concessionaire sales through department AEERBEES ZETIEHENIE
stores are generally collectible within 30 to 60 days. —RAT R BEEHERI0E60RAUE -
The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables B 5 EWARIE & H A B ARIE 2 R
approximate their fair values. There is no concentration HERAAFERESE BRAE
of credit risk with respect to trade receivables as the XPR%Z HEZRERWEREIY&E
Group has a large number of customers. ERBEFRBR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B B 5 AR B

22 TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER RECEIVABLES, 22 ESEWEER EEKEER
AND DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS BERESREGE)
(CONTINUED)

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at
the end of the reporting period, and net of provision,
based on invoice date is as follows:

BEHRKR BRERZEZEEEKR
ZHRERREZAHOMWT

le saunda holdings Itd.

2020 2019
—F-FF —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR T T
Current to 30 days BIE 230K 39,905 61,588
31 to 60 days 31K E60K 7,037 6,312
61 to 90 days 61K 290K 2,967 1,999
Over 90 days B 190K 640 2,333
50,549 72,232

Trade receivables are denominated in the following EHRWRBL TG &5 8R

currencies:

2020 2019
—E-FF —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AR T T
RMB AR 50,502 72,083
HK$ BT 44 146
MOP BT 3 3
50,549 72,232

A AHERAR AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A o A R Mk

TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER RECEIVABLES, 22 ES5EWRER EMEWERIER
AND DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS RERENREGE)
(CONTINUED)
The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach NEBFEE AT BB REEAFEQ
to measuring expected credit losses which uses FeBIERF A ERHEEBHE -
a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade TR EESENERINEFEAGFS
receivables. The loss allowance recognised as BAEEHi BB EERE N_E_ZTF
at 29 February 2020 is RMB7,709,000 (2019: “AZ+HhH ERTEBEEEA
RMB5,454,000). Information about the impairment of R¥7709,000(—FE —NF: ARK
trade receivables and group’s exposure to credit risk 5,454,000) - IR E S EWERIBE 2 &
and foreign currency risk can be found in note 3.1(b) ARARER 7=z E R K& INE R
to the consolidated financial statements. BEMEEMIERERMEESAD) °
CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND PLEDGED 23 RERBITHERREERBTE
BANK DEPOSIT =
2020 2019
—EB-FHF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR®ET T
Cash at bank and on hand RITHEEEFHRS 325,164 280,924
Bank deposits with initial term no  HIR DR =1E A &
more than three months (Note (a))  $R1TE X (A1 it (@) 147,691 274,672
Bank deposits with initial term over Hi[R % =& A &)
three months (Note (b)) RITE R (B a2 (b)) 35,700 35,000
Cash and bank balances e RRITHE R 508,555 590,596
Pledged bank deposit EEARITER 719 665
509,274 591,261
Less: Term deposits with initial term & : #APR % = & A &9
over three months (Note (b)) T B 17 R (AT 2t b)) (35,700) (35,000)
Pledged bank deposit B IR1T7 K
(Note (c)) (H#1#t(c) (719) (665)
Cash and cash equivalents RehERIRELER 472,855 555,596
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A o A AR Mk

23 CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND PLEDGED
BANK DEPOSIT (CONTINUED)

The cash and bank balances are denominated in the
following currencies:

23

BERBITEHRECERRITE

(&)

Be

KERITHE SR AT 5 B ¥ 51 BR

2020 2019
—E-FF —TNF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARB TR ARETTT

RMB AR
us$ ETT
HK$ BT
Other currencies Hfh g #&
Note:

(@) The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits and
term deposits was 1.91% (2019: 1.95%) per annum; these
deposits have a maturity ranging from 29 to 91 days (2019: 7 to
90 days).

(b) The effective interest rate on bank deposits with initial term
over three months was 1.92% (2019: 1.88%) per annum; these
deposits have a maturity ranging from 182 to 183 days (2019:
181 to 182 days).

(c) Bank deposit of RMB719,000 (2019: RMB665,000) has been
pledged as rental deposits for a subsidiary of the Company.

The effective interest rate on pledged bank deposit was 1.94%
per annum (2019: 2.30%).

(d) The Group’s cash and bank balances denominated in RMB
are deposited with banks in the PRC. The conversion of these
RMB denominated balances into foreign currencies and the
remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject to the rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the
PRC government.

(e) The carrying amounts of cash and bank balances approximate
their fair values.

196 le saunda holdings Itd. ZEEHTFHERL B R A &

364,120 318,039
124,705 223,232
17,829 47,298
2,620 2,692
509,274 591,261

Hret

RHRTERAREHERONERI XA
HF191% (ZZE—NF:1.95%) % EHF
FEBHAN FORNB(—E-AF TR
90H) °

HRO-EANTHEINERINEXAES
F1.92% (ZT—NF:1.88%) : ZZF A
B E B N F182F183R (= F — /1 F : 181
Z=182H) ©

RITEZRARET19,0000 (= — N 4F:
AR ¥665,00070) B IFIEA ARG —
WBARMBEERS -

BHEBBEIEANERREAEEF1.94%
(ZZ—HF:2.30%) °

AEBUAARBREMNWR S RRITHEH
DREFERPENRT - HBEZEUAARE
REMMEFRINE REDLFBRIEA
1857 R B BT AR AR O SN B AR R R AR

ZEReRBITHEBZEERERELT
BEREE

3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B WA
24 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 24 ZKEBHERERHET
STATEMENTS
(@) Reconciliation of loss before income tax to net @ KBS HAIEEEGEEKE
cash generated from operations: H IR EEE R
2020 2019
—_ ? —_ EE 7j_|.v£'£
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AR®ETF T
Cash flow from operating K& XK EFH
activities HERE
Loss before income tax Br TS T AT 1B (21,274) (13,439)
Adjustments for: i
Exchange difference ME W ZE 7,457 4,531
Fair value losses on KEMENRTE
investment properties &5 18 - 6,909
Depreciation of property, plant  #7% - #28 L &%
and equipment e 25,348 32,851
Depreciation of right-of-use CTRAEEERE
assets 25,042 -
Loss on write off/disposal of 84/ HE# e &
plant and equipment HEEE 8,869 3,725
Gain on early termination of RAKIERESNHN
lease payments U == (220) -
Gain on disposal of property, — HE¥E - F AR
right-of-use assets/land BE/LifF R
use right and investment SECE-E/E L &
property (5,643) (4,214)
Amortisation of land use rights = it {& 3 & # § - 791
Impairment losses on trade 5 W RIE R (E
receivables, net B8 - FEE 2,255 5,454
Impairment losses/(write FEREEER,
back of impairment) on CRER D)
inventories 14,114 (409)
Impairment loss on property, %% - e &
plant and equipment HE R EEE 9,974 -
Impairment loss on FHAEEERE
right-of-use assets Ri= 11,946 -
Finance income, net FEEUW A FER (6,890) (11,508)
70,978 24,691
Changes in working capital: BEESEH
— Inventories - KFE 39,007 7,265
— Trade and other receivables — Z 5 & WERIE &
H fth & Y BR 18 19,198 30,857
— Deposits and prepayments — &4 N FE K IA 3,878 5,883
— Trade payables and other - ERNESERER
payables H Ath fE T BRIA (31,924) (20,759)
Net cash generated from KREXBEEZ
operations REFHE 101,137 47,937
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B B 5 AR B

24 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 24 ZERERERMIT(E)

STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation of disposal of property, right- b)) REWME FHEEE LT
of-use assets/land use right and investment FRENRIEEYEEE:
property:

2020 2019
—EZEF —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AR®ET T
Proceeds from disposal & BOR 70,500 6,000
Net book amount of investment % & ¥ 2 BREF &
property (54,000) -
Net book amount of property, ¥ % - # 22 & X 5 B
plant and equipment [ F B (364) (339)
Net book amount of right-of- ¥ F# & E KR\ FE
use assets (2019: land use (ZZE—N L
right) 1 R ) (507) (956)
Land appreciation tax expenses = i 1% {& % 18 &
and other relevant tax HAth BT 1
expenses (9,986) (525)
Exchange differences EH ER - 34
Gain on disposal of property,  HE¥E « F Bk
right-of-use assets/land use BE /T R
right and investment property &% & ¥ ¥ W &= 5,643 4,214

() Reconciliation of write off/disposal of plant and () sl HEHMEREBEHR:
equipment:

2020 2019

—E-FF —TNF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR AR T T

Proceeds from disposal & BOA 2,139 -

Net book amount FREFE (11,008) (3,725)
Loss on write off/disposal of ey HHEHRR

plant and equipment A E 1R (8,869) (3,725)

le saunda holdings Itd. ZEEHTFHERL B R A &



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B B 5 AR B

25 TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND 25 EHNESEE HMESEER
CONTRACT LIABILITIES EHNEE

2020 2019

—E-FF —T-NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® Tt AREF T

Trade payables e E 5 ERIE 11,435 19,203

Other payables H At fE T BRIE 55,564 65,762

Value added tax payables JE <1 38 (B B 18 9,785 11,598

Contract liabilities (Note) aRaER ) 8,557 9,815

85,341 106,378

HEBREH‘R 2EEH-—RA/7TEOX -

The credit periods granted by suppliers are generally

ranged from 7 to 60 days. The ageing analysis of the WERR BNESHSRBZERRE

trade creditors at the end of reporting period, based BEEABSTWT:
on invoice date is as follows:

2020 2019
—EB-FHF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR®ET T
Current to 30 days BNHAZ= 30K 7,993 9,637
31 to 60 days 31K E60K 2,110 5,706
61 to 90 days 61K 290K 449 1,909
91 to 120 days 91K 2120k 367 803
Over 120 days B iB120K 516 1,148
11,435 19,203
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B B 5 AR B

25 TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND 25 ENEZKRE HAtENERER
CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) EHEBEE)
The carrying amounts of trade payables approximate FENEZERBERMEENFEEES
their fair values and are denominated in the following WA T 5 & 5 B8R
currencies:
2020 2019
—E-FF —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR T T
RMB AR 11,349 17,441
US$ EY 75 1,224
EUR BL T 6 499
HK$ BT 5 39
11,435 19,203
Note: W&t -
The following table shows the amount of the revenue recognised in TRENTEAREAERN KA EHERNF
the current reporting period relates to contract liabilities balance at MEBEHNEBENRE -
the beginning of the year.
2020 2019
—BEC-EF —E-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBFIT
Revenue recognised that was included in the ~ ¥ AN EBEBRBDA
contract liabilities balance at the beginning W %5 1R A
of the year 3,116 N/A 7~ 38 A

le saunda holdings Itd.
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27

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A B S R B
SHARE CAPITAL 26 R
2020 2019
“E-EF —T-NEF
Number of Share Number of Share
ordinary capital ordinary capital
shares HK$’000 shares HK$'000
& 2% B
EERYE TErT LTEKRHE TET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 & 3@ f%0.10% T
Authorised: ETE A -
At the beginning of year and ~ FHREXK
at the end of year 1,000,000,000 100,000 1,000,000,000 100,000
2020 2019
e % “ENE
Number of Share Number of Share
ordinary capital ordinary capital
shares RMB’000 shares RMB’000
N BB A
EERHEE AR®Tr ELTBERHE ARET T
Issued and fully paid: EETRBERA:
At the beginning of year and ~ FHREXK
at the end of year 705,895,060 59,979 705,895,060 59,979
SHARE OPTIONS 27 BRE

At a special general meeting of the Company held
on 22 July 2002, the shareholders of the Company
approved the adoption of the share option scheme
(the “Scheme”), pursuant to which the directors may
grant options to eligible persons (as defined under
the Scheme) to subscribe for shares in the Company
in accordance with the terms of the Scheme. The
number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Scheme shall not exceed 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at
the date of shareholders’ approval. The aggregate
number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the Scheme and any other share
options schemes of the Company shall not exceed
30% of the issued share capital of the Company from
time to time.

KRR EE-_F+tA-+=-HE
THRRERF RS L RARKRE
ERREMNERESTEI(EED &
b EERRAEERAT(EE RGT
ENERTHERE ZZFEATUREG
BT REBARBRGD - HEIATE
FTHREREMSBROHBETSER
BREHEZEEHARRREBEITRAD
10% > RITEFE sk A QR EME
tEERETE 2 HERTEE KT
FEREMBITOROBDEBE  ~5F
FR B AN RN BB ITIRAAIZ0% ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B B 5 AR B

27 SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED) 27 BRREE)
Each share option under the Scheme entitles the HEI TS ERER T EARER
holder to subscribe for one share of HK$0.10 each in EHEEeBETHNERAE —IKAK
the Company at a price, which is to be determined /“Ttﬂxﬁ{ﬁom,%na’jﬂx{ - MEFR
by the Board of Directors provided always that it shall FTEZEBRANPR: (VR THEEE
be at least the higher of: (i) the closing price of the #1/\1&2@5%&%;5@7%%%5%
shares as stated in the daily quotation sheet issued BUMBEAELEH EARMOEBAT
by the Stock Exchange for the date of offer of grant SHBMEXRATIOWHE - LHET
(which is deemed to be the date of grant if the offer EREZHA AEAZEEEHRMDERB
for the grant of an option is accepted by the eligible FrTEHSREBRNEHKRTERED
person), which must be a business day; and (i) the BEE -
average closing price of the shares as stated in the
daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of offer of grant.
Movements in the number of share options WMARTERERESE K E M
outstanding and their related weighted average BEHTEEESHn T :
exercise prices are as follows:
2020 2019
—ECEF —NF
Average Average
exercise Number exercise Number
price per of share price per of share
share options share options
SRYY §HFH
TEE BREHE TEE  BREHA
(HK$) (thousands) (HK$)  (thousands)
B T4 BT T
At beginning of year F9] 2185 1,625 2.899 3,260
Lapsed BRM - - 2185 (535)
Lapsed BEAK - - 4,300 (1,100)
At end of year Fi8 2.185 1,625 2185 1,625

le saunda holdings Itd.

The Group has no legal or constructive obligation
to repurchase or settle the options in cash. For the
year ended 28 February 2019, 535,000 shares at an
adjusted exercise price of HK$2.185, and 1,100,000
shares at an adjusted exercise price of HK$4.300
were lapsed.

A AHERAR AR

AEBUVEEZFXIETETUR
Bos EEBERE BEZ_FT— jm
F_AZFTNBLEFE BEAE

f# & /2.185% JT 2535,00017 & Hx
ERGRFAEITEERL300E T2
1,100,00017 #& & #E B K 3K ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fr A B A R R e
SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED) 27 BREGE)
Number Number
(Adjusted) of share (Adjusted) of share
Exercise options as at Exercise  options as at
price per 29 February price per 28 February
share 2020 share 2019
— -< — EF —= _j-L¢
(AE) _H_-I-)‘LH (#%) —B=tANR
BRITFEE BREZE BRoEE BEREZHE
(HK$) (thousands) (HK$) (thousands)
BT T4 BT T
Expiry date at: ZIEA -
9 July 2022 (Note (a)) “ZEZ-"F+AhH
(K1) 2.185 1,625 2185 1,625
Note: B at -
(a) Become exercisable from a range of dates between 10 July (a) ARAZ-—NFEATHEZE-_F—X

2014 and 10 July 2016 and expiring on the 10th anniversary
from date of grants of 10 July 2012.

For the year ended 29 February 2020, no amount
was recognised and included in “employee benefit

expenses” (2019: Nil).

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

The Group operates a defined benefit pension plan
in Hong Kong based on employee pensionable
remuneration and length of service.

The amounts, included in trade and other payables

(Note 25),

recognised in the balance sheet are
determined as follows:

EtHJFEHﬂFEEJ$MTT@E I P X H#
—E——FtA+HEFRIOAFZAHE

R o

BE_TTFE_FA-TNALFE"

WS R
BHRAXZIR(CZE

28 RAKBRAEME

¥EFFAMEER
—NF ) e

AEBEREBEREEBERKT M LIRS F

HIR BB LT

BERERRN
(1 5#25) H

REBANEBREE -

BEREBRNEMENIKEA
MW

2020 2019
—E-EF — &
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREF T
Present value of defined benefit AERMETRE

obligations 123 154

Liability in the consolidated balance R4AEEBEBEXRH
sheet aE 123 154

\
A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A o A AR Mk

28 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 28

(CONTINUED)

The movement in the present value of defined benefit

RKE N E A (F)

FA - AERNEERENE B W

obligations over the year is as follows: T~
2020 2019
—EB-FHF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREF T
At beginning of year F 4] 154 232
Interest cost PSS 1 3
Current service cost I8 AR 7 B AR 4 5
Payment =t (67) (622)
Actuarial losses BEEE 23 524
Exchange difference I =C 8 12
At end of year F IR 123 154
The amounts recognised in the consolidated income RiGEERAERANESRBOT
statement are as follows:
2020 2019
—E-SHF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AREF T
Interest cost included in staff costs 5t A B T A& 2 Fl & 1 3

le saunda holdings Itd. ZEEHTFHERL B R A &




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B B 5 AR B

28 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 28 EKREFEE(E)
(CONTINUED)
The principal actuarial assumptions used were as FEMRBEBRIKEADT:
follows:
2020 2019
—E-EH —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARB T ARET T

Discount rate ] X 0.93% 1.78%
Future salary increase rate AR 2R 7 B $5 hn b 3.00% 4.70%
29 RESERVES 29 f#&f&
Employee
Capital Exchange Share-based
redemption  translation Statutory ~ Contributed Retained Capital ~ Revaluation compensation
Share premium reserve reserve reserves surplus eamings reserve reserve reserve  Other reserve Total
oo 3)
-3 HE Eakf
REEE FEE BRAR b3 1 EIN: ] RELA E5iE EffRE fHERE Al i
i)

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ABRTR  ARBTR  ARNTn  ARRTr  ARRTR  ARRTn  ARRTn  ARRTr  ARRTR  ARBTR  ARRiR

At 1 March 2019 RZE-NEZA-A 88,962 145 (40,691) 47,145 217,546 766,512 4812 11,070 20,101 115 1,115,737
Intial applicafion of HKFRS 16 ERRERRNERE
EHETAE - - - - - (2,987) - - - - (2,987)
Restated at 1 March 2019 R-F-7F=A-REE) 88,062 145 (40,691) 47,145 217,546 763,525 4812 11,070 20,101 115 1,112,750
Comprehensive income 2B
Loss for the yeer - - - - - (30,519) - - - - (30,519)
Other comprehensive income
Currency translation differences - - 8,114 - - - - - - - 28,14
Retirement benefit obligation - - - - - - - - - (23) (23)
Transfer of gain on disposal of EBRENELTE
investment property at fair value hEns - - - - - 11,070 - (11,070) - - -
Transecton with owners BEEALRS
Share option scheme ERiEHY
— share option apsed - ERExR - - - - - - - - - - -
Dicends BE - - - - ) - - - - -
At 29 February 2020 i Sk 88,062 145 (16,977) 41,145 3,076 44,076 4812 - 2,101 92 891,452
Representing: &
2020 proposed dividend CE-REBERE -
Others i 891,452

891,462
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B B 5 AR B

29 RESERVES (CONTINUED) 29 f#fE (&)
Employee
Captal  Exchange Share-based
Share  redemption  translation Statutory ~ Contributed Retained Capital  Revaluation compensation QOther
premium reserve reserve reserves surplus earnings reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
otz 3))
E% HE B2k
RHhEE  REEE  AEEE  ARER  BARE RN EARE  ERBE  BHEE  EbER Eh
(i)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETn ARETn ARETR ARETT ARETn ARETR  ARETR
A1 March 2018 R-E-N§23-8 8% U5 G089 M5 2ER TR0 4B 10 22878 B 17230
Comprehensive income 2EHA
Loss for the year EnEE - - - - - (28,03 - - - - 28032
Other comprehensive income Afp2EAA
Currency translation differences EXzE - - 19918 - - - - - - - 19918
Retirement benefit obligation NEHER - - - - - - - - - (524) (524)
Transaction with owners BEBALRS
Share option scheme BiREE
— share option lapsed - BRERH - - - - - 2475 - . (2479) . .
Dividends ke - - - K] - - - - N ETG)
At 28 February 2019 RZE-NE-A=T/\R 86,982 145 40,691) 47146 217,546 766,512 4812 11,070 20,101 116 1,116,737
Representing: K&
2019 proposed dividend “E-NEEERE 210428
Others it 905,309
1,115,787
Note: B it
(a)  Statutory reserves represent enterprise expansion and (a) ETEREBEENPEKLREEHNERF

le saunda holdings Itd.

general reserve funds set up by subsidiaries established
and operated in the PRC. As stipulated by regulation in the
PRC, the subsidiaries are required to appropriate to statutory
reserves an amount of not less than 5% or 10% of the amount
of profit after income tax of respective the PRC subsidiaries,
calculated based on the PRC accounting standards. Should
the accumulated total of the statutory reserves reach 50% of
the registered capital of the PRC subsidiaries, the subsidiaries
will not be required to make any further appropriation. Pursuant
to relevant the PRC regulations, the general reserve fund may
be used to make up losses or to increase the capital of the
corresponding subsidiaries whilst the enterprise expansion
fund may be used to expand the corresponding subsidiaries’
production operations or to increase the capital of the
corresponding subsidiaries.

A AHERAR AR

FEYMEERRE-—KREHRES - &
PEREMIE  MEBRRAREERFE
T 2RO RBRPBEGAENHES
P B R RO BR P 1S AR 1R 8 A 95% 3K
10% - A ERBREBELBETENBERQ
Al GEM AL AR 1950% - B & A B # & 22 B 1E
HER - REEHEPERRE —RERE
SR AEERBBRRIEMARNEARN
B M XEHREES RN B E TS
BARMAEEZBRIZINBEKBELAN
AR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fr A B A R R e
30 COMMITMENTS 30 AiE
(a) Capital commitments (a) BEAREIE
2020 2019
—E_EF —NF
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR T AR®ET T
Contracted but not provided BEIERBEED
for, in respect of — purchase  EA&EE — A

of property, plant and BEYE KEXR

equipment B 656 704

(b) Commitments under operating leases

(i)

The Group, as lessee, had future aggregate
minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases.

From 1 March 2019, the Group has
recognised right-of-use assets for these
leases, except for short-term, see Note 2.2
and Note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements for further information.

(b) BEHLYRE
() AEBBRETATHELE
MHOBINHRRZER
RO o

BE-_E—hAhF=A—H# -

Land and buildings:
Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than
five years
Over five years

The above operating lease commitments
include commitments for fixed rent only.
Rentals payable in some cases may include
an additional rent, calculated according
to gross revenue which is in excess of the
fixed rent.

B‘f\ﬂﬁﬁfﬁfﬁl\'$$le
% R a‘“ﬂf‘ffﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂé
éf? HHEM FEH
A B KM .&2.2&
B 5E17 o
2019
—NF
RMB’000
AR®ET T
T RAEF
DR —F 43,179
iR —FETER
AF 24,476
B iE A F 2,080
69,735
iL#«#%ﬁiﬁ%W BEEEES2
EE -EETERLT  BENE2K
E%ﬁ@ﬁl\’ WMAERBARAGTER
B & o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A o A AR Mk

30 COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED) 30 &IE (&)
(b) Commitments under operating leases (b) REMENAE(E)

(Continued)

(i)  The Group, as lessor, had future aggregate iy XEBBRETATMEBELE
minimum rental receivables under non- 4B WA &K &IEA
cancellable operating leases as follows: THFEWT

2020 2019
—EB-FHF —ET-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR®ET T
Land and buildings: T REF
Not later than one year PR —F 87 81
Later than one year and not HE—FED
later than five years HE38 T F 40 127
127 208
31 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 31 BB IEDSE
2020 2019
—E-FF —TNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR T T
Financial assets at amortised cost & i & 2 1% # #5 1% 7K
Sl Bk
Trade and other receivables B S EWERIE & EAth
JE W BR 18 53,529 74,940
Deposits i 13,149 18,735
Pledged bank deposits B RITIER 719 665
Cash and bank balances Re RIRITH 508,555 590,596
575,952 684,936
Financial liabilities at amortised cost % @ B 1& 1% ## 75 5 2K
Sl Bk
Trade and other payables BN ESRE R
H fh fE AR IR 66,056 82,359
Lease liabilities HEAaE 32,359 -
98,415 82,359
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI R P RE
32 BANKING FACILITIES AND GUARANTEES 32 RMITRAERER
The banking facilities made available to subsidiaries AIEHAEBRNWB AR SHAWEITRE
of the Group are as follows: BREEWNT:
2020 2019
= —ENF
Available Facilities Available Facilities
facilities utilised facilities utilised

AHEE CBHRABE FTHABEE CHAEE
RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTRT ARBTR ARBTT ARETT

Banking facilities granted  [a] 7 £ [& ff} &

to subsidiaries of the NSIES fuslzn
Group RITHERE 135,851 780 171,000 2,421
As at 29 February 2020, RMB86,000 (2019: R-ZE-_TF_A-_tHAB E25
RMB1,764,000) and RMB694,000 (2019: A ARES6,000T(ZZE—NF : A
RMB657,000) of the facilities were utilised for K #1,764,0007T) & A R#694,0007T
commercial letters of credit and bank guarantee ZE—NF: ARM657,0007T) B9
respectively. BHRERAEBHEERMRERITER -
33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33 BEHEEALNRS
(a) Related parties (a) BEEEAL
As at 29 February 2020, Stable Gain Holdings RZEBE_EEFE_A=-+hN8-
Limited held 31.94% (2019: 31.94%) equity Stable Gain Holdings Limited$F
interest in the Company as the single largest BEARRFZ1.94% (ZF—NF:
shareholder. 31.94%) K IR AR - BE — &

AR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i B B B R B T
33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33 BEEEALHRS (&)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Transactions with related parties (b) HREBEATHRES
Significant transactions with related parties HEBEATRAAETHE
and companies, which were carried out in the ERXGIRAEERFTEKRF
normal course of the Group’s business, are BT BRI T

summarised as follows:

2020 2019
—g-8F —T-NfF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTR ARET T

Rental expenses charged by: BEfHHE S % :

— a related party (Note (i) — —fuBE#@EALT
(Bt &2 () - 1,166

0] During the year ended 28 February 2019, the Group () HE-T-NF-AZ-TNHLFE -
rented a shop located in Macau from Mr. Lee, a AREBRAAREBREFRIFHIT
substantial shareholder and non-executive director of the EETAAAR—MANRMNE
Company, as a retail outlet in Macau. HIERRMMTEMT -

(c) Key management compensation (c) X EEEEMS
The directors are considered key management ESHEAREBRZ IEERE -

of the Group.

2020 2019
—EB-8HE —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR ARET T

Salaries and other short-term & M EMEEHEES

employee benefits & A 6,529 6,254

Employer’s contributions to EXRAKESFEHR
retirement scheme 50 61
6,579 6,315
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A BB R b R
34 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE OF THE 34 APREEEBRRGEE
COMPANY
(a) Balance sheet of the Company (@) xAREEREGX
As at As at
29 February 28 February
2020 2019
R-ZBEZZ2F R-_ZE—NEF
—BA=+hH _H_—H\EI
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARBTFRT AR®FIT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets IERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries KRB AR Z
W@ __._.418,290 393,873
Current assets mENEE
Other receivables H b e I BR 18 226 215
Cash and bank balances Be MIBTES 2,030 1,716
.. _2286 1,931
Total assets BEE 420,546 395,804
EQUITY E =

Capital and reserves attributable AR F I IFHFA A
to the owners of the Company & {5 Bx 2N K (% #5

Share capital Jiie 59,979 59,979

Reserves {5 1 (b) 359,577 334,954
Total equity XM 2 _ 419,556 394,933
LIABILITIES 8E&
Current liabilities nBBaE

Accruals JEFtEH 990 871
Total liabilities BaeE 990 871
Total equity and liabilities EahkBERE 420,546 395,804
The balance sheet of the Company was AABIzEEABBEREN T —
approved by the Board of director on 25 May SEEFAtFHESEESHE -
2020 and was signed on its behalf. WHTIHATREESE
James Ngai Chui Kwan Ho, Jacky
172 1 & ®Er
Chairman Director
FE EF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B B 25 R M

34

le saunda holdings Itd.

BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE OF THE
COMPANY (CONTINUED)

(b) Reserve movement of the Company

34 AARNEERBREMEE)

(b) XAFHEEH

Employee
Capital Exchange share-hased
Share redemption translation  Contributed Retained compensation
premium reserve reserve surplus earnings reserve Total
- NE BERH
R EE RERE RERE E 9N REER BHERE L X
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR
At 1 March 2019 RZE-NE=F-H 88,982 145 (30,475) 226,319 29,882 20,101 334,954
Comprehensive income EXLON
Prolfit for the year ERgEF - - - - 239,093 - 239,093
Transactions with owners ~~ EEBAZRXH
Share option scheme BRE:E
— share option lapsed - BREXN - - - - - - -
Dividends RE - - - (214,470) - - (214,470)
At 29 February 2020 RZZZFEZAZTNR 88,982 145 (30,475) 11,849 268,975 20,101 359,571
Representing: f&:
2020 proposed dividend ZEITERERE -
Others £t 359,577
359,571
Employee
Capital Exchange share-based
Share redemption translation Contributed Retained  compensation
premium reserve reserve surplus eamings reserve Total
EX ShE EERHA
B EE EmEE hEGE HARE REEH BEGE @i
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AEBTTR ARETT AEETT AEBTR AEBTTR ARBTR
At 1 March 2018 RZ%-/\§=A-R 88,982 145 (30,475) 274,29 26,475 22,576 381,998
Comprehensive income 2ERA
Profit for the year EREH - - - - 932 - 932
Transactions with owners — ERAAZZH
Share option scheme BiREE
— share option lapsed - BRELH - - - - 2475 (2,475) -
Dividends RE - - - 47.976) - - [47.976)
At 28 February 2019 RZE-NEZA=tA 88,982 145 (30,475) 226,319 29,882 20,101 334,954
Representing: R
019 proposed dvidend  —F-AFRERE 210428
Others i 124,526
334,954
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35 EVENTS OCCURING AFTER THE REPORTING

DATE

After the year end date, the Group decided to cease
its footwear production (the “Cessation”) in the
Shunde Factory. Since May 2020, the Group has
outsourced all its footwear production to external
subcontractors in order to improve the Group’s
inventory management and costs control. As a
result of the Cessation, one-off redundancy costs
of approximately RMB36 millions would be incurred,
of which RMB29 millions were booked in the first
quarter of financial year 2020/21. The redundancy
costs were calculated based on the applicable local
labour laws and regulations. After the Cessation,
certain area within the Shunde Factory continues
to be used as warehouse and office of various
departments.

A o A R Mk

35 WEHREIR

REHERE  NEBREELEIEE
ITHREEEEBER(BLEEED-
BT -_TFER AR AEBKHEHMR
EEBRAEENHBE=ZAIR N
FPEENZEFEERRALES -
AFIEEE BSEE—AMERIEES
& [F /Y &% 8 49 A R #36,000,0007T -
ﬁﬂP/\Emg 000 ooom*t_g_g/
—BBREEF—FTEAK - LK
tﬁaAﬂﬁ*E%@f*m ﬁﬁﬂﬁ
BELAREREBRTESYE - =1t
E % \Iﬁ?ﬁlﬁ%:Fi‘@Eﬂ%%EﬁﬁVE
BERERISFNBEAE -
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

HAE B

RESULTS OF THE GROUP

rEBZ¥EE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
“E_2f —“T-NE —T-)\& ZFT—+tF 1%
RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR AR®Tr ARETr ARETT ARETR
Revenue Wz 736,387 908,784 1,130,560 1,365,545 1,621,414
Operating (loss)/profit K (BE)/ &7 (28,164) (24,947) 85,530 124,088 169,492
Finance income, net BBWBA - FE 6,890 11,508 8,239 4,006 8,858
Share of profit of a Joint Venture Fr{h& & ¥ %7 - - 74 423 376
(Loss)/profit before income tax B FTET A (EE),/
4 A (21,274) (13,439) 93,843 128,517 178,726
Income tax expense FEfiz (9,046) (13,889) (33,600) (52,113) (54,999)
(Loss)/profit for the years FR(EE)/ & (30,320) (27,328) 60,243 76,404 123,727
(Loss)/profit attributable to: JE(L (E48) /% A -
— owners of the Company — ADRER
FAA (30,519) (28,032) 59,676 74,977 122,073
— non-controlling interest — FEBRER 199 704 567 1,427 1,654
(30,320) (27,328) 60,243 76,404 123,727
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

T AE o R B
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF THE GROUP
rEBZEEREE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
“E_Z2E —“Z-NF —T-\F ZE—+F ZZ—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETRT AR®TRT AR®TRT ARETR
Investment properties, property, X &E#%E - ¥
plant and equipment and BERFERT
land use rights i P4 129,973 230,108 244,224 258,683 264,757
Right-of-use assets FREEE 37,969 - - - -
Interest in Joint Venture ReErE R - - - 35,156 34,733
Long-term deposits and B e RAMK
prepayments b} 3,421 4,632 5,898 7,105 8,961
Interest in and amount due from R A HEB K&
an available-for-sale financial EZEZNER
assets B - - - - -
Deferred income tax assets EEMEHBEE 55,332 54,302 53,538 55,283 69,813
Net current assets RBEEFE 774,490 924,993 969,207 998,622 978,632
1,001,185 1,214,035 1,272,867 1,354,849 1,356,896
Total equity mER 961,704 1,186,166 1,242,781 1,320,455 1,312,521
Deferred income tax liabilities ~ EIEFEHEARE 24,757 27,869 30,086 34,394 44,375
Lease liabilities MEER 14,724 - — - -
1,001,185 1,214,035 1,272,867 1,354,849 1,356,896

annual report 3k 2020

215



216

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

BEWIE

Location
ih Bh

Type
B 5l

Tenure

ERMtE

Shop Nos. 5 & 6,

215-217 Qi Sha Road,
Block 1, Hao Jing Hua Yuan,

West District, Shi Qi Zhen, Zhongshan,

Guangdong Province,
People’s Republic of China

PEARKLNE
FEREFUD

7 & s D R 215-217 5%
S =tBE —E5N6R

le saunda holdings Itd.
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Shop

7 A

Medium lease

I 4
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